CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION

i o= B = ==

Expanding a Happy Living Environment
(Stock Code: 601668.SH )

mg and related construction
i gdezhen Huangshan H|th-




\T'¢
CSCEC’S SPIRIT W

R

Loyalty, responsibility,
and mission attainment

©

CORPORATE MISSION

Expanding a happy
living environment

oo

C CORPORATE VISION j

To be the most internationally
competitive investment and
construction group

=
CORE VALUES

R
I

Quality assurance and
value creation




] CONTENTS

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 4
AT A GLANCE 6
IMPORTANT NOTES 8
SECTION | DEFINITIONS 9
SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS 10
SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 15
SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 63
SECTION V ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 93
SECTION VI IMPORTANT MATTERS 101
SECTION Vi CHANGES IN SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS 125
SECTION VIl INFORMATION ON PREFERENCE SHARES 134
SECTION IX INFORMATION ON BONDS 135
SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT 148

CHINA SECURITIES REGULATORY COMMISSION
SHANGHAI STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company prepared its 2022 Annual Report in accordance with relevant regulations and guidelines
set forth by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, including the
Guidelines for the Content and Format of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the
Public No. 2 — Content and Format of Annual Reports — the Shanghai Stock Exchange Listing Rules. This
is a free translation into English of a report issued in China, solely for the convenience of English-speaking
readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and is construed in accordance with, Chinese
law and professional auditing standards applicable in China. In the event of any inconsistency between
the Chinese version and the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. Investors can access the
Company’s 2022 Annual Report on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders and Investors,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CSCEC, | hereby present to you the 2023 Annual Report of CSCEC and extend
my heartfelt gratitude for your long-term support for our Company.

In 2023, focusing on our primary task of pursuing high-quality development, we fully implemented the strategic path
of “one enhancement, six aspects of strengthening and six aspects of commitments” in line with our commitment to
the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”. We executed the major tasks of stabilizing growth,
seeking innovation, promoting governance, preventing risks and consolidating Party building on a comprehensive
scale. As a result, CSCEC made considerable headway with reform and development initiatives, maintaining steady
growth momentum. We ranked 13th in the Fortune Global 500 list. We retained the highest credit rating in the industry
worldwide, and delivered satisfactory results to shareholders and investors.

Focusing on value creation, we made sustained efforts to promote the quality and efficiency of the
Company’s development. The value of newly signed contracts for the year amounted to RMB4.32 trillion, and the
revenue reached RMB2.27 ftrillion, hitting an all-time high. We ranked among the best-performing central enterprises
on all major performance metrics. We recorded a net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB54.26
billion, with a weighted average return on net assets of 13.36%. We remained committed to supporting the national
economic and social development in key strategic regions. We completed an investment of RMB369.3 billion in
related projects, accounting for nearly 92.3% of our total annual investment, and the total value of relevant newly
signed contracts acquired in the year came in at RMB3.7 trillion. We continued to restructure the housing construction
business, resulting in a continuous increase in the volume of public science, education, culture, health and sports
building projects. We stepped up the transformation and development of the infrastructure business, achieving
breakthroughs in the railway, water conservancy, and energy sectors. We actively adapted to the new development
model of the real estate industry by increasing our reserve of high-quality land plots in first-tier and emerging first-tier
cities. Despite the general market downturn, we achieved positive sales growth, leading the industry in this regard.
We deeply implemented our strategy for high-quality overseas development, achieving steady revenue growth from
overseas operations. As a result, we climbed to the 6th position among international contractors in the ENR rankings.

Centering on shareholder returns, we made continuous efforts to foster a strong sense of gain among
shareholders. Adhering to an investor-centric philosophy, we continuously improved the market value management
system, strengthened investor protection, and safeguarded the legitimate rights and interests of investors, especially
small and medium-sized investors. We expanded the “toolkit” of the market value management system, made efforts
to increase the shareholding of controlling shareholders and inject assets, increased proactive information disclosure,
organized regular earnings briefings, and enhanced communication with domestic and foreign investors. Our cash
distribution ratio continued to rise, with dividends per share increasing steadily, ranking first among all listed peer
companies in terms of total dividend payout. This attests to our unwavering commitment to reward our shareholders.

With a steadfast focus on scientific and technological innovation, we made continuous efforts to enhance our
core competitiveness. We continuously fortified our R&D system, established a “2+6” technology innovation platform
system, actively participated in the development of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development’s Low-
Carbon Building Engineering Technology Innovation Center, and established the first academician expert workstation
in Hong Kong. We expedited the iteration and upgrading of our independently developed domestic software series,
taking the lead in tackling technological bottlenecks in the industry. We further developed the prefabricated rapid
construction technology, contributing significantly to emergency rescue and post-disaster reconstruction efforts. We
continued to make headway in product industrialization and commercialization, with over 100 outcomes achieved in
fields such as new materials, high-end equipment, and environmental protection. We advanced the implementation of
green, low-carbon development, and digital transformation, promoting hundreds of efficient carbon peak projects on a
comprehensive scale. We focused on creating 10,000 green and low-carbon construction sites, deeply implemented
the “CSCEC 136 Project”, and accelerated the development of the construction industry internet.

Focusing on the reform of state-owned enterprises (SOEs), we made sustained efforts to inject new
momentum into development. To consolidate the outcomes of the three-year SOE reform action plan, we
systematically deployed and implemented measures to deepen and strengthen SOE reform endeavors, identifying
85 reform tasks and 278 reform measures. We actively developed strategic emerging industries, adding two national
“Little Giant” enterprises that use special and sophisticated technologies to produce novel and unique products, and
two National Individual Champion Demonstration Manufacturing Enterprises. We stepped up internal management
innovation, increased the scope and depth of collaborative development among subsidiary enterprises, and continued
to build on our momentum for development. We continuously intensified basic-level management practices by
organizing project management conferences and project manager meetings, laying a solid foundation for CSCEC’s
development. We remained committed to delivering high-quality, transparent, and safe projects, completing various
construction tasks to the utmost standard and quality.
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In pursuit of corporate social responsibility, we made continuous efforts to expand a happy living
environment. We spearheaded the formulation of industry standards and rules, meticulously established a
cutting-edge supply chain platform, and facilitated the mutual collaborative development of 600,000 upstream and
downstream enterprises, setting a good example in the construction industry. We recruited nearly 30,000 college
graduates and led over 2 million industrial workers to increase their income. We implemented more than 100 assistance
and support projects, partook in over 150 flood relief missions, and pushed ahead with the “Hundreds of Lectures
into the Construction Site (B17E # i Tih)” campaign themed on the welfare of children left behind in rural areas by
migrant-working parents. We leveraged ESG as a critical component of our corporate strategy, incorporating it into
our operation and management practices, earning honors such as the China ESG Excellence in Practice award in
recognition of our efforts in this regard.

These achievements were the result of the collaborative efforts of the Board of Directors, the management, and all
employees of CSCEC. Such success would not have been possible without the strong support of our shareholders,
investors, and all sectors of society. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | express sincere gratitude to all shareholders
and investors for their support, and to all directors, the management, and employees for their hard work.

Despite the complexities, challenges and uncertainties posed by the external environment, China’s positive long-term
economic fundamentals remain steadfast. The construction industry is accelerating its transformation and upgrading
amid the formation of a new development pattern in the real estate market. The new trends and changes will bring new
opportunities for our development. In 2024, we will work together with shareholders and investors to accomplish our
primary task of pursuing high-quality development and the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”.
Furthermore, we will fully implement the strategic path of “one enhancement, six aspects of strengthening and six
aspects of commitments”, consistently enhancing the long-term value of CSCEC.

We will continue to consolidate and build on the competitiveness of our core business while fulfilling our
main responsibilities, shaping the vision of a “value-creating CSCEC”. We will solidify our leading position
in the construction business, engage more actively in urban renewal and urban operation business, and play an
active role in the development of the “Three Major Projects”. We will continue to explore the infrastructure market,
steadfastly expanding into new sectors such as railway-related construction and water conservancy. We will accelerate
our adaptation to the new development model of real estate and promote the healthy development of our real
estate business. We will thoroughly implement our strategy for high-quality overseas development. In 2024, we will
strive to achieve more than RMB4.5 ftrillion in the value of newly signed contracts, and achieve a revenue of more
than RMB2.38 ftrillion. We will continue to cultivate and develop new quality productive forces, enhancing
“technology-powered CSCEC”. We will continue to pursue deeper integration of industry, education, research and
application, enhancing the efficiency of our research and development output, and accelerating the transformation
of scientific and technological achievements. We will promote the transformation and upgrading of our business
towards high-end, intelligent, and green development, continuously enhancing CSCEC’s core competitiveness. We
will thoroughly explore emerging industries such as new-generation information technology, artificial intelligence, new
materials, and high-end equipment to foster more scientific and technological innovations. We will promote the
sustainable development of the Company, shaping a “happy CSCEC”. We will actively implement the requirement
of “building high-quality housing properties” by providing more high-quality construction products and services. We
will tighten up supply chain management, establish mutually beneficial cooperation, and collaborate with suppliers
for mutual development. We will continuously improve our ESG governance system, enhance ESG performance, and
continue to shape the image of a responsible public company.

In 2024, CSCEC will comprehensively implement the new development concept and contribute to the creation of a new
development pattern. With unwavering dedication, we will promote the high-quality development of CSCEC, delivering
concrete results. We will strive to expand a happy living environment to live up to the expectations of all shareholders,
investors and the society.

Zheng Xuexuan
April 18, 2024
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AT A GLANCE &J&ﬂrﬁm

mewords largest 13th 4th

investment and construction in Fortune Global 500 in Fortune China 500
conglomerate

ISt Won G rade A

in Engineering News-Record's (ENR)
TOP 250 Global Contractors for 1 8 times in the annual SOE performance evaluation of SASAC of the State

Council and continued to maintain the industry’s tOp credit rating worldwide

Included in GSI 50, SSE 50, FTSE China A50, MSCI China A 50 Connect Index Awarded Class A Evaluation of
Information Disclosure by the Shanghai Stock Exchange for consecutive years

u@ Major operating

Newly signed contract value amounted Revenue amounted to Net profit attrioutable to shareholders of the
- 4 32 4 1 - 2 2 6 5 5 - Company amounted to
: to RMB™T, + 1 bilion : RVB&, »J bilion : 5 4 26
' ¢ RMBJ™T. £V bilion

with a year-on-year increase of | with a year-on-year increase of

1 0. 8% 1 0. 2% with a year-on-year increase of 6 ' 5%

Weighted average return on net assets -@I Net assets per share attributable to ordinary Net cash flows from operating activities amounted
was 1 3.36% shareholders were RM89.98/share | to RMB1 1 .03 billion

maintaining its industry-leading position | 1 1 8 Net inflows increased by
+U% increase from :

the end of the previous year RMB7 ' 20 1 bilion year-on-year

ﬁgz Cash dividends cont

Proposed distribution of cash dividends of RMBZ .7 1 45 per 10 shares (tax inclusive) Total annual cash dividends amounted to RMB 1 1 ' 298 bilion (tax inclusive)

Cash dividend ratio stood at 20 ' 8 2% Totel cumulative cash dividends reached RMBg 2 ' 83 bilion
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@ Housing construction engineering

Newly signed contract value amounted to

i Revenue amounted to
S RM82,689.4 bilion RMB1 ,3837 bilion
with a year-on-year increase of 8- 8% with a year-on-year increase of 9. 4%
IETI}:{E Infrastructure construction and investment
Newly signed contract value amounted to . Revenue amounted to
N
N 4 % >> RMB] ,1 68.5billion RM8556.6billion
15.1
- R s of L da E 5 " with a yearon-year increase of 1 2. 8%
Gﬁ Real estate development and investment
Contract sales amounted to Contract sales area amounted to
> RMB45 1 .4 billion 1 8. 58 millon square meters
with a year-on-year increase of 1 2. 4% with a year-on-year increase of 7 . 9%

Revenue amounted to ’I 3 ’I 0
New land reserves amounted to . million
% RM8308 . 8 bilion Rl Teters
Land reserve amounted to 85 .32 million

with a year-on-year increase of 9' 5% square meters at the end of the Reporting Period

Survey and design

Newly signed contract value amounted to ; Revenue amounted to
> RMB] 4.8 billion RMB1 1 .7 billion
with a year-on-year increase of 8 ' 8% 5 with a year-on-year increase of 9 ' 1 %

@@ Overseas business

Newly signed contract value amounted to 1 Revenue amounted to
» RMB] 86.0 billion RMB1 1 5.8 billion
with a year-on-year increase of 1 2. 3% with a year-on-year increase of 7 ' 2%
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VI.

VILI.

VIIIL.

XI.

IMPORTANT NOTES

The Company’s Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management guarantee that the information in this Annual Report is true, accurate and complete and
does not contain any false representations, misleading statements or material omissions, and severally
and jointly accept liability thereof.

This Report was passed at the 56th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors of the
Company, which was attended by all the Directors of the Company.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) issued a standard unqualified audit report to
the Company.

Zheng Xuexuan, Head of the Company (Chairman); Huang Jie, Head of Accounting (Chief Financial
Officer); and Xie Song, Head of the Accounting Office (Chief Accounting Officer) guarantee that the
financial report set out in this Annual Report is true, accurate and complete.

Profit distribution plan and the conversion plan of reserves to share capital for the Reporting Period as
resolved and passed by the Board of Directors

The Company proposed to distribute a cash dividend of RMB2.7145 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares to all ordinary
shareholders based on a total share capital of 41,619,952,444 shares as of the date of disclosure of this Report,
with the proposed cash dividend totaling approximately RMB11.298 billion (tax inclusive). The proportion of cash
dividends attributable to net profit of the Company’s shareholders in the consolidated statements was 20.82%
for the year. In case of any change in its total share capital before the record date of distribution, the Company
proposes to maintain the distribution ratio per share unchanged and adjust the total cash dividend accordingly.
Details of any adjustments will be announced separately. The proposed profit distribution plan was considered and
passed at the 56th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors of the Company. The approval on this
proposed plan is subject to consideration and approval by the 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Risk statement with respect to forward-looking statements
¥ Applicable N/A

This Report contains certain forward-looking statements based on subjective assumptions and judgments on
future policies and economic trends, which may differ from the actual results or trends due to various factors.

The forward-looking statements regarding future plans, development strategies, etc. contained in this Report
do not constitute a material commitment by the Company to investors, and investors are advised to exercise
attention.

Whether there is any misappropriation of funds of the Company for non-operating purposes by the
controlling shareholder and other related parties

No

Whether the Company has provided guarantees in favor of external parties in violation of the prescribed
decision-making procedures

No

Whether more than half of the Directors are unable to guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of this Annual Report disclosed by the Company

No
Warning on major risks
During the Reporting Period, the Company was not exposed to major risks.

Detailed information on potential related risks is provided in “VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Future
Development of the Company” under SECTION Il “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”.

Miscellaneous
¥ Applicable N/A

In addition to the audited financial data, the business data used in this Report comes from the management of the
Company.
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DEFINITIONS
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In this Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

Definitions

CSCEC/the Company

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

China State Construction/the Group

China State Construction Engineering Corporation

China State Construction (22 AF)

China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FE 2R T2 22 7)) (Reorganized and
renamed as China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FEZNEFAEGRAT))

China Construction First Group
Corporation to Eighth Engineering
Division

China Construction First Group Corporation Limited to China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

Xinjiang Construction & Engineering

CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.

COHL

China Overseas Holdings Limited

CSCEC International

CSCEC International Construction Co., Ltd. (F2EFEIEERAT)

China Overseas

The real estate development brand and business owned by China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd. (00688.HK), a subsidiary of COHL

CSC Land

The real estate brand and business other than those under “China Overseas” that CSCEC
is engaged in

China Construction Engineering Design
Group

China Construction Engineering Design Group Corporation Limited

China Overseas Land & Investment

China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (00688.HK)

CSCl

China State Construction International Holdings Limited (03311.HK)

China Overseas Grand Oceans

China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited (00081.HK)

CSC Development

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited (00830.HK)

China Overseas Property

China Overseas Property Holdings Limited (02669.HK)

China West Construction

China West Construction Group Co., Ltd. (002302.S2)

CSC Finance

China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd.

China Construction Fangcheng

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Capital

China Construction Capital Holdings Limited

China State Decoration

China State Decoration Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Infrastructure

China Construction Infrastructure Co., Ltd.

CSCDC

China State Construction Development Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Technology Innovation

China CSCEC Technology Innovation Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Science and Industry

China Construction Science and Industry Corporation Ltd.

China Construction Communications

China Construction Communications Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Science &
Technology

China Construction Science & Technology Group Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Digital Technology

CSCEC Digital Technology Company Limited

China Construction Harbour and Channel
Engineering Bureau

China Construction Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd.

CCIEE China Construction Industrial & Energy Engineering Group Co., Ltd.
Articles of Association Articles of Association of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
ESG Environmental, social and corporate governance

Reporting Period

From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 |
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SECTION Il
COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

I. Corporate Information

Chinese name FERRENDERAT

Chinese abbreviation RERR

English name China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
English abbreviation CSCEC

Legal representative Zheng Xuexuan

Il. Contact Details

Secretary to the Board of Directors

Name Xue Keqing

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road, Chaoyang

Address District, Beijing
Telephone 010-86498888
Fax 010-86498170
Email ir@cscec.com

I1l. Overview of Basic Information

Registered address No. 15, Sanlihe Road, Haidian District, Beijing

Postal code of the registered address 100037

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road, Chaoyang

Office address District, Beijing

Postal code of the office address 100029
Website WWW.CSCEC.COmM
Email ir@cscec.com

IV. Information Disclosure and Place for Inspection of Annual Report

China Securities Journal http://www.cs.com.cn

Media names and website on which Shanghai Securities News http://www.cnstock.com
the Annual Report of the Company is
disclosed Securities Times http://www.stcn.com

Securities Daily http://www.zqrb.cn

Website of the stock exchange on which
the Annual Report of the Company is WWW.Ss€e.com.cn
disclosed

CSCEC Board Office

Place for inspection of this Annual Report  5sG Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road, Chaoyang
District, Beijing

V. Overview of Stocks

Overview of Stocks

Class of shares LS gxghange Stock short name Stock code SR el e
of listing before change
A share Shanghai Stock Exchange CSCEC 601668 N/A

10 | CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED



VI. Other Relevant Information

SECTION Il cOMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS [ R

Name

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)

Accounting firm engaged by the Office address

Units 01-12, Level 17, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza, No. 1
East Chang An Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC

Company (domestic)
Name of signatory
accountants

Zhou Ying, Shen Yan

Vil.Key Accounting Data and Financial Indicators for the Last Three Years

() Key accounting data

Unit: ’000 yuan

Currency: RMB

. Change YoY 2021
Key accounting data 2023 2022 (%) (After adjustment)
Revenue 2,265,529,244 2,055,052,070 10.2 1,892,706,307
Profit before income taxes 92,995,473 88,835,435 4.7 101,038,185
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 54,264,173 50,950,301 6.5 51,548,576
Net profit attrlibutablel to shareholders of the Company after deducting 48,538,669 45,233,864 73 49,521,361
non-recurring profit or loss
Net cash flows from operating activities 11,030,123 3,828,927 188.1 13,989,638
At the end of At the end of At the end of 2021
2023 2022 Change YoY (%) (agier adjustment)
Net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company 427,609,892 384,322,141 1.3 345,627,781
Total assets 2,903,322,519 2,652,903,306 9.4 2,395,321,862
Total share capital at the end of the Reporting Period 41,919,514 41,934,433 -0.04 41,948,168
(I) Key financial indicators
. I 2021
0,
Key financial indicators 2023 2022 Change YoY (%) (After adjustment)
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.31 1.23 6.5 1.25
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.31 1.23 6.5 1.25
Basic garnings per share (RMB/share) after deducting non-recurring 117 107 93 147
profit or loss
. Decrease by 0.58
0,
Weighted average return on net assets (%) 13.36 13.94 percentage point 15.90
Weight'ed average return on net assets after deducting non-recurring 11.94 19,42 Decrease by 0.48 15.34
profit or loss (%) percentage point
Net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders (RMB/share) 9.98 8.93 1.8 8.00
Dividend per 10 shares (RMB) 2.7145 2.527 7.4 2.50
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 |
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Explanation on the Company’s key accounting data and financial indicators for the three years preceding the end of the
Reporting Period

™ Applicable [ N/A

(@  When calculating earmings per share, the restricted shares that have not yet met the unlocking conditions and that
have become invalid are deducted from the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued by the Company.

@ According to relevant accounting standards, when calculating earnings per share, the dividends or interests on
other equity instruments such as preference shares and perpetual bonds and restricted shares are excluded from the
net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company.

(® The net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders are net assets attributable to shareholders of the
Company deducting other equity instruments, and then divided by the total number of issued shares as at the end of
the Reporting Period.

@ Dividends distributed are tax inclusive.

For details, please refer to Note Xlll. “Share-based payment”, Note V. 68 “Earnings per share” to the financial
statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”, and 2. “Return on net assets and earnings per share” under
Supplementary Information provided by the management, and other relevant information.

VIil. Differences in Accounting Data under Domestic and Foreign Accounting
Standards

(I) Differences in net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the
financial report disclosed in accordance with the IFRS Standards and Chinese accounting
standards

O Applicable ™ N/A

(Il) Differences in net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in
the financial report disclosed in accordance with the foreign and Chinese accounting
standards

O Applicable ™ N/A
() Explanation on differences between domestic and foreign accounting standards:

O Applicable ™ N/A

| CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED



SECTION Il cOMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS [ R

IX. Quarterly Key Financial Data in 2023

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
(Jan. - Mar.) (Apr. - Jun.) (Jul. - Sep.) (Oct. - Dec.)
Revenue 524,828,043 588,485,013 557,928,750 594,287,438
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 14,744,751 14,227,589 14,680,543 10,611,290
Net profit_ attributable to_ shareholders of the Company after 14,575,223 11,859,193 14,624,027 7.479.326
deducting non-recurring profit or loss
Net cash flows from operating activities -65,424,138 54,864,085 -5,791,410 27,381,586

Explanation on differences between the quarterly data and data contained in regular reports disclosed
Applicable ™ N/A
X. Statement of Non-Recurring Profit or Loss
¥ Applicable N/A
Unit: 000 yuan Currency: RMB
Note 2021 (After

Non-recurring profit or loss items 2023 (If applicable) 2022 adjustment)

Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets, including
the write-off portion of the provision for asset impairment 226,075 / 432,388 332,740
previously recognized

Government grants recognized into the current profit or loss,
excluding those closely related to the Company’s ordinary

operating activities, in compliance with national policies Non-operating

and regulations, received in accordance with established L Incomg/other 1,049,139 504,011
o ' X . , income
criteria, and having a continuous impact on the Company’s
profit or loss
Income from step-realized business combination 20,247 InVﬁit:rgﬁ;w; 1,251,160 172,276

Profit or loss from changes in fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities held by non-financial corporations
and profit or loss from the disposal of financial assets and 85,597 / -84,935 -170,587
financial liabilities, except for effective hedging operations
related to the Company’s ordinary operating activities

Interest income from loans to non-financial corporations

X : ) 204,761 / 469,261 111,009

recognized in the current period
Reversal of impairment provision for receivables individually

tested for impairment 5,349,746 / 3,326,302 1,414,761
Investment income from disposal of long-term equity

investments 23,148 / 141,065 7,743
Investment income from disposal of subsidiaries 33,426 / -32,150 4,407
Profit or loss from non-operating activities or incidental

matters 761,906 / 1,173,635 318,529
Other non-operating income and expenses, excluding the B

above items 286,227 / 746,481 161,932
Impact of income tax -1,441,995 / -1,253,512 -563,870
Impact of minority interests (after tax) 117,719 / -1,5602,397 -265,736
Total 5,725,504 / 5,716,437 2,027,215

If the Company classified any items not listed in the Explanatory Announcement No. 1 on Information Disclosure
for Companies Offering Their Securities to the Public — Non-recurring Profit or Loss Items as non-recurring profit or
loss items and the amount is significant, and defines non-recurring profit or loss items listed in the said explanatory
announcement as recurring profit or loss items, explanations should be provided.

Applicable ¥ N/A

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 13
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XI. Items Measured at Fair Value
¥ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: 000 yuan Currency: RMB

Items Opening balance Closing balance Current changes curlf'g:tczl?:ﬁts
Exchangeable bonds 4,967,342 / -4,967,342 -4,621
Financial assets held for trading 20,153 14,854 -5,299 -2,576
Investments in other equity instruments 4,610,471 6,107,503 1,497,032 68,539
Other non-current financial assets 1,565,153 1,625,114 -40,039 86,371
Account receivables financing 4,658,182 4,353,284 -304,898 /
Other debt investments 272,924 136,574 -136,350 12,980
Other current assets 1,730,559 829,951 -900,608 17,025
Total 17,824,784 12,967,280 -4,857,504 177,718

XIl. Miscellaneous

O Applicable ™ N/A
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SECTION Il

secTIoN Il MANAGEMENT DIscuUssION AND ANALYsis [

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I. The Company’s Principal Business and Business Model during the

Reporting Period

As one of the most integrated and largest
investment and development conglomerates
boasting the longest history of specialized
development, market-oriented operation in China
with the most extensive business operations
worldwide, CSCEC is a market leader in
housing construction engineering, infrastructure
construction and investment, real estate
development and investment, survey and design,
etc. CSCEC ranked 13th in the 2023 Fortune
Global 500 and 4th on the Fortune China 500 list,
and continued to rank 1st in the Top 250 Global
Contractors list published by Engineering News-
Record (ENR). In 2023, CSCEC received a Grade A
rating for the 18th time in the annual performance
evaluation by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission (SASAC) of the
State Council. The three leading global rating
agencies, i.e., S&P Global Ratings, Moody’s
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings, assigned
CSCEC ratings of A/A2/A, respectively, each with
a “Stable” outlook, the highest credit rating among
the global industry peers.

CSCEC stands as one of the most competitive
investors in China, specializing in real estate
development, financing and investment
in construction projects, integrated urban
construction, and related areas. Featuring a “four
in one” business model integrating planning and
design, investment and development, infrastructure
construction and housing construction engineering,
it provides turnkey solutions covering all aspects,
processes, and elements of urban development
projects, with the priority given to the synergization
of internal resource integration and business
development.

Having operated in more than 100 countries
and regions, CSCEC, as the largest engineering
contractor in the world, specializes in a broad
range of businesses covering all aspects of urban
development and all the phases of construction
projects. The Company is well equipped with the
capabilities of comprehensive design, construction
and land development, and has a complete industry
chain of construction products ranging from
product and technology R&D, survey and design,
real estate development, construction contracting,
equipment manufacturing and asset operation
to property management. It is the developer of
most super-high-rise buildings (300 meters and
above) as well as many technically and structurally
sophisticated buildings in China.

13th

in Fortune Global 500

4th

in Fortune China 500

1st

in ENR Top 250 Global Contractors

18-time receiver of Grade I \ rating for annual SOE
performance evaluation by the SASAC of the State Council

J

Three leading global rating agencies rated CSCEC as

A A2 A

by S&P Global Ratings by Moody’s by Fitch Ratings
Investors Service /
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Having acquired an absolute advantage in this field, CSCEC adhered to the marketing strategy
of “premium market, customers, and projects” and the business strategy of “high-quality and
cost-effective solutions”. By continuously tapping its potential and pursuing high-quality projects,
the Company is committed to providing global customers with one-stop integrated services for
high, large, precise, advanced, complicated and special construction projects. The Company
has built a large number of landmark buildings in niche segments such as super high-rises, large
venues, industrial plants, office buildings, hotels, hospitals, and schools, leading China and even
the world in housing construction.
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Placing equal emphasis on infrastructure construction and project investment, CSCEC has
achieved rapid development in infrastructure construction in China and the world covering urban
rail transit, high-speed rail, extra-large bridges, expressways, municipal roads, urban utility tunnels,
ports and waterways, electric power, mining, metallurgy, petrochemicals, airports, and nuclear
power plants, and has completed many classic projects leveraging its strengths in technology,
management and talents. Furthermore, building on its strong capital resources, CSCEC has
become a first-class infrastructure investor and developer in China. It has successively invested
in and constructed a large number of national and local key projects in China. Currently, the
Company has established a long-term strategic partnership for infrastructure investment and
construction with several provinces (autonomous regions) and municipalities and dozens of key
cities in China. The Company’s infrastructure construction operations span dozens of countries
and regions in North America, Central America, Hong Kong and Macao SARs, Southeast Asia,
North Africa, Central and West Africa, South Africa, the Middle East, and Central Asia.
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CSCEC owns two real estate brands, China Overseas and CSC Land. China Overseas
encompasses all real estate business of our subsidiary COHL and has always ranked among the
most valuable property brands in China. With strong real estate business in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA), the Yangtze River Delta, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region
and other national strategic development areas, China Overseas maintains a well-established and
balanced nationwide strategic business network. China Overseas endeavors to establish itself
as an outstanding international real estate development and operation group, and is committed
to accelerating the formation of a business structure that focuses on housing development,
supplemented by high-quality commercial property development and operation, healthcare
and other emerging businesses. CSC Land is the brand used by the real estate business of
the Company’s bureaus, divisions and design institutes, focusing on real estate development,
urban renewal, asset operation and integrated services in first-and second-tier cities. CSCEC is
committed to achieving vertical integration of a wide variety of operations ranging from investment,
development, design and construction to operation and services. By enhancing internal resources
integration and coordinated business development and leveraging extraordinary construction
technology, advanced real estate development philosophy and first-class property service quality,
it has established a sophisticated investment operation and risk management system in the real
estate business area, and formed a unique competitive advantage in the industry chain.

It
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CSCEC is the largest architectural design comprehensive conglomerate in China. Its survey
and design business arm mainly consists of seven top-rated major survey and design service
providers, specializing in architectural design, urban planning, engineering survey, public utility
design, and many other fields. The Company has established itself as a market leader in China
in such fields as airports, hotels, sports facilities, exhibition venues, ancient architecture and
super-high-rise buildings, and has made outstanding contributions to the sector in terms of design
originality, technology innovation, and industry standards development.

pue AaAaing

CSCEC is a pioneer in the domestic market that conducted international engineering contracting
business. Taking use of its edge in the entire industry chain, the Company engages in foreign
engineering contracting business, which covers housing construction, manufacturing, energy,
transportation, water conservancy, industry, petrochemical, hazardous substance treatment,
telecommunications and sewage/waste treatment projects, and successfully explored and
completed overseas real estate projects. In addition, the Company actively explored other project
operating models, such as financing/investment-driven general contracting, DB (Design-Build),
EPC (Engineering-Procurement-Construct), and BOT. CSCEC also experimented with capital
operations such as cross-border mergers and acquisitions to enhance the quality and efficiency
of overseas business. Upholding the “internationalization” business philosophy, the Company has
seized the development opportunities of the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI), and supported BRI
countries in improving the standard of infrastructure facilities, enhancing the well-being of local
people, and promoting its brand influence.

B
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Il. Analysis of Core Competitiveness during the Reporting Period
™ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no significant changes in the core competitiveness of the Company,
specifically:

() Market-oriented operating mechanism

As a market economy entity, CSCEC has always upheld market-oriented operation mechanisms, respecting, abiding
by, adapting to and leveraging market dynamics to progressively improve its ability to navigate within market rules.
Amidst fierce market competition, the Company innovatively explores and consistently fulfills the existing and potential
needs of customers, and continuously delivers high-quality products and value-added services to retain and attract
customers. Adhering to a performance-oriented approach, the Company strives for excellence by clearly defining
objectives, designing scientific processes and strengthening efficient operations. It has always been pursuing scaled
growth supported by profitability. While emphasizing efficient resource utilization and operations, effectively advocating
economies of scale, it maintains a relatively high asset turnover ratio to ensure returns on assets surpassing the
industry average, and achieves larger market share through steady growth.

(I) Direction of globalization

Adhering to the international business philosophy, the Company has been actively involved in the high-quality BRI joint
development, and effectively implemented the overseas high-quality development strategy with the connotation of “one
direction, six goals and five pathways”. The Company deeply implements the new development philosophy, utilizes
domestic and international markets and resources, and endeavors to establish itself as a multinational company that
allocates resources globally and operates efficiently. The Company keeps creating new patterns for overseas business
development, formulating overseas market systems with reasonable structure, consolidating advantageous markets,
and focusing on high-priority markets while continuously tapping into potential markets and cautiously expanding
new markets. The Company perseveres in localizing business operations, actively fulfills development needs and is
deeply involved in urban construction and infrastructure construction in the countries where it operates. Furthermore,
the Company competes with world-class enterprises, learns their advanced management experience and operating
concept, and improves the Company’s overall operation and management capabilities.

() Related diversified and vertically integrated expansion

Producing or offering products and services that continue to secure, serve and satisfy customers is an important
guarantee for the long-term development of the Company. In terms of selecting products (or services), CSCEC has
established its own framework of business diversification as it actively branched out into infrastructure investment and
construction and other fields while maintaining its advantages in traditional businesses such as survey and design,
housing construction and real estate development, leveraging its existing technology and market advantages.

CSCEC is committed to the vertically integrated expansion of investment, design, construction, operation and services,
and strives to establish a unique market position in the domain of its business, creating competitive advantages that are
difficult for its competitors to follow suit.
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(IV) Competition strategy featuring high quality, low cost and differentiation

Providing the public with high-quality and low-cost products and services has always been the goal of CSCEC. High
quality comes from the Company’s technological, human resources and organizational advantages; while low costs
stem from the Company’s integrated business model, benefits of scale, as well as the economy of speed. As an
outperforming SOE in a perfectly competitive industry, the Company has always taken “making appropriate and correct
decisions and doing right things” as the basic direction for production, operation and business development. Focusing
on implementing the marketing strategy of “premium markets, customers, and projects”, the Company continues
to carry out “differentiation-oriented” market operations and competition. Through implementing the “differentiation”
strategy, subsidiaries within the Company focus on their respective market segments, their corresponding speciality
(specialization), or their corresponding regions (regionalization), to develop their own “core products, unique services” to
reduce internal disorderly competition and strengthen the overall advantage in external competition.

(V) A Management model with balanced authorization and concentration

The Company respects its development history and has developed a competitive group management and control
model on the basis of the setup of a conglomerate comprising multiple corporate entities. Positioned as the strategic
management and control center, the Company’s headquarters fulfill the responsibilities and duties of “leadership,
service and supervision” ensuring the delegation and management of second-level subsidiaries. The second-level
subsidiaries operate under the authorization of the Company and have the corresponding authorities in proportion
to their respective responsibilities. For labor-intensive and fully established businesses, the Company grants more
authorization and expands market reach to speed up market response and improve service quality. For capital-intensive
and less developed businesses, the Company seeks to achieve quick breakthroughs in target markets by concentrating
resources on specific niche markets, while ensuring effective risk prevention and mitigation. In different market
segments, the Company adopts different market competition strategies and corresponding management and control
models.

(VI) Results-oriented and accountability-based management system

The Company’s management operations are consistently calibrated to achieve its mission, vision and goals. The
Company upholds the fundamental objective of management: to enhance work efficiency, foster a sense of fulfilment
among employees, and ensure the Company’s future prosperity. The Company has established a highly dynamic,
sound, reasonable, concise and efficient system by integrating the management of various functional areas within the
Company to avoid willful actions without authorization and buck-passing, and effectively harmonize responsibilities
and rights. The Company firmly believes that managers are defined by their responsibilities. To improve the quality of
products and services, the Company is committed to standardized management, technology and business practices.
Leveraging information technologies and integrating standardization with informatization, the Company has improved
its work efficiency and implemented the “bottom line management” approach to enhance product quality and reduce
operating costs.

(V) “People-oriented” human resource management

The Company adheres to the talent development strategy of “specialization, professionalization and internationalization”
and has a large group of talents loyal to the Company and dedicated to their careers. They share a deep conviction
that group interests should take precedence over individual interests, and have a good knowledge of technology,
management and marketing with merits such as self-discipline, self-motivation and self-betterment. The Company
always follows the basic human resources management principle of “retaining talents with career development
opportunities, emotional connection and rewards” and “caring for individuals”. By offering career planning, education
training and performance assessment for all employees, the Company seeks to establish a compensation incentive
mechanism that combines individual value creation with personal capabilities to share the Company’s development
results with its employees and implement diverse medium and long-term incentive mechanisms, while strengthening its
attractiveness to talents and allowing talents to give full play to their abilities, so as to provide stronger talent support
for its development.
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(Vill) Development supported by the strategy of “integration of industry and finance”

Focusing on characteristics of the construction and real estate industry and aligned with the needs of both upstream
and downstream segments along the industrial chain, the Company perseveres in compliant and standardized business
operations, and channels financial resources toward strategic efforts and high-priority operations aimed at supporting
high-quality development of the Company and solidifying the industrial chain, ultimately providing high-quality financial
services for the Company’s core business. Leveraging on internal professional financial platforms such as CSC Finance
and China Construction Capital, the Company has carried out domestic and overseas capital pooling, loan pooling,
structured financing, accounts receivable factoring, asset securitization, supply chain financing, finance leasing,
insurance pooling and other business to provide financial services that cater to practical needs and effectively shore
up “weak spots” in social financing at the same time, to the benefit of the Company’s core business and upstream and
downstream segments of the industrial chain. This approach has played a positive role in coordinating the development
of the Company’s main operations, expanding financing channels, lowering financing costs, liquidizing existing assets,
and ensuring stability and consolidation within the industrial chain. In addition, the Company rigorously implements
relevant national policies, tightens up routine management operations, strictly controls financial risks, and prevents
funds from being diverted into the virtual economy from the real economy and from circulating internally for the sake of
arbitrage.

(IX) Core competitiveness driven by innovation in science and technology

The Company’s continuous technological innovation has transformed its production and organization models. Relying
on the structural business planning throughout the industry chain, the Company has developed a green and low-carbon
technology system covering construction research and development, digital manufacturing, intelligent construction,
and intelligent operation. The Company has acquired expertise in various construction technologies, including high-rise
buildings, large-span spaces, single-building translation, large roof sliding, and complex steel structure production and
construction. The Company strives to establish itself as a powerhouse of original technologies for green construction
and intelligent construction. The Company has undertaken four national key R&D projects under the 14th Five-Year
Plan, including Research and Application of Key Technologies in Modular Integrated Building Construction, and 17
national key R&D projects.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had three national-level scientific and technological innovation
platforms, namely the National Center of Technology Innovation for Digital Construction, the National Key Laboratory of
Green Building, and the National Engineering Research Center for Soil Nutrient Management and Pollution Remediation.
It also housed five national enterprise technology centers (including sub-centers), eight academician workstations,
75 ministerial and provincial-level enterprise technology centers, 72 ministerial and provincial-level scientific and
technological innovation platforms, 19 post-doctoral workstations and 202 high and new technology enterprises. In
addition, the Company had two academicians from the Chinese Academy of Engineering, one winner of the highest
science and technology award for engineering construction and 14 masters in national engineering survey and design.
The Company obtained 82 national science and technology awards, and 133 Zhan Tianyou awards for civil engineering,
playing a leading role in developing 100 national and industry standards. Additionally, it held 68,519 patents (including
6,177 invention patents), ranking first in the industry in both patent quantity and level of achievement.

(X) Corporate culture in mind and action

CSCEC is an enterprise with a glorious history. We are innovating in the course of inheritance. In the process of fulfilling
the mission and realizing the vision, the core values of “quality assurance, value creation” and the CSCEC spirit of
“loyalty, responsibility, and mission attainment” are incorporated into the rules and management practices and become
the soft power to support the development of the Company.

Resources can be exhausted, only culture lasts. Adhering to its creed which is formed against the backdrop of the
market economy, in alignment with the trend of the times, the Company has seen a constant integration with its
subsidiaries in culture development, which provides continuing internal support for the Company’s ever-growing
business.
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Ill. Market Conditions during the Reporting Period

In 2023, China weathered external pressures and internal challenges, bringing about a recovery of the national
economy with solid progress achieved in advancing high-quality development. According to the preliminary statistics of
the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s GDP in 2023 came in at RMB126,058.2 billion, an increase of 5.2% over the
previous year. In particular, the value added by the construction industry was RMB8,569.1 billion, up 7.1% year-on-
year, accounting for 6.8% of GDP, while the value added by the real estate industry was RMB7,372.3 billion, down 1.3%
year-on-year, accounting for 5.9% of GDP. As important national economy pillars, the construction and real estate
industries are closely related to macroeconomic development and the improvement of people’s livelihood. The value
added by these two pillar industries accounted for about 13% of the total, which is of great significance to stabilizing
the macroeconomy.

/ 0

Continuing to advance novel urbanization construction, as the housing construction market has substantial
potential for development.

First, novel urbanization construction accelerated. China pushed forward the implementation of the people-centered
novel urbanization strategy, continuously optimized urbanization spatial planning and formality, and actively promoted the
integrated urban development of city clusters such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta, the GBA and Chengdu-
Chongaing area. The state fostered and developed modern metropolitan areas, enhanced the functions of megacities
in terms of improving global resource allocation, driving technological innovation and stimulating the development of
high-end industries, and improved the livability and business-friendliness of large and medium-sized cities. Second, the
urbanization rate continued to increase. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, at the end of 2023, the share of
urban population in the total population (urbanization rate) was 66.16%, 0.94 percentage point higher than that at the end
of 2022, but far below the average level of developed countries. The increasing urbanization rate generates an enormous
incremental demand for investment and construction in public service facilities and housing. Third, the construction of
the “Three Major Projects”, including affordable housing, accelerated. Since 2023, the CPC Politburo meetings and the
executive meetings of the State Council have repeatedly emphasized actively and steadily promoting the renovation
of shantytowns and the construction of “public infrastructure for both normal and emergency use” in megacities, with
affordable housing projects planned and implemented to inject new vitality into the existing housing market and promote
the development of housing construction upstream and downstream industries. According to data from the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development, China implemented 66,000 urban renewal projects nationwide in 2023, with an
$ investment of RMB2.6 trillion.

The “growth stabilization” policy continued to bear fruit, with stable infrastructure investment growth.

First, with the financial leverage provided by government investments, investment in energy, water conservancy,
and other infrastructure facilities increased rapidly. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s national
infrastructure investment (excluding the production and supply industries of electricity, heat, gas and water) increased
by 5.9% in 2023, with the growth accelerated by 0.1 percentage point. Second, the government implemented in-depth
coordinated regional development, further improved the coordinated regional development system and mechanism,
and launched a number of new initiatives and multiple high-profile projects to pursue major regional strategies.
Third, the government accelerated the green transformation, tightened up ecological environment protection and
management, further promoted the building of a beautiful China, sped up the implementation of major projects of
important ecosystem protection and restoration, and introduced policies to support the development of green and
low-carbon industries. Fourth, the government optimized fiscal policy to improve efficiency and make the proactive
fiscal policy more effective with highly visible effects. In the fourth quarter of 2023, the government issued another
RMB1 trillion worth of treasury bonds to support post-disaster recovery and reconstruction and disaster prevention,
mitigation and relief efforts. According to the 2023 Report on the Implementation of China’s Fiscal Policy issued by the
Ministry of Finance, China issued a total of RMB3.7 trillion worth of new special bonds for project construction across
China. The proceeds raised funded more than 35,000 projects, facilitating the construction of a number of major
projects such as transportation, water conservancy and energy. Additionally, some 2024 new local government debt
S quotas were issued ahead of schedule to support the construction of major projects.
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Adapting to the evolving market supply and demand situation, and exploring new real estate development models.

First, construction companies adhered to the principle of “housing for living in and not for speculative investment”, and
remained committed to risk prevention and resolution based on city-specific planning, thereby “safeguarding people’s
livelihood and social stability by ensuring the timely delivery of presold housing properties”. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, national real estate development investment in 2023 was RMB11,091.3 billion, down 9.6% year-on-year, with the
decline 0.4 percentage point lower than that of the previous year. Nationwide commercial housing sales area was 1,117.35
million square meters, down 8.5% year-on-year, while the commercial housing sales amounted to RMB11,662.2 billion,
down 6.5% year-on-year, with the decline narrowed by 15.8 and 20.2 percentage points respectively over the previous year.
Second, there have been new changes in regulatory policies. The CPC Politburo meeting held in July 2023 pointed out the
need to adapt to the significant changes in the supply and demand dynamics of China’s real estate market. It emphasized the
timely adjustment and optimization of real estate policies, tailored to local conditions, to effectively utilize the policy toolbox.
This is aimed at better meeting the needs of first-time homebuyers and trade-up homebuyers and promoting the stable
and healthy development of the real estate market. Third, efforts have been made to facilitate a smooth transition of the
real estate industry towards a new development model. In December 2023, the Central Economic Work Conference further
emphasized the “Three Major Projects” related to affordable housing construction, the construction of “public infrastructure
for both normal and emergency use” in megacities, and shantytown renovation, accelerating the creation of a new real estate
L development model.

Taking digitalization and green and low carbon as the guide, the survey and design industry is undergoing a
transformation at an accelerating pace.

First, the “carbon peak and carbon neutrality” targets, urban renewal, rural vitalization and other positive factors have injected
strong impetus into the survey and design industry development, and new market opportunities have arisen in the survey and
design sub-markets such as urban planning, airport transportation, municipal infrastructure and cultural venues. Second, the
wide use of BIM (Building Information Model) digital technology, the new building industrialization and intelligent construction
technology represented by prefabricated buildings, and the continuous promotion of general contracting mode have further
o empowered the industry transformation and innovation.

In 2023, the global economy exhibited signs of a slow recovery, while geopolitical conflicts continued to escalate,
resulting in substantial uncertainties over the global economic and political landscapes. Against such a backdrop, the
international engineering industry is undergoing accelerated evolution and integration.

A more competitive international engineering market with opportunities and challenges coexisting in overseas
businesses.

First, the joint development of BRI has achieved fruitful results. The year 2023 marked the 10th BRI anniversary. In the
past decade, the BRI continuously consolidated and broadened its scope encompassing a growing number of cooperation
projects, and steadily promoted cross-regional interconnection. A large number of key cooperation projects have taken root
to provide development opportunities for infrastructure construction worldwide. Second, with the rollout of the “Built by
China” initiative, Chinese enterprises are going global at an accelerating pace. Seeking to maintain high standards, improve
people’s livelihood and boost sustainability, this initiative involves constructing highways, high-speed rail, ports, bridges,
power stations, stadiums and other infrastructure facilities all over the world. According to the Ministry of Commerce,
China’s foreign contracted engineering business in 2023 had a turnover of RMB1,133.88 billion, an increase of 8.8% over
the previous year. Third, a new round of scientific and technological revolution and industrial transformation has deepened,
which has spawned numerous new industries, business formats and models. Green and low-carbon and digital and intelligent
construction solutions have also attracted widespread attention from various countries, imposing higher requirements for
& international investment and construction enterprises.
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IV. Discussion and Analysis of Business Operation

In 2023, the Company thoroughly implemented the strategic decisions and arrangements made by the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council, committed itself to the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”
following the strategic path of “one improvement, six reinforcements and six commitments”, took responsibility and
overcame difficulties, and fully achieved the annual objectives and tasks with concentrated efforts, making new progress
and achievements in high-quality development, and maintaining a steady development trend in corporate management.
In general, the Company demonstrated the following operational characteristics:

&w °

J 1. Steadily increasing the value-creation capacity. During the Reporting Period, the Company
continued to achieve rapid growth in newly signed contract value and revenue, and maintained a
good growth trend in profit. During the Reporting Period, the Company registered a total newly
signed contract value of RMB4.32 trillion, up 10.8% year-on-year. Its total revenue amounted to
RMB2.27 trillion, a year-on-year increase of 10.2%, while total net profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders reached RMB54.26 billion, a year-on-year increase of 6.5%. The Company posted basic
earnings per share of RMB1.31, a year-on-year increase of 6.5%, a net asset per share attributable
to ordinary shareholders of RMB9.98, an increase of 11.8% over the end of the previous year. The
Company’s operating cash ratio increased by 0.3 percentage point year-on-year, and the debt-to-asset
ratio remained stable at 74.8% as at the end of the Reporting Period, with the leverage ratio remaining
stable. The Company ranked 13th in the 2023 Fortune Global 500, making it indisputably the largest
investment and construction group in the world. The Company was re-selected as a constituent of
major indexes such as CSI 50, SSE 50, FTSE China A50 and MSCI China A50 Connect, and retained
é the highest credit rating in the industry around the world.

J

2. Firmly and powerfully serving macro-national interests. During the Reporting Period, the
Company kept in mind “The Top Priorities of the Country”, staying true to its original aspirations,
optimally utilized its advantageous position as a dominant player throughout the industrial chain
to actively support and integrate itself into the major national strategies, and connected with the
development plans of strategic regions such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Economic Belt,
the GBA and Yellow River Basin, to actively support the development of modern industries. In these
regions, the newly signed contract value secured by the Company and investments completed by
the Company accounted for 86.2% and 92.3% of the total, respectively. The Company contributed
to the BRI joint development with high-quality efforts, thoroughly implemented overseas high-quality
development strategies, promoted urbanization and infrastructure connection at a high level in the
regions it operated, and spearheaded high-level economic opening up across China. The Company
actively diversified into the urban renewal and new urban operation markets, deeply engaged in the
construction of the “Three Major Projects”, and undertook a number of major livelihood projects in
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and other places. In particular, the Company successively invested in
three representative urban renewal projects in Guangzhou, with a total investment of more than RMB65

1) billion, and continuously strengthened its leading position in the field of novel urbanization construction.

J
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3. Continuing to deepen enterprise reform management. During the Reporting Period, the Company comprehensively
deployed and promoted the deepening and upgrading of SOE reforms, and developed 85 key reform tasks and 278 specific
measures in 10 aspects. The Company continuously optimized its corporate governance system, improved the decision-making
checklist and operation rules of each governing body, further expanded the scope of subsidiaries that carry out the Board's
functions and powers, and optimized the governance structure of overseas institutions. The Company carried out mid-term
evaluation and adjustment according to the 14th Five-Year Plan and focused on the promotion of strategic emerging industries.
The Company established the ESG governance mechanism, incorporated ESG into the strategic path of “one improvement,
six reinforcements and six commitments”, and promoted the integration of ESG and management. The Company accelerated
the treasurer system establishment, launched all the system functions, and further improved the standards of visual control
and intensive management and control of funds. The Company further deepened and expanded the special action of “pursuing
conservation and running enterprises economically”, expanded the scope of management and diversified control objectives,
$ further reducing operating costs and improving the standards of relevant management practices.

J
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4. Continuously improving technological innovation capability. During the Reporting Period, the Company made
breakthroughs in the development of national innovation platforms, and was officially designated to jointly build China’s sole national
key laboratory in the field of green building and the National Engineering Research Center for Soil Nutrient Management and
Pollution Remediation. Paying due attention to academicians’ leading role in scientific and technological development, the Company
added two new academician workstations to tackle key core technologies in the fields of infrastructure, intelligent construction and
building industrialization. The Company actively undertook major national scientific research tasks, independently developed “BDS/
GNSS high-precision construction survey key technology”, and successfully solved the bottleneck problem in long-distance linear
infrastructure survey and high-precision measurement in the construction industry. Our AECMate BIM software built a complete
technical product system covering the basic graphics platform, collaboration platform and professional application software, which
was included in the product manual of technological innovation achievements of central enterprises. The Company used indoor
pressurization technology and prefabricated and modular construction technology to create a “polar scientific research pressurized
building” and a prefabricated apron to assist with Antarctic scientific research missions. In addition, the Company accelerated the
application of 5G, artificial intelligence and other next-generation information technologies, and continuously broadened applications
3 of intelligent construction equipment, intelligent manufacturing digital production lines and construction industrial robots.

J
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5. Practicing social responsibilities. During the Reporting Period, the Company was actively involved in flood fighting and
rescue in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, Northeast China and other areas, as well as in earthquake relief and post-disaster
recovery and reconstruction in Gansu and Qinghai. The Company conducted targeted poverty alleviation and point-to-point
support for Kangle County, Zhuoni County, Kangxian County in Gansu Province, and Changting County in Fujian Province, etc.,
and created the highly innovative “CSCEC Model” for targeted poverty alleviation integrating industry, employment, education,
consumption and party building to promote rural vitalization. Leveraging its professional advantages, the Company carried out
urban renewal, renovation of old residential communities, and investment in and construction of affordable housing according to
local conditions, meticulously created high-quality building products, and continued to expand a happy living environment. The
Company created a sound market environment through collaboration with 600,000 upstream and downstream enterprises along
o the industrial chain, and shared opportunities for sustainable development.

J

In 2024, the Company will fully implement the new development concept, further highlight the primary task of high-
quality development, continue to complete the seven major tasks of “advancing rectification, ensuring growth,
promoting innovation, deepening reform, strengthening foundation, preventing risks and reinforcing party building”,
seek progress while maintaining stability, promote stability through progress, strive to complete all the target tasks, and

continue to forge ahead towards building a world-class enterprise with global competitiveness.
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e Key Business Data
Items Unit 2023 2022 Growth YoY (%)

Total value of newly signed contracts RMB100 million 43,241 39,031 10.8

I. Construction business
[0} @](;C%r:;(l)ariii\éz \I/il:iié)f newly signed contracts during  RMB100 million 38,727 35,015 106
By industry 1. Housing construction 26,894 24,728 8.8
2. Infrastructure 11,685 10,151 15.1
3. Survey and design 148 136 8.8
By region 1. Domestic 36,973 33,495 10.4
2. Overseas 1,755 1,520 15.4
(I Quantity of housing construction works Ten thousand / / /
1. Accumulative construction area square meters 172,200 168,265 2.3
2. Accumulative area of new construction projects 37,725 37,155 1.5
3. Accumulative area of completed construction 26,015 25,441 2.3
(1) Quantity of infrastructure works / / / /
1. Road (newly signed in China) Kilometers 4,297 4,623 -7
2. Area (newly signed in China) lgﬂ;rgoiﬁ‘f;’;‘rjs 4,978 4,765 45

Il. Real estate business

() Contract sales during the Reporting Period RMB100 million 4,514 4,016 12.4
Of which: China Overseas(® 2,670 2,544 4.9
(I} Contract sales area during the Reporting Period Ten thousand 1,858 1,722 7.9
Of which: China Overseas square meters 982 1,015 3.2
(1) Subscription sales at the end of the Reporting Period RMB100 million 26 47 -43.4
(IV) Average selling price during the Reporting Period Sgﬂgﬁe meter 24,292 23,326 4.1
V) (Lfilrlwc;r;esjg\t/)e at the end of the Reporting Period@ l’gg;rlo%s;g(rjs 8,523 9,303 8.4
Of which: China Overseas 3,522 4,389 -19.8
(VI) Purchase of land reserve (full amount) Ten thousand 1,310 1,489 -12.0
Of which: China Overseas square meters 764 739 3.4

Notes: (D China Overseas refers to the real estate business that China Overseas Land & Investment and its subsidiaries are engaged
in, but does not include that of China Overseas Grand Oceans;

(@ Land reserve at the end of the Reporting Period = land reserve at the end of the previous year + newly acquired land
reserve — area completed in the current Reporting Period + (or -) adjusted area of projects.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 25



I s-CTioN il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e Key Earnings Results

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

44 Value of the newly signed contracts for 44 Contract sales of the real estate business
the construction business

38,727 4,514
35,015 3.826 4,287 4,221 4,016
31,074
27,721
24,863
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
441 Revenue 4 Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company
542.6
20.551 22,655 5155 509.5
18,927 ’ 449.9
16,151 '
’ 418.8
14,198
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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&> Proportion of the newly signed contract value € Proportion of revenue by segment .
62.2% 61.2%
27.0%
24.6%
10.5% 13.7%
0.3% 0.5%
Housing : Housing !
[ | consruction B Infrastructure | Realestate [l Design [ | construction B Infrastructure | Realestate [l Design
€ Proportion of gross profit by segment e &> Gross profit margin by segment ye
47.0%

21.3%
L ee 18.2%
9.8%
. 26.3% 1.3% ||

1.1% l

Housing
construction

Infrastructure Real estate Design

Housing Infrastructure Real estate Design
u construction u u u &

Note:The denominator of the proportion of each business by segment is the direct summation of data from the four business
segments of the Company (housing construction, infrastructure, real estate and design).
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V. Main Operation Results for the Reporting Period
() Analysis of principal business
1. Analysis of changes in related items in the income statement and cash flow statement

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of Amount of
ltems the current the same period Change (%)
Reporting Period last year
Revenue 2,265,529,244 2,055,052,070 10.2
Cost of sales 2,042,723,831 1,840,182,381 11.0
Selling and distribution expenses 7,628,182 6,543,630 16.6
General and administrative expenses 34,402,175 33,996,779 1.2
Finance expenses 18,577,073 19,673,762 -5.6
Research and development expenses 46,073,572 49,753,236 -7.4
Net cash flows from operating activities 11,030,123 3,828,927 188.1
Net cash flows from investing activities -26,501,519 -11,477,252 /
Net cash flows from financing activities 30,450,196 16,520,628 84.3

Reason for changes in revenue: The Company continued to step up its market development efforts and accelerated
the progress of project performance, resulting in a steady growth in the scale of performance.

Reason for changes in cost of sales: The business scale continued to expand, leading to the increase in the cost of
sales accordingly.

Reason for changes in selling and distribution expenses: The Company’s real estate business increased marketing
efforts during the pre-sale period, and the corresponding business fees and sales commissions increased accordingly.

Reason for changes in general and administrative expenses: Office expenditure, travel expenses, depreciation
and amortization expenses increased accordingly due to the expansion of the Company’s business scale and the
corresponding increase in management personnel and business activities.

Reason for changes in finance expenses: It was primarily due to the decrease in foreign exchange losses in the
current year as compared with that of last year.

Reason for changes in research and development expenses: It was primarily due to the fact that the Company
has continuously improved the system and the structure of investment in research and development, enhancing the
efficiency of investment in research and development.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from operating activities: It was primarily due to enhanced cash flow
management by the Company and the increase in the payments received for construction and property purchases,
among others, in the current Reporting Period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from investing activities: It was primarily due to the increase in cash
payments for investment activities such as purchase and construction of fixed assets and intangible assets in the
current Reporting Period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from financing activities: It was primarily due to the increase in cash
received by the Company from obtaining loans and issuing bonds.

Detailed explanation on major changes in the Company’s types of business, profit composition or source of profit
during the current Reporting Period

Applicable ™ N/A
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2. Analysis of revenue and cost
™ Applicable N/A

In 2023, the Company delivered revenue of RMB2,265.5 billion, a year-on-year increase of 10.2%; with cost of sales
at RMB2,042.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of 11.0%. The Company recorded a gross profit of RMB222.8 billion,
a year-on-year increase of 3.7%; a gross profit margin of 9.8%, a year-on-year decrease of 0.6 percentage point as

compared to that of the same period of last year.

For details related to revenue recognition methods, please refer to Note lll. 24 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT".

(1) Principal business by industry, product and region

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Principal business by industry
Gross profit Change YoY of  Change YoY of Change YoY of gross

R BT Cost of sales margin (%) revenue (%) cost of sales (%)  profit margin (%)

) ) L Decrease by 0.7
Housing construction engineering 1,383,744,032 1,283,273,271 7.3 9.4 10.2 percentage point
. . Decrease by 0.6

Infrastructure construction and investment 556,561,456 501,864,580 9.8 12.8 13.6 percentage point
. Decrease by 0.8

Real estate development and investment 308,807,680 252,580,419 18.2 9.5 10.5 percentage point
Survey and design 1,747,277 9,250,674 213 9.1 85 Increase by 0.4
percentage point

Others 44,052,885 33,964,319 22,9 138 114 Increase by 1.7
percentage points

Inter-segment elimination -39,384,086 -38,209,432 / / / /
Total 2265520244 2,042,723,831 08 102 119  Decreaseby06

percentage point

Principal business by region
Gross profit Change YoY of  Change YoY of Change YoY of gross

By region Revenue Cost of sales margin (%) revenue (%) cost of sales (%)  profit margin (%)

China’s Mainland 2149760730 1,932,989,717 10.1 104 1.2 Decrease by 0.7
percentage point

Increase by 0.1

Overseas 115,759,505 109,734,114 5.2 72 7.1 oroteo it
Total 2265520244  2,042,723,831 9.8 102 110  Decrease by 0.6

percentage point

Note: “Overseas” refers to regions other than China’s Mainland.

Revenue and its proportion in the last three years

Proportion Proportion 2021 (After Proportion

By industry 2023 (%) 2022 (%) adjustment) (%)
Housing construction 1,383,744,032 61.1 1,265,081,519 61.6 1,147,085,908 60.6
engineering
Infrastructure construction
and investment 556,561,456 24.6 493,498,360 24.0 411,117,889 21.7
Real estate development
and investment 308,807,680 13.6 282,044,629 13.7 330,943,286 17.5
Survey and design 11,747,277 0.5 10,763,560 0.5 10,808,369 0.6
Others 44,052,885 1.9 38,694,144 1.9 28,319,627 1.5
Inter-segment elimination -39,384,086 -1.7 -35,030,142 -1.7 -35,568,772 -1.9
Total 2,265,529,244 100.0 2,055,052,070 100.0 1,892,706,307 100.0

Explanation on principal business by industry, product and region

¥ Applicable N/A
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Newly signed contract value amounted to - e

RMBZ,689.4billion

a year-on-year increase of

0.0s

Revenue amounted to

RMB1 ,3837 bilion

a year-on-year increase of

3.4,

Gross profit amounted to

RMB1 005 billion

a year-on-year decrease of

0.2

Housing construction engineering

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s housing construction business
structure was further optimized, with significant gains in high-end housing
construction projects. The newly signed contract value of the Company’s
housing construction business for the whole year amounted to RMB2,689.4
billion, a year-on-year increase of 8.8%. Revenue amounted to RMB1,383.7
billion, a year-on-year increase of 9.4%; and gross profit amounted to
RMB100.5 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 0.2%.

During the Reporting Period, the Company stuck to the marketing strategy
featuring “premium market, customers, and projects”, focusing on the field
of middle and high-end new housing construction to strengthen its first-place
advantage in the housing construction market. Overall, the proportion of
the newly signed contract value for public buildings such as industrial plants,
science, education, culture, health and sports facilities, as well as commercial
complexes continued to increase. Specifically, in the field of industrial
plants, the newly signed contract value amounted to RMB621.8 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 58.9%, with projects including the 6th generation new
semiconductor display device production line for BOE in Beijing. In the field
of science, education, culture, health, and sports facilities, the newly
signed contract value amounted to RMB534.2 billion, a year-on-year increase
of 6.8%. Specifically, the newly signed contract value for the educational
facilities business amounted to RMB185.0 billion, a year-on-year increase
of 9.4%. Relevant projects include Tsinghua University’s Student Activity
Center and Tongzhou Financial Development and Talent Cultivation Base.
In the field of commercial complexes, the newly signed contract value
amounted to RMB516.9 billion, a year-on-year increase of 5.2%. In particular,
the Company undertook several super high-rise building projects each with a
height of over 300 meters, such as Tower B and Tower C at Shenzhen Bay
Super Headquarters Base. Additionally, the Company was actively involved in
the construction of the “Three Major Projects”, undertaking a number of key
livelihood projects, including the old town renovation projects of the Shuangsha
Community and Wenchong East Community in Huangpu District, Guangzhou.

Shenzhen Changzhen Prefabricated Public Housing Project
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Xiong’an New Area Business Service Center Project

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Newly signed contract value by housing construction business segments

No. Category | Category Il 2023 2022 YoY increase (%)

Residential buildings Commercial houses and others 6,619 7,506 -11.8

2 Affordable housing  Affordable housing and others 1,584 1,685 -0.1

. Industrial processing plants, industrial
3 Industrial plants manufacturing plants and others 6,218 3,913 58.9
) . Scientific research facilities, educational

4 Sﬁlﬁﬁge’hggﬁﬁ?fg' facilities, medical buildings, cultural facilities, 5.342 5.001 6.8

sports ‘facilities sports facilities, convention and exhibition ’ ’ '
P centers and others

5 Commercial Commercial office buildings, city complexes, 5,169 4913 5.0
complexes hotels and others

6 Others Municipal supporting buildings and others 1,962 1,810 8.4

Total / 26,894 24,728 8.8

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to enhance its core competitiveness in such fields as large-span
spatial structure, rapid construction, green construction and intelligent construction, effectively paving the way for its
undertaking of housing construction projects and high-quality performance of housing construction. Staged goals of
several national key projects — for example, the successful completion of landmark projects such as the new venue of
the Sanxingdui Museum and the new venue of the Second Historical Archives of China — were achieved as scheduled.
The Xiong’an Business Service Center achieved full-scale operation. Using the rapid construction technology for
Modular Integrated Construction (MIC), the Company completed the renovation of the old residential area at Building
No. 8 of Huapichang Hutong in Beijing within just three months, serving as one of the first pilot projects for “demolishing
and rebuilding (FR#FE#)” model.
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Newly signed contract value amounted to e

RMB1 ,1 685 bilion

a year-on-year increase of

1.1

Revenue amounted to

RMBSSGG billion

a year-on-year increase of

12.8s

Gross profit amounted to

R I\/l 8547 billion

a year-on-year increase of

6.0x

Infrastructure construction and investment

During the Reporting Period, the Company strengthened its focus on key areas in infrastructure
construction, achieving rapid growth in both scale and efficiency. The Company entered into new
infrastructure contracts with a total value of RMB1,168.5 billion for the whole year, a year-on-year
increase of 15.1%. It recorded revenue of RMB556.6 billion, a year-on-year increase of 12.8%; and
the gross profit amounted to RMB54.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of 6.0%.

During the Reporting Period, adhering to the strategy of “top-level design, executive interaction,
and layered coordination (IME1%1t. BEE. DEXE)", the Company succeeded in
seizing development opportunities in specific infrastructure construction segments focusing
on strengthening the foundational advantages in infrastructure construction. As a whole,
the Company secured a batch of major projects in municipal engineering and transportation
engineering; breakthroughs were made in energy engineering, water affairs and environmental
protection, and water conservancy and water transportation, with the proportion of the total newly
signed contract value rising to 37.3%. By niche segments, the value of newly signed contracts
in municipal engineering amounted to RMB282.9 billion, a year-on-year increase of 17.0%.
Specifically, the newly signed contract value for the municipal road business was RMB187.4
billion, a year-on-year increase of 0.1%. The Company undertook construction projects including
the city-industry integration and quality upgrading of the core BRI area in Chongging International
Logistics Hub Park. In transportation engineering, the value of newly signed contracts amounted
to RMB259.8 hillion, a year-on-year decrease of 21.7%. Specifically, that of newly signed contracts
of the railroad business amounted to RMB39.8 billion, a year-on-year increase of 19.7%. The
Company undertook railroad projects such as Xiong'an-Xinzhou High-speed Railway and Chengde
City Railway S11 line, and airport projects such as Phase Il project of Fuzhou Changle International
Airport and Comprehensive Transportation Center of Hefei Xingiao International Airport. The
Company has successfully bid for multiple urban rail transit projects in Beijing, Shenzhen and Jinan.
In energy engineering, the value of newly signed contracts amounted to RMB269.7 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 151.4%, and a batch of energy engineering projects represented by PV
power generation, wind power and nuclear power were undertaken in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Gansu Province and Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region. In water affairs and environmental protection, the value of newly signed contracts
amounted to RMB115.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of 2.1%, and the Company undertook the
first critical pipeline network project for the protection of the Yangtze River, namely the Yichang
City Urban Sewage Pipeline Network Shortcoming Addressing Project. In water conservancy
and water transportation, the value of newly signed contracts reached RMB50.1 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 229.6%, with contracts officially signed for projects such as Hunan
Liuyang Fengdongkou Pumped Storage Power Station and Pinglu Canal Waterway Project.
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Wind:-Pewer and Photovoltaic Project-with 4 Milion Kilowatts-ta-Milka Co.unr’gy;"')(injvi,aﬁg

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Newly signed contract value by infrastructure construction business segments

No. Category | Category Il 2023 2022 YoY increase (%)
Municipal Municipal roads, postal and
1 en inegrin telecommunication projects, defense and 2,829 2,418 17.0
9 9 disaster prevention projects and others
. Highways, railroads (including high-speed
2 g;ar;r?gglrritr]atlon rail), urban rail transportation, airports, 2,598 3,316 -21.7
9 9 bridges and others
) ’ PV power generation, wind power, nuclear
3 Energy engineering power engineering and others 2,697 1,073 151.4
Water affairs and ) ’ ’
. Environmental protection projects, water
4 environmental ) 1,157 1,134 2.1
protection supply and treatment projects
Water conservancy
Water conservancy, and water
5 fnd water . transportation 501 152 229.6
ransportation
6 Others Petrochemical engineering and others 1,903 2,059 -7.6
Total / 11,685 10,151 15.1

During the Reporting Period, the Company accelerated scientific and technological innovation in infrastructure
construction, ensuring high-quality and high-standard execution of infrastructure projects while continuously building
on its competitiveness in this field. The Company’s independently developed “complete set of technologies and
demonstration applications for green and efficient construction of fully-assembled bridges”, “key technologies and
applications for lean construction of large-span cable plane suspension bridges” and other achievements rank it among
the world’s most advanced construction companies in terms of overall competitiveness. The Company completed
and delivered the Luohanshan Tunnel in Hubei Province and Dianzhong Water Diversion Project in Yunnan Province,
which is the largest water diversion project under construction in China. In addition, the Company has undertaken the
construction of the Jinan-Zhengzhou High-speed Railway, Nanchang-Jingdezhen-Huangshan High-speed Railway,
South Extension of Hefei Metro Line 3, and Shanghai S3 Expressway, which have been officially put into operation.
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Contract sales amounted to

RM 8451 4 billion

a year-on-year increase of

124,

Revenue amounted to

RMBBO88 billion

a year-on-year increase of

3.5«

Gross profit amounted to

RMBBBZ billion

a year-on-year increase of

0.1

I s-CTiON Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Real estate development and investment

During the Reporting Period, the Company adapted its real estate business to new development
models at an accelerating pace, achieving growth in sales volume and profits despite the general
market downturn. The real estate business achieved contract sales of RMB451.4 billion throughout
the year, a year-on-year increase of 12.4%, and a contract sales area of 18.58 million square
meters, a year-on-year increase of 7.9%. Revenue amounted to RMB308.8 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 9.5%; and gross profit amounted to RMB56.2 hillion, a year-on-year increase of 5.1%.

During the Reporting Period, the Company delivered a new construction area of 14.28 million
square meters, a year-on-year decrease of 36.1%; total completed area of 21.39 million square
meters, a year-on-year decrease of 16.8%; and an area under construction of 63.21 million square
meters, a year-on-year decrease of 15.4%. The Company acquired 102 parcels of land throughout
the year with land reserves reaching 85.23 million square meters at the end of the Reporting
Period; new land reserves amounted to 13.10 million square meters with the land purchase amount
totaling RMB212.71 billion. More than 90% of the new land reserves this year are located in Tier 1
and Tier 2 cities. In particular, new land reserves located in Tier 1 cities including Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou and municipalities directly under the Central Government and provincial capitals
accounted for over 83% of the total, reflecting an improved land reserve structure.

After years of development, the Company currently owns 14.25 million square meters of self-held
properties encompassing office buildings, hotels, apartments, commercial real estate and others,
with a net book value of RMB158.5 billion, accounting for 5.5% of the Company’s total assets.
During the Reporting Period, the Company accelerated the upgrading of industry, expanded
business areas in commerce, elderly care and logistics, consistently enhancing the operation and
management as well as the profitability of self-held properties. The revenue generated from self-held
properties amounted to RMB6.44 billion.

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted an in-depth analysis of the situation and
policy changes in the real estate industry, flexibly adjusted its marketing and sales strategies, and
accelerated inventory turnover, focusing on enhancing its distinct competitive advantages in the real
estate business. Specifically, China Overseas ranked second in the industry in terms of equity sales,
maintaining a leading position in profit margin in the industry, with key indicators steadily improving.
The Company adhered to structural investment planning in pivotal cities. The Company acquired 43
parcels of land throughout the year and new land reserves amounted to 7.64 million square meters,
with a total land purchase amount of RMB134.21 billion, ranking first in the industry in terms of
newly acquired land value. The Company achieved contract sales of RMB267.0 billion throughout
the year, a year-on-year increase of 4.9%. The Company adopted a prudent and cautious financial
strategy to capitalize on its “green rating” status under the “three red lines” regulatory assessment.
Furthermore, the Company adhered to lean construction to promote the development of commercial
properties, education, elderly care and logistics while focusing on accelerating the principal

China Overseas * Shunchangijiuli (IRE¥A2) Project
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CSCEC Yipin Xuefu Residence ((¥FFALE)

business of residential development. CSC Land actively responds to market changes, introducing new pathways
and methods for land acquisition. It acquired 59 parcels of new land and had new land reserves of 5.46 million
square meters at a land purchase amount of RMB78.5 billion. CSC Land achieved contract sales of RMB184.4
billion throughout the year, representing a year-on-year growth of 25.3%. CSC Dongfu, CSCEC Yipin, CSCEC
Xinhe, CSCEC Jiuhe, C-LAND and other brands successively built by CSC Land were among the top 100 PRC
real estate enterprises in 2023 in terms of equity sales performance. The brand power of CSC Land improved
further.

For details, please refer to “Properties under development” and “Completed properties for sale” under Note
V. 8 “Inventories” and “Advances for sale of properties” under Note V. 32 “Contract liabilities” to the financial
statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

Top 10 cities by new land reserves

No City (Ten thgl:g:\c:lgg[l:::ameters) Percentage of area (%)
1 Beijing 266.4 20.3
2 Shanghai 204.5 15.6
3 Suzhou 128.2 9.8
4 Guangzhou 75.0 5.7
5 Tianjin 74.5 5.7
6 Nanjing 63.5 4.8
7 Shenzhen 60.0 4.6
8 Chengdu 53.0 4.0
9 Wuhan 41.6 3.2
10 Changsha 36.0 2.7
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o Survey and design

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s survey and design business grew steadily, and its original design
capabilities continued to improve. During the year, the newly signed contract value amounted to RMB14.8
billion, a year-on-year increase of 8.8%; revenue amounted to RMB11.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of 9.1%;
gross profit amounted to RMB2.5 billion, a year-on-year increase of 11.4%.

During the Reporting Period, the Company focused on survey and design as its primary business, encompassing
architectural design, urban planning, engineering survey, and public utility design, enhanced its core
competitiveness in such design segments as airports, schools, hotels, sports buildings, cultural venues, and
ancient architecture, and strived to strengthen its leading position in the design market. During the Reporting
Period, the Company continued to build on its original design capabilities, stepped up branding efforts, and
undertook design projects such as the conceptual planning of the terminal area and T3 terminal building
of Sanya Phoenix International Airport, as well as the Shuangpu Campus, Hangzhou Institute for Advanced
Study, University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. In addition, the Company continued to gain in full-process
engineering consulting capabilities, and undertook projects such as the full-process engineering consulting
services for the first phase of the Fuzhou Fuging Optoelectronics Park (A3 Green and Intelligent Comprehensive
Plant) and the infrastructure and smart project of Nansha Hospital of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of
Traditional Chinese Medicine. The Company actively promoted the application of green and low-carbon
technologies, undertook projects such as the urban renewal of the 240 Neighborhood in Hongnanshan
Residential Area (GEFELIE 240 ##H#KX) in Jing’an District, Shanghai, and designed and built Shaanxi Yulin
Sci-Tech Innovation City, the first zero-carbon distribution smart energy center in the world, contributing to the
development of a high-quality, sustainable, and modern green urban landscape.

/ '_;.f ". .A_f i~

Sanya Phoenix InternationakAirport Terminal Area Project
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Overseas business

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s overseas business maintained a focus on deepening its
operation and continued to build on its global resource allocation capabilities. The newly signed contract
value amounted to RMB186.0 billion, a year-on-year increase of 12.3%, with that of the construction business
amounting to RMB175.5 billion, a year-on-year increase of 15.4%. It recorded an overseas revenue of
RMB115.8 billion, a year-on-year increase of 7.2%; and gross profit amounted to RMB6.0 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 8.5%, with a gross profit margin of 5.2%, a year-on-year increase of 0.1 percentage point.

During the Reporting Period, the Company focused on implementing a high-quality development strategy for
overseas business operations, and actively engaged in international cooperation under the BRI. The Company
struck deep roots in key markets to continuously enhance the quality and effectiveness of marketing and
contract fulfilment operations, strengthening its competitive advantages in overseas markets. The Company
secured a number of key projects in various segments such as medical facilities, industrial plants, rail
transportation, and highway and bridge construction, and undertook projects such as the New Acute Hospital
at Kai Tak Development Area (Site A) in Hong Kong, the design and construction of the southern section of
the Macau Light Rapid Transit East Line, Singapore MRT Cross-Island Line Punggol Extension P103 project,
the high-rise residential building in Cavalli Casa of the United Arab Emirates, the Dongshan Precision Rojana
Nong Yai Industrial Park in Thailand, and Phase | of Astana Municipal Railway in Kazakhstan. A number
of projects undertaken by the Company, such as the Dubai Downtown Views project, Package A of Stage
Two of the Etihad Rail project, the Dubai Opera Tower, and Aykon City Tower B in Dubai, were successfully
delivered within the year. Additionally, the 4th Abidjan Bridge, an important transportation infrastructure
project in Cote d’lvoire, was officially opened to traffic.

During the Reporting Period, the Company made efforts in the construction and operation of “new cities”,
leveraging its full-industry-chain advantages to provide comprehensive services for urban construction in
host countries. The gym of the Oriental Business Park project in Algeria, which was developed employing an
innovative model integrating investment, construction and operation, was opened successfully. In addition, the
Company secured a cooperation agreement for the CBD urban operation project in Egypt’s new capital, laying
a solid foundation for expanding operation business in overseas mega-cities and effectively assisting Egypt in
building national and international ecological and smart special economic zones.
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PKM Project in Pakistan

The year 2023 marks the 10th anniversary of the BRI. Over the past decade, bearing in mind the “The Top
Priorities of the Country”, CSCEC unswervingly and wholeheartedly contributed to the development of the BRI,
grew its overseas presence, and undertaken more than 2,600 projects in nearly 100 countries (regions), with
a total contract value exceeding RMB1.46 trillion. CSCEC has successfully created a large number of high-
standard, sustainable, and people-oriented visible achievements, contributing to the high-quality development of
the BRI. As a new decade begins, CSCEC will effectively implement a high-quality development strategy over its
overseas business operations, strive to provide high-quality products and solutions to global stakeholders, and
share development opportunities and achievements with the people of the countries involved in the BRI.

Other business

Other business of the Company mainly includes primary land development, lease of machinery equipment and
engineering supervision and management. During the Reporting Period, revenue amounted to RMB44.1 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 13.8%; gross profit amounted to RMB10.1 billion, with a gross profit margin of 22.9%,
a year-on-year increase of 1.7 percentage points.

For details, please refer to Note V. 53 “Revenue and cost of sales”, Note V. 66 “Expenses by nature” and Note
XVI. 1 “Segment reporting” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.
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(2) Analytical statement on production and sales

O Applicable ™ N/A

(3) Performance of significant procurement contract and significant sales contract
O Applicable ™ N/A

(4) Statement of cost analysis

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

By industry
Changes in
Percentage the amount
Amount of of costs in Percent'age i of the current
the current the current GG E G | GEE 0 Reporting
By industry Cost items . . same period of same period :
Reporting Reporting Tl o [FER e Period over
Period Period to total y total co‘;ts (%) the same
costs (%) °! period of last
year (%)
Housing construction Raw materials, subcontracting 1.283.273.271 62.8 1164.411 378 63.3 102
engineering costs, labor costs, etc. EEEETE ' ’ ’ ’ ’ '
Infrastructure Raw materials, subcontractin
construction and ' 9 501,864,580 24.6 441,893,060 24.0 13.6
. costs, labor costs, etc.
investment
Construction and installation
Real estate development - oqq ' and costs, labor costs, 252,580,419 124 228,551,609 12.4 10.5
and investment otc
Survey and design Labor costs, rental of equipment 9,250,674 0.5 8,522,205 0.5 8.5
Others Labor costs, rental of equipment 33,964,319 1.7 30,475,497 1.7 1.4
Inter-segment elimination / -38,209,432 -1.9 -33,671,368 -1.9 /
Total / 2,042,723,831 100.0 1,840,182,381 100.0 11.0
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB
Main cost components
. Proportion Proportion 2021 Proportion
By industry Cost components 2023 (%) 2022 (%) (After adjustment) (%)
Selling costs of products 24,287,871 52 21,812,934 1.2 23,319,044 1.4
Subcontracting costs 519,233,745 25.4 398,178,917 21.6 351,983,820 21.0
Housing construction Raw materials 343,390,812 16.8 347,342,497 18.9 321,016,567 19.1
engineering Employee benefits 40,535,318 2.0 37,501,570 2.0 34,025,491 2.0
Other expenses 355,825,525 17.4 359,575,460 19.6 327,054,850 19.5
Sub-total 1,283,273,271 62.8 1,164,411,378 63.3 1,057,399,772 63.0
Subcontracting costs 220,633,861 10.8 224,249,598 12.2 185,781,252 11.1
» Raw materials 136,159,382 6.7 105,384,913 5.7 87,071,828 5.2
nfrastructure construction
and investment Staff costs 78,052,538 3.8 62,440,426 3.4 51,690,903 3.1
Other expenses 67,018,799 3.3 49,818,123 2.7 43,415,113 2.5
Sub-total 501,864,580 24.6 441,893,060 24.0 367,959,096 21.9
Carry-over of real estate
235,352,228 11.5 217,259,901 1.8 250,144,727 14.9
Real estate investment __development products
and development Other expenses 17,228,191 0.8 11,291,708 0.6 11,084,071 0.7
Sub-total 252,580,419 12.4 228,551,609 12.4 261,228,798 15.6
Survey and design Sub-total 9,250,674 0.5 8,522,205 0.5 8,532,540 0.5
Others Sub-total 33,964,319 1.7 30,475,497 1.7 19,302,698 1.2
Inter-segment elimination / -38,209,432 -1.9 -33,671,368 -1.9 -36,455,260 -2.2
Total 2,042,723,831 100.0 1,840,182,381 100.0 1,677,967,644 100.0
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Explanation on other information of cost analysis
Nil
(5) Changes in the scope of consolidation for the Reporting Period as a result of changes in equity interests of
major subsidiaries
Applicable ¥ N/A

(6) Significant changes in or adjustments of businesses, products or services of the Company during the
Reporting Period

Applicable ¥ N/A
(7) Sales to major customers and major suppliers
A. Sales to major customers of the Company
™ Applicable N/A

In 2023, the revenue generated from/sales to the top five customers of the Company was RMB28.2 billion, accounting
for 1.2% of the total revenue/sales of the year. Among the sales to the top five customers, the sales to related parties
amounted to nil, accounting for nil of the total sales for the year.

Circumstances where the proportion of sales to a single customer exceeds 50% of the total or there are new customers
among the top five customers or the Company heavily depends on a few customers during the Reporting Period

Applicable ™ N/A
B.  Major suppliers of the Company
¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, the amount of procurement from the top five suppliers was RMB24.984 billion, accounting
for 1.8% of the total procurement amount of the year. Among the amount of procurement from the top five suppliers,
the amount of procurement from related parties amounted to nil, accounting for nil of the total amount of procurement
for the year.

Circumstances where the proportion of purchases from a single supplier exceeds 50% of the total or there are new
suppliers among the top five suppliers or the Company heavily depends on a few suppliers during the Reporting Period

Applicable ™ N/A
Other explanation

The Company’s business scale and its diversified business structure mean that the Company’s suppliers are extensive
and the level of concentration is low. Public bidding procurement with minimum restrictions is used for the procurement
of bulk materials, which ensures the supply of resources and avoids reliance on a single supplier.
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In 2023, the Company’s selling and distribution expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance expenses, and
research and development expenses totaled RMB106.7 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 3.0%. The four items of
expenses accounted for 4.7% of revenue, a year-on-year decrease of 0.6 percentage point.

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V. 55 “Selling and distribution expenses”, Note V.
56 “General and administrative expenses”, Note V. 57 “Research and development expenses” and Note V. 58 “Finance
expenses” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

4. R&D expenditures
(1) R&D expenditures
¥ Applicable N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Expensed R&D expenditures in the current Reporting Period 46,073,572
Capitalized R&D expenditures in the current Reporting Period /
Total R&D expenditures 46,073,572
Percentage of total R&D expenditures to revenue (%) 2.0
Proportion of capitalization of R&D expenditures (%) /
(2) R&D staff
™ Applicable N/A
Number of the Company’s R&D staff 39,443
Percentage of R&D staff number to the Company’s total number of employees (%) 10.8
R&D staff by educational background
By educational background Number
PhD 499
Postgraduate 5,341
Undergraduate 28,984
Junior college 4,421
Senior high school and below 198
R&D staff by age
By age Number
Aged below 30 (exclusive) 15,911
Aged 30 (inclusive) to 40 (exclusive) 17,527
Aged 40 (inclusive) to 50 (exclusive) 4,327
Aged 50 (inclusive) to 60 (exclusive) 1,693
Aged 60 and above 85

Note: R&D staff refers to personnel engaged in basic research, applied research and experimental development activities in the
R&D institution during the Reporting Period (Research and Experimental Development (R&D) Input Statistical Specifications
(Trial) (Guo Tong Zi [2019] No. 47)). It includes all R&D personnel such as scientific and technological management personnel,
engineering and technical personnel, design and R&D personnel, and others who are involved in R&D projects.
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€ R&D staff by educational background € R&D staff by age
73.5% 44.5%
- 40.3%
13.5%
S 112% ,— 11.0%
1.3% I‘ 4.0%
0.5% | 0.2%
B PrD B Aged below 30 (exclusive)
M Postgraduate B Aged 30 (inclusive) to 40 (exclusive)
B Undergraduate [ Aged 40 (inclusive) to 50 (exclusive)
B Junior college B Aged 50 (inclusive) to 60 (exclusive)
M Senior high school and below [ Aged 60 and above

(3) Explanation
™ Applicable N/A

In recent years, the Company has been extensively implementing an innovation-driven development strategy to
accelerate innovation in construction technology and made certain achievements in improving the scientific and
technological innovation platform system. The Company achieved breakthroughs in core technologies in the
construction industry, developing green and low-carbon construction technologies and exploring digital technologies for
building industrialization, which effectively enhanced its core competitiveness.

Strengthening investment in the construction of scientific and technological innovation platforms. The
Company reinforced the construction of R&D institution systems centered on the scientific and technological innovation
platform system, and established three national-level scientific and technological innovation platforms, namely the
National Center of Technology Innovation for Digital Construction, the National Key Laboratory of Green Building, and
the National Engineering Research Center for Soil Nutrient Management and Pollution Remediation. The Company
also built two key laboratories for structural test analysis and safety control and civil engineering materials, and set up
16 engineering research centers in such fields as intelligent construction, green construction, ecological environment,
urban renewal and smart operation and maintenance, human settlement environment in extreme conditions, and
infrastructure technology and equipment. Additionally, the Company established a scientific and technological talent
pool by discipline and level, fully encouraging independent innovation and arousing the enthusiasm and creativity of
scientific and technological workers.

Increasing investment in research and development of key core technologies. During the Reporting Period,
the Company set up 25 annual key scientific research projects focusing on “urban renewal” and “new materials”,
further concentrating its research development on new business areas. Focusing on intelligent and green construction
technology, the Company and its subsidiaries carried out research on the construction technology of super high-rise
structures, large-span space structures of venues, prefabricated buildings, rail transportation, large and extra-large
bridges, nuclear power, photovoltaics, and water conservancy facilities, and set up more than 15,000 projects.

Boosting investment in R&D of construction industrialization and digitalization technologies. The Company
pushed ahead with digital-empowered transformation and development, used its best efforts to build a construction
industry network, sought integration and innovation of big data, artificial intelligence, 3D printing and other technologies
in the construction field, developed independent software such as BIM graphics and digital platforms, and realized
the scaled empowerment and upgrading of the building information modeling (BIM), intelligent factory MES system,
and intelligent construction site platform. During the Reporting Period, the Company independently developed the “5G
remote control tower crane” technology, which was promoted and used in projects in Shanghai, Jiangsu and other
locations, significantly improving operational efficiency and digital management level. The Company also independently
developed and promoted the application of various intelligent construction technologies assembly, including the
country’s first straddle-type intelligent welding robot, permanent magnet rail-type intelligent welding robot, and bridge
steel mesh intelligent welding robot, greatly improving construction efficiency.
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Intelligent Operation and Maintenance Command Center

(4) Reasons for material changes in the composition of R&D staff and their impact on the Company’s development
in the future

O Applicable ¥ N/A
5. Cash flows
™ Applicable [ N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s net cash inflow amounted to RMB16.131 billion, a year-on-year increase
in net inflow of RMB5.201 billion.

The Company’s net cash inflow from operating activities was RMB11.030 billion, a year-on-year increase in net inflow
of RMB7.201 billion, mainly due to the increase in the payments received for construction and property purchases,
among others, during the Reporting Period.

The Company’s net cash outflow from investing activities was RMB26.502 billion, a year-on-year increase in net outflow
of RMB15.024 billion, mainly due to the decrease in cash receipts from other investment activities and the increase in
cash payments for purchase and construction of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets during the
Reporting Period.

The Company’s net cash inflow from financing activities was RMB30.450 billion, a year-on-year increase in net inflow
of RMB13.930 billion, mainly due to the increase in the cash received from borrowings and bond issuance during the
Reporting Period.

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V. 69 “Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement” and Note V. 70 “Supplementary information to the consolidated cash flow statement” to the financial
statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

6. Financing

During the Reporting Period, the Company took advantage of the accommodative monetary policy environment,
and both the interest rates of new bank borrowings and newly issued bonds decreased. The Company continued to
benefit from low-cost financing. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s total interest-bearing liabilities
amounted to RMB791.1 billion, representing an increase over that of the beginning of the year. This was mainly due
to the increase in the Company’s order volume, and accordingly in financing. The volume of interest-bearing liabilities
was in line with the Company’s business scale, and the structure of interest-bearing liabilities matched the Company’s
business structure. The general liquidity risk was low and under effective control.
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(I) Operating investment business

During the Reporting Period, in light of changing market conditions, the Company maintained a prudent investment
strategy by prioritizing investment returns and continued to improve the quality of investment to ensure sustainable and
stable development of the investment business. During the Reporting Period, the Company completed an investment of
RMB400.3 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 1.1%, and the amount of investment recovered was RMB428.3 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 10.6%.

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of
investment during

Classification of projects the Reporting

Proportion (%) YoY increase (%)

Period

By category of projects

Real estate development 3,061 76.5 -1.6
Investment in infrastructure 417 104 -8.4
Investment in housing construction 435 10.9 21.9
Comprehensive urban construction 77 1.9 -26.0
Fixed assets and other investments 13 0.3 -38.0
By continuity of projects

Reinvested projects 2,177 54.4 -13.6
New projects 1,826 45.6 19.3
Total 4,003 100 -1.1

Note: The above classification of projects is designed in accordance with industry practices and the Company’s internal management
needs. The classification attributes of some projects will be adjusted according to the actual circumstances of the project. The
year-on-year growth rate in the table will be adjusted retrospectively to the changed projects accordingly.

1. Real estate development

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s investment in the real estate development reached RMB306.1 billion, a
year-on-year decrease of 1.6%; the amount of investment recovered was RMB354.0 billion, a year-on-year increase of
14.1%; and the income to expenses ratio of investment was 115.6%, a year-on-year increase of 16 percentage points.

2. Investment in infrastructure

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s investment in infrastructure reached RMB41.7 billion, a year-on-year
decrease of 8.4%; the amount of investment recovered was RMB24.6 billion, a year-on-year increase of 11.4%; and
the income to expenses ratio of investment was 59.1%, a year-on-year increase of 10.5 percentage points.

3. Investment in housing construction

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s investment in housing construction reached RMB43.5 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 21.9%; the amount of investment recovered was RMB37.3 billion, a year-on-year increase of
9.1%; and the income to expenses ratio of investment was 85.8%, a year-on-year decrease of 10 percentage points.

4. Comprehensive urban construction

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s investment in comprehensive urban construction reached RMB7.7 billion,
a year-on-year decrease of 26.0%; the amount of investment recovered was RMB7.9 billion, a year-on-year decrease
of 48.7%; and the income to expenses ratio of investment was 102.1%, a year-on-year decrease of 46.3 percentage
points.
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5. Investment and construction in key regions

The Company resolutely implemented the major strategic decisions and arrangements made by the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council. Actively practicing regional and coordinated development strategies under the
guidance of major national strategic planning and arrangements, the Company deeply engaged in the investment and
construction in high-priority regions including the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the
development of the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the construction of the GBA, the integrated development of the
Yangtze River Delta, and the ecological protection and high-quality development of the Yellow River Basin. During
the Reporting Period, the amount invested by the Company in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River
Economic Belt, the GBA, the Yangtze River Delta and the Yellow River Basin reached RMB369.3 billion in aggregate,
representing 92.3% of the Company’s overall investment amount.

6. PPP business

In accordance with the relevant national requirements on the regulated development of PPP business, and under
the guidance of national policies, the Company established and improved the risk management and control system
of PPP business, controlled PPP business scale rationally, and persevered with the high-quality development of the
PPP business. In 2023, the Company had 443 PPP projects under construction, with equity investment amounting to
RMB650.4 billion. During the Reporting Period, the Company secured one new municipal engineering PPP project with
equity investment amounting to RMB890 million.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had 291 PPP projects in operation with an equity investment
amount of approximately RMB406.9 billion, accounting for 62.6% of total equity investment. Classified by type, existing
PPP projects in operation mainly concentrate on municipal roads, utility tunnels, cultural and sports venues, affordable
housing projects and eco-environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to strengthen
the management of PPP projects, promoting high-quality development of the PPP business. Firstly, the Company
diligently investigated new PPP mechanisms and actively explored new models in line with policy requirements.
Secondly, the Company pushed forward cash flow investigations and carried out coordinated management of PPP
projects covering the entire project life-cycle, focusing on cash flow as the top priority. Thirdly, the Company conducted
thorough research on fund recovery, comprehensively reviewed the realization of fund recovery for PPP projects during
the operation period, so as to effectively guarantee the recovery of funds invested. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, PPP projects in operation delivered satisfactory results in the operation performance assessment, and all the
projects that have completed the annual performance assessment had reached the preset targets, with a cumulative
fund recovery of RMB95.17 billion, reinforcing the accountability discipline for investment recovery.

PPP Project of the Three Venues of Hangzhou Asian Games - the Main-Stadium, a Natatorium and a Comprehensiy
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(1) Operation of specialized sectors

The Company further implemented the “specialization” strategy, and fostered and developed a number of highly
specialized companies with sophisticated management mechanisms, innovative capabilities and core competencies
in their respective fields of business. The Company’s operations encompass 11 specialized sectors. Its newly signed
contract value amounted to RMB690.3 billion for the whole year of 2023, a year-on-year increase of 2.2%; revenue
came in at RMB477.61 billion, a year-on-year increase of 8.0%; gross profit was RMB35.95 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 4.2%; and operating profit was RMB20.13 billion, a year-on-year increase of 11.8%.

During the Reporting Period, the Company further rationalized the division and structural planning of specialized
sectors, the synergetic and coordination mechanism became increasingly sophisticated, and the overall competitive
edge became more prominent. Each specialized sector and its related subsidiaries provided strong support for the
Company’s development across business segments covering entire life cycles and industry chains. China State
Decoration ranked among the top players in businesses such as decoration and curtain wall manufacturing. Its
competitiveness in green and healthy decoration technologies made the company the pacesetter in the industry, while
the transformation platform for prefabricated decoration components progressed smoothly toward commercialization
and industrialization. Moreover, significant breakthroughs have been achieved in existing curtain wall testing
technologies, making it the first non-destructive testing agency in China. China Construction Steel Structure Co.,
Ltd. (FFEEEV#) maintained its top position in China’s construction steel structure industry competitiveness rankings,
boasting the largest market share in the high-end steel structure business sector, and was honored with the title
of “National Individual Champion Demonstration Manufacturing Enterprise”. CCIEE secured the largest share of the
global market of propane dehydrogenation core equipment. It obtained the GA1 level license for long-distance pipeline
installation and was awarded the title of “National Individual Champion Product in Manufacturing Industry”. Additionally,
its on-site manufacturing capabilities for large-scale towers and reactors held a leading position in the national chemical
equipment manufacturing sector. China West Construction Group Co., Ltd. remained at the forefront of China’s precast
concrete industry. Its self-developed intelligent factory system solution was officially designated as a typical case of
intelligent manufacturing in the building materials industry by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in
2023. China Construction Science & Technology successfully developed and implemented the CMC modular building
products and production lines.
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Teme N o ne\\llv?lusei orred Revenue for YoY increase Gross profit for YoY increase  Operating  YoY increase
v SIg 2023 (%) 2023 (%) profit for 2023 (%)
contracts
Installation 729 674.7 2.6 40.6 -1 25.7 0.1
Cross-sector Stceet strucﬁu[e 178 281.7 271 17.7 14.3 8.9 11.1
ommercia
concrete 579 228.6 -8.0 25.9 -0.9 8.9 3.4
Housing Decoration 592 493.8 12.6 37.2 15.4 10.8 26.9
construction Gardening 105 103.7 29.0 8.8 20.4 5.3 9.2
Municipal projects 1,874 920.5 3.9 103.5 -3.1 62.8 -0.6
Railways 398 276.2 78.5 49 1,101.0 3.3 /
Rail transit 387 655.9 1.1 34.7 7.7 23.6 20.0
Infrastructure -
Road and bridges 1,216 942.6 1.0 71.4 -1.5 46.5 18.6
Electricity 639 97.6 42.0 5.5 34.7 3.0 36.8
Port engineering 206 100.8 21.3 9.3 38.7 2.5 47.6
Total 6,903 4,776.1 8.0 359.5 4.2 201.3 11.8
Gross profit margin (%) Operating profit margin (%)
Items Names of sectors YoY change YoY change
2023 2022 (percentage 2023 2022 (percentage
points) points)
Installation 6.0 6.2 -0.2 3.8 3.9 -0.1
Cross-sector Steel structure 6.3 7.0 -0.7 3.2 3.6 -0.4
Commercial concrete 11.3 10.5 0.8 3.9 3.5 0.4
. i Decoration 7.5 7.4 0.1 2.2 1.9 0.3
Housing construction -
Gardening 8.5 9.1 -0.6 51 6.0 -0.9
Municipal projects 1.2 121 -0.9 6.8 71 -0.3
Railways 1.8 0.3 15 1.2 -1.0 /
Rail transit 5.3 5.0 0.3 3.6 3.0 0.6
Infrastructure -
Road and bridges 7.6 7.8 -0.2 4.9 4.2 0.7
Electricity 5.6 5.9 -0.3 3.0 3.2 -0.2
Port engineering 9.3 8.1 1.2 2.4 2.0 0.4
Total 7.5 7.8 -0.3 4.2 4.1 0.1
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2. Overseas assets
¥ Applicable N/A
(1) Asset scale

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the overseas assets of the Company amounted to RMB183.4 billion, accounting
for 6.3% of its total assets.

(2) Relevant explanation on a relatively high proportion of overseas assets
Applicable ¥ N/A

(3) Description of overseas assets

¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no material changes in the major assets of the Company. The above data on
overseas assets has not been audited.

3. Restriction on major assets as at the end of the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A

For details, please refer to Note V. 26 “Assets with restricted ownership or right to use” to the financial statements
under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

4. Other explanation

Applicable ¥ N/A
(VI) Analysis of operating information in the industry
¥ Applicable N/A
Analysis of operating information in the construction industry
1. Projects completed and accepted during the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Housing Infrastructure Specialized Consuiiction

Segment of industry - P A ; and Others Total
construction construction engineering G
Number of projects 9,040 1,954 / / / 10,994
Total amount 19,387 4,543 / / / 23,930

¥ Applicable N/A
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
China’s Mainland 10,839 22,704
Overseas 155 1,226
Of which:
Hong Kong and Macao SARs 37 710
Southeast Asia 40 151
Middle East 22 220
North Africa 10 93
Central and Southern Africa 20 10
Americas 7 11
Europe 3 2
Other regions 16 29
Total 10,994 23,930

Other explanation
¥ Applicable N/A

With reference to the relevant national standards, and taking into consideration its operating characteristics and
structural development needs, the Company’s housing construction projects include engineering general contracting
and specialized contracting projects (foundation, steel structure, construction and installation, renovation and
decoration, etc.); infrastructure projects include transportation engineering (roads, municipal roads, railways,
urban rail transit, airports, ports and docks, parking lots, tunnels, bridges, waterways, etc.), energy engineering,
petrochemical engineering, water supply and treatment engineering, environmental protection engineering, post and
telecommunications engineering, disaster prevention engineering, hydraulic engineering and other projects (outdoor
stadiums, outdoor recreational facilities, land reclamation, artificial islands, urban utility tunnels, pipe networks, etc.),
which is also applicable to the items below.

2. Projects under construction during the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A
Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Housing Infrastructure Specialized T

EEELE el construction construction engineering deczrrlgtion Others Ll
Number of projects 20,314 7,524 / / / 27,838
Total amount 69,547 34,953 / / / 104,500

™ Applicable N/A
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Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
China’s Mainland 26,952 98,446
Overseas 886 6,054
Of which:
Hong Kong and Macao SARs 197 3,020
Southeast Asia 350 1,145
Middle East 71 547
North Africa 40 427
Central and Southern Africa 56 124
Americas 15 80
Europe 23 39
Other regions 134 672
Total 27,838 104,500

Other explanation

[0 Applicable ™ N/A

3. Material projects under construction
O Applicable & N/A

Other explanation

[0 Applicable ™ N/A
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4. Overseas projects during the Reporting Period
™ Applicable N/A

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Locations of projects Number of projects Total amount
Hong Kong and Macao SARs 263 4,264
Southeast Asia 492 1,990
Middle East 120 1,169
North Africa 116 901
Central and Southern Africa 143 454
Americas 46 327
Europe 27 41
Other regions 188 1,047
Total 1,395 10,193

Other explanation
™ Applicable N/A

The status of the above projects includes completed and settled, completed and unsettled, under construction and
others.

The amount of contracts for overseas projects was calculated based on the exchange rate of foreign currencies against
RMB as agreed in the contract or the spot exchange rate at the time of contract signing.

5. Total number of new projects signed during the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A

The total number of new projects signed during the Reporting Period was 7,408 with an amount of RMB3,872.7 billion
(amount of construction contracts).

6. Orders in hand as of the end of the Reporting Period
™ Applicable N/A

The total amount of orders in hand as of the end of the Reporting Period was RMB7,084.8 billion. In particular, the
amount of contracts that have been signed but the projects have not yet started was RMB2,383.4 billion, and the
amount of the unfinished part of the projects under construction was RMB4,701.4 billion.

Other explanation
Applicable ™ N/A
7. Other explanation

Applicable ™ N/A
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° The Company’s qualifications in the construction industry

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had a total of 42 enterprises with special-grade
qualifications, one enterprise with engineering design integrated Class-A qualification, and 69 special and
integrated Class-A qualifications, namely 35 special-grade qualifications in general contracting of construction
projects, 19 special grade qualifications in general contracting of municipal utilities works, and 11 special-grade
qualifications in general contracting of highway projects, two special-grade qualifications in general contracting
of petrochemical projects, one special-grade qualification in general contracting of port and waterway projects,
and one design integrated Class-A qualification.

° The Company’s quality control system, implementation standards, control measures and
overall evaluation

Based on the ISO9001 quality system, the Company continuously improved the multi-level and comprehensive
quality management system such as quality organization system, regimes and supervision system, and
maintained effective operation. The Company issued a series of requirements for its standardized system of
quality management, including the Handbook for the Prohibited, Restricted and Recommended Processes,
Equipment and Materials (Z 1. RHIFFEEFENTZ. ®E. MEFM)) and the bottom line requirements of “10
prohibitions and six necessities” for management, providing standards and systematic safeguards for project
quality. The Company reinforced quality liability by implementing written notification of quality responsibility and
works quality issue interviews and enhanced punishment for enterprises with serious quality untrustworthiness.
The Company attached great importance to quality assurance services, established customer files, and
conducted regular and irregular quality review visits. The pass rate of the completed projects was 100%, with no
quality accidents above the general level.

° Operation of the Company’s work safety system

During the Reporting Period, the Company promoted various tasks, including the annual campaign for central
enterprises to “strengthen safety management”, the yearly action for the Company to “deepen responsibility”,
and the special action for the Company to “pay close attention to work safety”. The Company diligently
deepened and consolidated the 2023 action to investigate and rectify hidden dangers of major accidents,
and continued to deepen the “double zero concept” and improve the safety management system. No major
or higher-level work safety incidents occurred during the Reporting Period. The Company also developed the
Measures for Management of Prevention Mechanism for Safety Risk Grading and Control and Hidden Dangers
Investigation and Management (Z2X QDK EZTMIEEBHEREBETALHGIEIENE)), which clarified criteria
for determining major hidden dangers in the infrastructure construction sector. The Company was committed to
promoting the transition of the safety management model towards beforehand prevention. The Company also
conducted a comprehensive review of operational risks throughout the entire process of tower crane operations,
from installation, erection to dismantling, and prepared the Major Risk Control Table for Tower Crane (&2
BN EANREITR), which clearly outlined management and control requirements and operating standards
for key steps. Additionally, the Company organized a series of specialized training sessions for work safety,
where more than 70,000 individuals systematically studied newly released regulations and policies of the state,
and the Company’s new safety rules. The Company established its first licensed training base for large-scale
equipment to enhance trainees’ safety capabilities through a combination of theory study, practical exercises,
and examinations. A total of 329 equipment supervisors were trained throughout the year.

(VII) Analysis of investment
General analysis of external equity investment
¥ Applicable N/A

The Company’s external equity investment mainly includes stocks purchased from the secondary market for trading
purposes, and equities held in other listed or unlisted companies for non-trading purposes. Accounting items include
financial assets held for trading, investment in other equity instruments and long-term equity investments.

1. Major equity investment

Applicable ™ N/A

2. Major non-equity investment

Applicable ¥ N/A
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3. Financial assets measured at fair value

™ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: 000 yuan Currency: RMB

et G o Accumulated Impairments Purchase D'SPOS?V
L) BT changes in  recognized amount L
Opening in fair value ang ecog amount Other Closing
Category of assets P — T T fair value in current of current ) G TS s
R X recognized in Reporting Reporting . 9
eporting equit Period Period Al g
Period quity Period
Stock 2,051,579 -5,299 -670,049 0 0 1,479,139 38,250 844,805
Others 10,805,863 -11,246 383,790 0 2,084,565 1,658,444 417,947 12,122,475
Total 12,857,442 -16,545 -286,259 0 2,084,565 3,037,583 456,197 12,967,280

Investment in securities

¥ Applicable [0 N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Profit or

Carrying Profit or loss  Accumulated Purchase  Disposal Bt Carrying
. Initial value atthe  fromchange changesin  amount amount . value at the
Securities . Source of - e ; investment L
i Stock code  Stock short name  investment . beginning of in fairvalue  fairvalue  of current of current . end of the ~ Accounting items
ype capital h ; e 3 ; in current .
cost the Reporting  incurrent  recognized in Reporting ~ Reporting Renortin Reporting
Period  Reporting Period  equity Period Period PoriNg period
Period
Share converted Financial assets held
Stock  600515.5H HAINAN AIRPORT 20,153 from debis 20,153 -5,299 0 0 0 0 14,854 for trading
Stk 600015.8H HUAXIA BANK 2325 Seftownedfunds 300,867 0 0 0 39004 2125 g Mestmentin oter
equity instruments
Stock 000617.52 CNPC Capital 1,150,135 Self-owned funds 829,672 0 0 0 1,150,135 / /- Other current assets
Stock  600390.SH  MINMETALS CAPITAL 1,500,000  Self-owned funds 900,887 0 -670,049 0 0 17,025 829,951 Other current assets
Total / [ 2,699,613 / 2,051,579 -5,209  -670,049 0 1,479,139 38,250 844805 /

Notes on securities investments:

(D This table sets out the Company’s investments in stock securities including financial assets held for trading, other current assets,
and investment in other equity instruments.

@ Profit or loss for the Reporting Period, with respect to financial assets held for trading, includes the investment income and changes
in fair value during the holding period and investment income from disposals during the Reporting Period; with respect to investment in
other equity instruments and other current assets, includes investment income during the holding period.

(3 Other securities investment refers to investment in stock securities accounted for as financial assets held for trading, investment in
other equity instruments other than those listed above.

@ In addition to the table above, for other items included in financial assets held for trading and investment in other equity instruments,
please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V. 2. “Financial assets held for trading” and Note V. 15. “Investment in other
equity instruments” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

Investment in private funds

[0 Applicable ™ N/A

Investment in derivatives

[0 Applicable ™ N/A

4. Specific progress of material asset restructuring during the Reporting Period

O Applicable ™ N/A
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(Vi) Disposal of major assets and equity interests
O Applicable & N/A
(IX) Analysis of major subsidiaries where the Company has a controlling or minority interest

™ Applicable [1N/A

1. Major subsidiaries acquired through incorporation or investment

Unit: 000 yuan Currency: RMB

Name Nature of business Registered capital snraar;m: ;ng Total assets Net assets Net profit
COHL Investment holding 31,032,258 100.00 1,066,577,340 365,779,177 29,614,981
China Overseas Land &  Real estate development and 1 95 pijion 56.10 836,173,429 319,577,354 20,259,957
Investment operation
CSal Construction and installation HKD1.5 billion 64.81 221,690,861 64,647,868 8,324,300
China Overseas Property Property management HKD30 million 61.18 10,610,823 4177,017 1,351,504
China Construction First . ) .
Group Corporation Limited Construction and installation 10,000,000 100.00 112,363,689 28,020,666 4,472,002
China Construction
Second Engineering Construction and installation 10,000,000 100.00 177,675,195 33,437,019 4,199,563
Bureau Ltd.
China Construction Third
Engineering Bureau Group Construction and installation 5,087,865 100.00 320,909,095 79,025,290 12,735,834
Co., Ltd.
China Construction Fourth
Engineering Division Corp.,  Construction and installation 8,000,000 100.00 168,665,787 20,913,870 665,238
China Construction Fifth
Engineering Division Corp., Construction and installation 10,000,000 100.00 183,933,010 40,701,556 4,163,967
Ltd.
China Construction Sixth
Engineering Bureau Corp., Construction and installation 5,277,946 100.00 74,120,198 13,981,852 596,594
China Construction
Seventh Engineering Construction and installation 9,000,000 100.00 175,363,396 22,339,951 583,446
Division Corp., Ltd.
China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Construction and installation 15,218,000 100.00 326,917,821 85,240,940 13,272,175
China Southwest Engineering survey and design 383,310 100.00 10,130,692 3,031,002 451,167
Architecture
China State Decoration Industrial renovation and 1,000,000 100.00 20,819,900 1,787,816 140,348
decoration
China Construction Infrastructure construction 5,000,000 100.00 55,870,965 18,745,370 964,190

Fangcheng

2. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination under common control

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Name Nature of business Regls?ered Share_ho!’dmg Total assets Net assets Net profit
capital ratio (%)
CSCEC Xinjiang )
Construction & Coqﬁgigﬁgggna”d 3,608,530 85.00 66,584,616 16,206,893 1,252,609
Engineering
China West . )
Construction Construction materials 1,262,354 57.79 34,403,162 11,076,390 725,019
CSC Finance Finance 15,000,000 80.00 92,764,625 19,399,866 1,129,272
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3. Major subsidiaries acquired through business combination not under common control

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB
Shareholding

Name Nature of business Registered capital ratio (%) Total assets Net assets Net profit
CSC Development Construction and installation HKD100 million 45.87 9,662,629 2,084,646 511,574
China Gonstruction Harbour Infrastructure construction
and Channel Engineering 1,333,333 70.00 10,135,778 2,504,651 242,280

business
Bureau

For details, please refer to relevant information as set out in “1. Interests in subsidiaries” under Note VIII “Interest in
other entities” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

(X) Structured entities under the control of the Company
¥ Applicable N/A

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in “3. Interests in consolidated structured entities” under
Note VIII “Interest in other entities” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Future Development of the Company
(I) Industrial development and trends
™ Applicable N/A

There is plenty of room for development in both newly built and existing housing properties. According to the
Central Economic Work Conference and the Report on the Work of the Government, China’s urbanization still enjoys
substantial room for improvement. It is necessary to thoroughly implement the strategic initiatives of new urbanization,
promote the two-way flow of various elements, and foster a new pattern for the integrated development of urban
and rural areas. Efforts should be made to nurture and develop county-level economies, address shortcomings in
infrastructure and public services, and position counties as important drivers of new urbanization. Urban agglomerations
and metropolitan areas should be leveraged to promote coordinated development across cities of different sizes. Efforts
should be directed towards promoting the development of the Chengdu-Chongqging Economic Circle. Concurrently,
efforts should also be made to steadily implement urban renewal initiatives by advancing the construction of affordable
housing and “public infrastructure for both normal and emergency use” in megacities, and shantytown renovation
(the “Three Major Projects”). This aims to create livable, smart, and resilient cities, allowing people to enjoy a better
life. Simultaneously, efforts should be made to cultivate and expedite new quality productive forces, which will drive
investment and construction in high-end manufacturing projects. With China’s urbanization rate rising and urban
renewal progressing steadily, the housing construction market will maintain strong growth momentum and plenty room
for growth, transitioning toward greener, smarter, and more industrialized construction. From the perspective of niche
segments, various regions will expedite investment and construction in the Three Major Projects and facilities such as
high-tech industrial plants, educational facilities, cultural venues, sports and healthcare infrastructure, thereby creating
new opportunities for construction companies.

There will be a synergistic development of traditional and new infrastructure facilities. In December 2023,
the National Development and Reform Work Conference explicitly stated that, for investment in 2024, greater efforts
would be made to leverage government investment, including the RMB1 trillion worth of additional central government
bonds issued in 2013, investment within the central government budget, and special bonds of local governments, and
improve their efficiency. The investment aims to support transportation infrastructure, energy, agriculture, forestry and
water conservancy, new-generation infrastructure, and energy conservation, emission and carbon reduction and other
projects. According to the 2024 Report on the Work of the Government, China will fully leverage the stimulating and
multiplier effects of government investment, with a focus on supporting major scientific and technological innovation
programs, new-generation infrastructure, and energy conservation and pollution and carbon reduction initiatives.
China will increase efforts to shore up weak links in economic and social development, such as projects for ensuring
people’s wellbeing. China will build infrastructure for flood prevention, drainage, and disaster response, encourage
upgrading and technological transformation of production and service equipment, and accelerate implementation of
major projects included in the 14th Five-Year Plan. In 2024, RMB700 billion will be earmarked in the central government
budget for investment. Looking ahead, infrastructure system modernization will gain momentum in China as the country
embarks on its journey to become a power of manufacturing, quality, space technology, transportation, digital networks
and digitalization. Implementation of key projects under the 14th Five-Year Plan is poised to catalyze accelerated
investments and development in both traditional and novel infrastructural domains. The total market size of highways
and railroads is expected to remain high, and energy engineering, water conservancy and ecological environment
protection are expected to become fast-growing markets.
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A new development model started to take shape within the real estate sector. Explicit directives from the
Central Economic Work Conference and the Two Sessions advocate for optimizing real estate policies, promoting
the stable and healthy development of the real estate market, and adhering to the principle of “housing is for living
in, not for speculation” with a city-specific, targeted policymaking approach. Efforts are underway to adapt to the
development trends of new urbanization and changes in supply and demand within the real estate market, accelerate
the formation of a new development model for real estate, augment the construction and supply of affordable housing,
improve the basic system related to commercial housing, and satisfy the housing needs of first-time homebuyers as
well as those seeking to trade up. There is a continued emphasis on ensuring the timely delivery of presold commercial
housing properties, safeguarding people’s livelihood and social stability, properly coping with risks confronting real
estate enterprises and promoting the stable and healthy development of the real estate market. In the future, the real
estate market is expected to move towards stable development, and the industry will go through a phase of high-
quality growth. Under the new dynamics of market supply and demand and regulatory policies, real estate enterprises
will face heightened requirements in development, asset operation and urban service capabilities. Additionally, industry
concentration is expected to increase further.

The survey and design sector is undergoing rapid transformation. New urbanization construction and investment
in infrastructure have created fresh opportunities for the development of the survey and design industry. Niche
segments of survey and design, such as cultural venues, sports facilities, education facilities, airports, historical
buildings and municipal infrastructure, are poised for rapid growth, imposing heightened requirements for the original
design capabilities of survey and design enterprises. Furthermore, the extensive application of new-generation
information technologies such as BIM (Building Information Modeling) and artificial intelligence, along with the
requirements of green and low-carbon development, will further accelerate the transformation and upgrading of the
survey and design industry.

The overseas business landscape presents both opportunities and challenges. In 2023, China successfully
hosted the Third Belt and Road Forum for International Cooperation and the China-Central Asia Summit, advocating
for the expansion of BRICS and honoring its commitment to building a community with a shared future for mankind,
which injected new impetus into the development of the international engineering sector. As cooperation under the
BRI is entering a new stage of high-quality development, and with the gradual implementation of the eight actions for
high-quality BRI development, Chinese enterprises will seize new development opportunities on the global stage. In
the future, under the framework of the BRI, concerted efforts from all countries will continue to advance “small niche”
projects that benefit the people’s wellbeing, represented by medical facilities, affordable housing, cultural venues, and
sports facilities, and regional landmark projects. A comprehensive, multi-layered and complex infrastructure network
centered around highways, high-speed railways, airports, bridges and ports will rapidly take shape. Furthermore, the
uncertainties surrounding global economic recovery, the new round of technological revolution and industrial changes,
as well as geopolitical factors will continue to pose challenges to the international engineering industry. International
investment and construction enterprises with superior construction quality, strong resource integration capabilities and
cutting-edge technologies will emerge as leaders in the highly competitive landscape.

(Il) Development strategies
¥ Applicable N/A

During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, the Company will, under the guidance of the strategic goal of “one creation
and five aspects of strength”, focus on its main duties and principal business while solidly promoting continuous
high-quality, innovative, green, digital and security development and transformation. The Company will intensify its
development in strategic emerging industries to further enhance its core competitiveness and create a world-class
investment and construction conglomerate.

1. Housing construction. The Company will keep consolidating its dominant position in the housing construction
market. In accordance with the principle of steady development with efficiency enhancement, the Company will
focus on expanding projects in the public investment and high-quality real estate developers’ residential and
commercial office projects and continue to improve its competitiveness in high-end housing construction business
such as super high-rise and large-span projects. The Company aims to set a new benchmark for supply chain
management, informatization, construction quality, energy conservation and environmental protection and work
safety, deliver scientific research results of domestic and international leading levels, and continuously improve
its market competitiveness and development quality. The Company will continue to deepen the reforms and
innovations in the construction business, and optimize the internal coordination mechanism to become the industry
leader in terms of business volume, technology and quality, as well as the first choice for high-end customers.

2. Infrastructure construction and investment. The Company will continue to take infrastructure as the focus
of its transformation and upgrading, developing this sector into a pillar to stabilize its operational concepts
and strategies. The Company will improve its capabilities throughout the entire life-cycle from the front end
of the market, construction performance, operation and management, consolidate its leading position in the
construction businesses such as urban rail transits, airports and comprehensive transportation hubs, accelerate
the improvement of comprehensive competitiveness and market share in the fields of highway, railway and water
conservancy construction, and set a good example for the development of emerging infrastructure sectors such
as new energy, intelligent transportation and general aviation. Infrastructure investment and operation are key for
the Company to optimize its business structure and achieve transformation and upgrading. During the 14th Five-
Year Plan period, the Company will attach great importance to investment management and the safe and stable
operation of projects, and strive to enhance capabilities in operation management, professional implementation
and risk mitigation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 59



I s-CTioN il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

60

3. Real estate investment and development. In line with its commitment to building an outstanding international
real estate development and operation group, the Company will continue to take transformation and upgrading as
the keynote, accelerate the formation of a pattern that focuses on residential product development, supplemented
by high-quality commercial development and operation as well as by emerging business such as healthcare and
wellness. With regard to novel urbanization business, the Company will proactively implement the national strategic
deployment of urban renewal, coordinate regional distribution, concentrate relevant resources, and give full play
to its “four-in-one” advantages. The Company will focus on zoning development, large-scale urban renewal,
station-city integration, urban operation, etc., coordinate urban planning, construction, and operation management
to continuously improve the quality of the urban living environment and people’s life, striving to establish itself as a
leading domestic urban service operator.

4. Survey and design. The Company seeks to enhance its brand influence in the field of survey and design, train
high-end professionals, strengthen scientific and technological innovation, and provide strong support for the
Company’s general engineering contracting business. The Company will expand its survey and design business,
build the core competence of the brand, focus on the major directions of specialized development, achieve
distinctive and differentiated development, and enhance the original ability of product solutions. The Company will
create a highland of talents in survey and design, build a pipeline of high-end professionals, strengthen business
synergization and collaboration, and innovate business cooperation models. Taking advantage of development
opportunities such as the BRI, the Company will actively cooperate with entities within and outside its system to
expand its overseas survey and design business operations.

5. Strategic emerging industries. Based on its strengths in fulfilling its main responsibilities and developing primary
business, the Company will grasp the new trend of industry development, seize new opportunities presented by
derivative formats, foster new growth drivers, and spur development. Fully leveraging its competitive advantages,
the Company will continue to explore new business formats and cultivate new momentum to tap into strategic
emerging industries, including new-generation information technology, new materials, new energy and high-end
equipment. By 2025, the Company aims to create a number of growth poles in strategic emerging industries with
a pivotal and leading role.

6. International business. The Company strives to enhance overseas operations in both qualitative and quantitative
terms by adhering to the overseas high-quality development strategy and taking advantage of the business
opportunities brought by the BRI. The Company will build a coordinated and efficient organizational system,
consolidate its foothold in advantageous and key markets, identify potential markets, prudently tap into new
markets, and create a market system with a reasonable structure. Furthermore, the Company will draw on
advanced management practices and business philosophies from leading international enterprises to improve its
overall management.

During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, the Company will, based on the needs in the new phase of development,
implement the new development concept and accelerate the establishment of a new development pattern. With
promoting high-quality development as the theme and deepening the supply-side structural reform as the mainline,
the Company will seize the new opportunities brought by demand-side reforms following the country’s 14th Five-Year
Plan and the Long-range Objectives through the Year 2035 and proactively adapt to the new situation and meet new
challenges, seeking new opportunities at times of crises. Bearing in mind the overall strategy of the great rejuvenation
of the Chinese nation as well as the profound changes unseen in the world in a century, the Company will maintain
strategic focus and remain committed to development, and build on its advantages to rectify weak spots. Furthermore,
the Company will coordinate development and safety, and take full advantage of the domestic and international
markets and resources for more quality, efficient, sustainable and secure development, realizing its vision of “building a
world-class comprehensive investment and construction conglomerate with global competitiveness”.

(1) Operation plan
¥ Applicable N/A

In 2024, the Company plans to achieve more than RMB4.5 trillion in the value of newly signed contracts and a revenue
of more than RMB2.38 trillion. Adhering to the general work guideline of making progress while maintaining stability and
the new development concept, the Company will further highlight the primary task of high-quality development, focus
on the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects of strength”, and effectively and thoroughly carry out the “seven
major tasks”. Revolving around the key indicators of “one interest and five rates”, the Company aims to promote “stable
growth of one interest and continuous optimization of five rates”, highlight the value orientation, place greater emphasis
on improving the “five major values”, and strive to enhance the core functions and competitiveness.

It is important to note that the operation plan does not constitute a commitment to investors in terms of the Company’s
performance. Investors are advised to maintain sufficient risk awareness and to understand the difference between the
operation plan and performance commitments.
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(IV) Potential risks
¥ Applicable N/A
1. Safety, environmental protection and quality risks

In recent years, the work safety conditions have remained stable overall within the Company, with effective control
over violations of ecological and environmental protection and a steady improvement in the standard of project
quality control. However, due to the Company’s extensive and diverse construction projects, risks related to safety,
environmental protection and quality may still persist. The Company has been steadfast in reinforcing the foundation
of production safety, comprehensively investigating and remedying the risks and hazards of major or higher-level
production and safety accidents, and constructing high-quality “Safe CSCEC”. The Company’s ongoing efforts include
investigation and remediation of major ecological and environmental protection risks, aimed at preventing serious
incidents of environmental pollution and ecological damage. The Company has carried out an assessment of its quality
system and a special campaign to manage quality risks, promoting quality standardization and evaluation of quality
engineering projects. The Company has effectively put safety, environmental protection and quality management in a
more important and prominent position, ensuring consistent prevention of safety, environmental protection and quality
risks, and balanced development and safety at a higher level.

2. Customer credit risks

Due to the economic downturn, market regulation and local government debts, there are still many outstanding
claims in some of the Company’s projects. Some customers are less willing to make repayments due to adversely
affected solvency. The Company thus faces challenges in mitigating debt risks. The Company will tentatively establish
a customer credit management system to tighten the control over marketing quality at the source, improve the early
warning mechanism for high-risk customers, and continue to strengthen the ability to identify and resolve risks related
to payment collection of investment projects. The Company will ensure that the growth rate of accounts receivable is
lower than the increase in revenue by strengthening the collection management of commercial notes and accounts
receivable. The Company will take risk control and rights protection measures in a timely manner to tackle debt risks.
The Company will also focus on the resolution of significant risk events and continue to tackle the recovery of debts
with regard to key real estate enterprises.

3. Macro-economic risks

At present, profound changes unseen in a century are unfolding rapidly in the world. The international balance of
power is undergoing significant adjustments, and a new round of scientific and technological revolution and industrial
transformation is deepening. In China, the economic cycle is confronted with bottleneck issues, including insufficient
effective demand, overcapacity in some industries, and weak social expectations, making the foundation for economic
recovery still fragile. It still takes a process to resolve long-standing issues related to real estate, as well as local debt
and financial risks. The Company will strengthen macroeconomic research, catch close up with the national and local
investment and construction hot spots, and actively grow its footprint in strategic emerging industries. The Company
will evaluate the execution of the strategic 14th Five-Year Plan, adjust the business development strategy in a timely
manner, and effectively control the impact of macroeconomic fluctuations on the Company’s performance to achieve
the annual budget targets.

4. Cash flow risks

Due to the challenging external business environment, increased cash flow cyclical volatility made it more difficult to
manage operating cash flows. On the one hand, project owners are under significant financial strain due to the large
volume of debt burdens, leading to tight cash flows and continuous transfer of financial pressure to construction firms.
On the other hand, there has been an increase in the pressure of downstream rigid payments, including enterprises’
settlement of arrears and migrant workers’ wages. The Company will firmly uphold the earnings principle of “no profits
without cash flow” and continue to carry out the “special action for cash flow management enhancement”. We will
focus our efforts on strengthening cash flow budget management and monitoring, deepening governance over payment
collection of investment projects and the liquidation of special assets, advancing the unified management of accounts
receivable and payable, and intensifying the collection of overdue accounts receivable. Through these measures, we
strive to fulfill our annual budget targets.
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5. Operational performance risks

The severity of the downtrend in the real estate market is increasingly intensifying competition in the construction
market. On the one hand, owners of ongoing construction projects have exerted more stringent control over cost,
squeezing the profit margin of construction projects; on the other hand, profits from the real estate business have
declined. It is more difficult to monetize the slow-selling inventory, with pressure of overdue payments on investment
projects. The Company will strengthen the management of operational performance risks at the source, promote
governance of projects with potential losses, and systematically enhance the value creation capacity of projects. Taking
sales collection as the core and cash flow control as the starting point, the Company will dynamically monitor the
performance of real estate projects. The Company will supervise subsidiaries’ performance in operation planning, carry
out routine early-warning and alert against risks, and strengthen operation and maintenance performance appraisal, to
guarantee the stable and healthy development of the investment business.

The financial risks faced by the Company in its operating activities include market risks (mainly exchange rate, interest
rate and other price risks), credit risks and liquidity risks. In view of the unpredictability of the financial market, the overall
risk management plan of the Company seeks to reduce the potential adverse impact of such risks on the financial
performance. For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note X “Financial instruments and related
risks” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

For details of the Company’s goodwill and impairment, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V. 22
“Goodwill” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT".

(V) Miscellaneous
Applicable ™ N/A

VIl. Details of and Explanations for the Company’s Non-disclosure due to
Inapplicability of Rules or Other Special Reasons such as Involvement of
State or Trade Secrets

Applicable ™ N/A
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SECTION IV
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I. Information on Corporate Governance
™ Applicable [ N/A
() Standardized operation of corporate governance entities

During the Reporting Period, the Company operated strictly in accordance with the Company Law, the Securities
Law, and other relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (PRC), as well as the administrative
regulations issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) and the rules of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (SSE). It established and improved a standardized and comprehensive corporate governance structure, and
effectively constructed a set of systematic and complete corporate governance systems. The Company continued
to monitor legislative developments, comprehensively implemented the country’s latest corporate governance
requirements, and further revised the corporate governance system to maintain its scientific nature, rationality and
effectiveness. The Company has been a sample stock of the SSE Corporate Governance Index for 13 years in a row,
and has been awarded the best rating (Grade A) for information disclosure by the SSE for consecutive years. In 2023,
the Company won several capital market awards, including the “Best Practice Case of Corporate Governance”, “Best
Practice Case of Board of Directors of Listed Companies”, “ESG Best Practice Case” and “The Best Board of Directors
Award” under the “Gold Prize of Round Table” granted by China Association for Public Companies.
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Committee
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Appraisal Committee Board of Directors
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Corporate Governance Structure Chart
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1. Shareholders’ General Meeting

The Company convenes and holds general meetings in strict accordance with the Articles of Association and the Rules
of Procedure of the Shareholders’ General Meeting to ensure that all shareholders, especially minority shareholders,
enjoy equal rights to fully exercise their voting rights. For major matters that may affect the interests of minority
investors, the Company separately counts and announces the voting results of minority investors at the general meeting
to fully protect the legitimate rights and interests of minority investors. The Company provides on-site and online voting
methods for shareholders to participate in the general meetings to ensure that all shareholders have equal rights to
express their opinions and demands. Besides, the Company engages lawyers to attend the general meetings to confirm
and witness the convening procedures, matters to be considered, and the identities of the attendees to ensure the
legality and validity of the general meetings.

2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently comprises 7 directors, including 4 independent directors. There are 5 special
committees under it, namely the Strategy and Investment Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Supervisory Committee. The Board of Directors
convened a total of 23 meetings, covering 115 agenda items, throughout the year. The Company continued to
strengthen the construction of the Board of Directors, ensuring the effective execution of its functions and powers. The
Company remained committed to strategic foresight, identifying the strategic positioning of decision-making matters
in the overall situation of enterprise development and helping the Company think and plan from the perspective of
promoting development. The Company adhered to comprehensive research and judgment, with ongoing refinement
of the “4+2+2” pre-communication mechanism to gather opinions and suggestions from various stakeholders. The
Company adhered to the overall arrangement, systematically formulated an annual meeting plan, collected meeting
proposals monthly, and promoted “effective” meeting decision-making within a well-structured meeting framework. The
Company adhered to closed-loop management, gave full play to the role of the Supervisory Committee, and guided
and supervised the implementation of the proposals of the Board on a quarterly basis. During the Reporting Period,
the Company continued to establish and improve the system of the Board of Directors and organized the revision of
the Articles of Association, rules of procedure of the Board of Directors and special committees and other governance
systems to further optimize the operating rules of the governance bodies. The Company revised and optimized the
authorization scheme of the Board of Directors and perfected the operation mechanism of evaluation and adjustment
of the authorization of the Board of Directors. The Company implemented the requirements of the reform of the
independent directors system and added the mechanism of special meetings of the independent directors, so as to
promote the better functioning of the independent directors.

3. Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors currently comprises 5 supervisors, including 2 employee representative supervisors. The
structure and composition of the Board of Supervisors comply with the requirements of laws and regulations. The
Board of Supervisors holds meetings under the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of
Supervisors, conscientiously performs their duties, and supervises and inspects the performance of directors and
senior management personnel and the legality and compliance of the Company’s financial affairs, fully safeguarding the
legitimate rights and interests of the Company and shareholders. The office under the Company’s Board of Supervisors
assists in performing the duties of the Board of Supervisors.

(I) Information disclosure

The Company disclosed information in a true, accurate, complete, timely and fair manner in strict accordance with
the relevant regulations and requirements for information disclosure by listed companies, and continued to improve
the information disclosure system, enhance the quality of information disclosure and diversify information disclosure
channels, fully safeguarding the investors’ right to know and their legitimate rights and interests. In 2023, the Company
disclosed a total of 158 periodic reports, interim announcements and annexes, which timely and accurately conveyed
to the capital market the Company’s major decision-making matters, production and operation and development
results. The Company improved the “mandatory + voluntary” information disclosure management system and revised
the Administrative Measures for Information Disclosure and Internal Reports of Material Information and other rules to
ensure the compliance and effectiveness of the Company’s information disclosure. By combining statutory disclosure
and voluntary disclosure, the Company voluntarily disclosed information related to investors’ value judgment and
investment decisions, such as corporate strategy, finance, R&D, industry, and ESG, so as to enhance the granularity of
information disclosure. The Company strengthened its internationalized communication by consistently releasing regular
reports and interim announcements in English on its official website, overseas media matrix and other platforms to meet
the needs of global investors and partners. The English version of its annual report once again received international
professional accolades.
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() Investor relations management

The Company attached great importance to maintaining and shaping good investor relations management. Adhering
to the investor-oriented philosophy, the Company enriched investor communication channels and communicated with
investors through various channels such as performance briefings, general meetings, investment strategy meetings,
investor open days, and on-site surveys to take the initiative to understand investors’ concerns, demands and
suggestions. In 2023, the Company held three performance briefings for global investors, incorporating a mix of on-site
events, conference calls, announcement solicitation of issues, text-based interactions, and live video broadcasts,
attracting over 210,000 online views. The Company received 80 investor surveys, participated in 28 investment
strategy meetings organized by brokerage firms, and communicated with over 500 institutional investors. To enhance
international investor outreach, the Company expanded its promotional activities to Hong Kong SAR and Singapore
for the first time, and organized annual and semi-annual performance roadshows, covering more than 40 international
institutional investors. The Company continued to prioritize the protection of small and medium-sized investors,
answering more than 300 inquiries on investor hotlines, responding to 99 investor queries on the SSE e-interactive
platform, handling thousands of investor emails, and voluntarily releasing reports on investor protection efforts for
four consecutive years. The Company broadened the channels for investors to obtain information. The Company’s
WeChat public account platform about investor relations (CSCEC Investor Relations) published 191 promotional articles
throughout the year, which garnered widespread recognition from investors.

The Company strictly complied with the Administrative Measures for Information Disclosure and Internal Reports of
Material Information, the Administrative Measures for Accountability Regarding Major Errors in the Annual Report
Information Disclosure, the Regulations on the Management of Funds from Related Party Transactions, the Measures
on the Management of Shares and Changes in Shareholdings of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
in the Company, and the Administrative Measures on Insider Registration and other systems. There was no major
violation of relevant rules or non-compliance with the relevant CSRC regulations and requirements in terms of corporate
governance. The Company was not subject to administrative punishment or notice of criticism by the CSRC, nor was it
punished by other regulatory agencies or condemned by the stock exchange.

Whether the corporate governance is seriously non-compliant with laws, administrative regulations and the
requirements of the CSRC on the governance of listed companies; if yes, please provide the reasons

Applicable ™ N/A

Il. Specific Measures of the Controlling Shareholder and De Facto Controller
of the Company for Ensuring the Independence of the Company in Terms
of Assets, Personnel, Finance, Organization and Business; and Solutions,
Work Progress and Subsequent Work Plan for Addressing the Impact on
the Company’s Independence

Applicable ™ N/A

Information on the business of the controlling shareholder, de facto controller and other entities under their respective
control that are engaged in the same or similar business as the Company, as well as the impact of horizontal
competition or major changes in horizontal competition on the Company, the measures taken, the progress of the
solution and the follow-up solution.

Applicable ¥ N/A

The controlling shareholder of the Company is China State Construction. In December 2007, China State Construction
restructured its affiliates and all assets as a whole, initiated and established China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, and injected all its principal business and assets, liabilities, qualifications and brands into CSCEC
which was listed on the SSE in July 2009 as a whole. After the listing, China State Construction, as the substantial
shareholder, conducts operation and management activities mainly on the platform of CSCEC. As of December 31,
2023, the latest audited total assets, revenue and net profit of CSCEC each accounted for more than 99% of the
corresponding indicators of China State Construction. During the Reporting Period, the controlling shareholder of the
Company strictly regulated their own behavior, exercised their rights and performed their obligations in accordance with
the law. The Company strictly guarded against risks such as capital occupation and illegal guarantees by the controlling
shareholder and urged the controlling shareholder to fulfill its commitments and maintained independence from the
controlling shareholder in terms of assets, personnel, finance, organization, and business.
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lll. Overview of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Search index of the
designated website Date of disclosure
for publishing of resolutions
resolutions

Meeting Date

Resolutions

2022
May 19, 2023 WWW.sse.com.cn May 20, 2023
Annual General Meeting

Considered and approved the 2022
Work Report of the Board of Directors
of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the 2022 Work Report
of Independent Directors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the 2022 Work Report of the Board
of Supervisors of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
Proposal on 2022 Annual Final Accounts
Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
Proposal on 2022 Profit Distribution Plan
of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on
the 2022 Annual Report of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on the Implementation
of the 2022 Investment Budget and the 2023
Proposed Investment Budget Plan of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on 2023 Financial
Budget Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
Proposal on Guarantee Quota in 2023
of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on
2023 Bond lIssuance Plan of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on Re-appointment
of Internal Control Auditor in 2023 of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on Re-appointment of
Financial Report Auditor in 2023 of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on Repurchase of
Certain Participants’ Shares under Phases
Il and IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Schemes of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
Proposal on Amending the Regulations on
External Guarantee Management of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited and the Proposal on Nomination of
Mr. Ma Wangjun as an Independent Director
Candidate of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

2023
First Extraordinary August 21, 2023 WWW.Sse.com.cn August 22, 2023
General Meeting

Approved the Proposal on Adding Shan
Guangxiu as the Director of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited
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Search index of the
designated website Date of disclosure
for publishing of resolutions
resolutions

Meeting Date Resolutions

Considered and approved the Proposal
on Election of Supervisors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on Amending the
Articles of Association of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited, the Proposal on Amending the
Rules of Procedure for the Shareholders’
General Meeting of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
Proposal on Amending the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors of
China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on
the Second Tranche of Repurchase
and Cancellation in 2023 in Respect of
2023 Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, the
General Meeting Proposal on Amending the Regulations on
Management of Related Party Transactions
of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Comprehensive Service
Framework Agreement between China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, the Proposal
on the Renewal of the Financial Service
Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
and the Proposal on Amending the Work
Rules of Independent Directors of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

Second Extraordinary December 27, 2023  www.sse.com.cn  December 28, 2023

Preference shareholders with voting rights recovered request convening extraordinary general meetings
Applicable ™ N/A

Description of general meetings

¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, a total of 15 proposals were considered at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of the
Company, and all were approved by voting. One proposal was considered at the 2023 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company, which was approved by voting. A total of 9 proposals were considered at the 2023 Second
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company, and all were approved by voting. The resolutions were disclosed on
the websites of the SSE, the China Securities Journal, the Shanghai Securities News, the Securities Times and the
Securities Daily.
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Director

Mr. Zheng Xuexuan

Chairman and Secretary of the Leading Party Members (LPM) Group of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation; Chairman of CSCEC; professor-level senior engineer and PhD holder.
Mr. Zheng was general manager, Party Committee secretary and Chairman of CSCEC Algeria;
general manager of the Human Resources Department, assistant general manager, vice president,
director and president of CSCEC; and LPM Group member, deputy general manager, director,
LPM Group deputy secretary, chairman of labor union, Party Committee secretary and general
manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation. He has been LPM Group secretary
and Chairman of China State Construction Engineering Corporation as well as Chairman of
CSCEC since November 2021. He is an alternate member of the 20th CPC Central Committee, a
representative of the 17th National Congress of the Communist Party of China, a representative
of the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China, and is also a National Model
Worker.

Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang

Director, general manager, LPM Group deputy secretary of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation; director and president of CSCEC; senior engineer and master's degree holder.
Mr. Zhang successively served as principal and Party Committee secretary of China Nonferrous
Engineering and Research Institute; Chairman and general manager of China ENFI Engineering
Corporation; Standing Committee member of the Party Committee, deputy general manager,
director, general manager and Party Committee deputy secretary of Metallurgical Corporation
of China Ltd.; Standing Committee member of the Party Committee, Party Committee deputy
secretary, general manager, Party Committee secretary and director of China Metallurgical Group
Corporation; LPM Group member and deputy general manager of China Minmetals Corporation.
He has been LPM Group deputy secretary of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
since July 2020, director of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since August
2020, director of CSCEC since December 2020, general manager of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation and president of CSCEC since February 2022.

Ms. Shan Guangxiu

Director, LPM Group deputy secretary, chairman of labor union, Party Committee secretary
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation; director of CSCEC; senior economist
and master’s degree holder. Ms. Shan was deputy general manager and general manager of
the Human Resources Department (Cadre Affairs Department) of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation; Party Committee deputy secretary, director and deputy general manager
of China Construction First Group Corporation Limited, deputy general manager and LPM Group
member of China State Construction Engineering Corporation and vice president of CSCEC. She
has been director and LPM Group deputy secretary of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation since June 2023, director of CSCEC since August 2023, and chairman of labor
union and Party Committee secretary of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since
September 2023.
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Mr. Ma Wangjun

Independent director of CSCEC, senior accountant and master's degree holder. Mr. Ma has
been an independent director of CSCEC since May 2021. He was the director of the Finance
Department, deputy chief accountant, assistant president, chief accountant and LPM Group
member of COFCO, chief accountant and Party Committee member of China Travel Service
(Holdings) Hong Kong Limited. He has been a full-time external director of a central enterprise
since September 2022, an external director of China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation
since March 20283, an independent director of CSCEC since May 2023, and an external director
of China Construction Technology Co., Ltd. since September 2023.

Mr. Jia Chen

Independent director of CSCEC, researcher-level senior engineer and bachelor’s degree holder.
Mr. Jia successively served as Deputy Director-General of the Accounting Regulatory Department,
Deputy Director-General of the Comprehensive Department, Director General of the Department
of Treaty and Law, Director General of the Enterprises Department and Director General of the
Department of Tax Policy of the Ministry of Finance; LPM Group member and deputy general
manager of China North Industries Group Corporation Limited and an external director of China
Mobile Communications Group Co., Ltd. He has been an independent director of CSCEC since
January 2018 and an external director of China Three Gorges Corporation since January 2024.

Mr. Sun Chengming

Independent director of CSCEC, senior engineer and master’s degree holder. Mr. Sun was deputy
general manager and Party Committee member of China Merchants Group; Chairman, general
manager and Party Committee secretary of China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Holdings
Co., Ltd.; general manager and party branch secretary of China Merchants Industry Holdings Co.,
Ltd. He has been an external director of State Development and Investment Group Co., Ltd. since
December 2020 and an independent director of CSCEC since May 2021.

Mr. Li Ping

Independent director of CSCEC, senior engineer and master’s degree holder. Mr. Li was formerly
the Deputy Director-General of the Directorate General of Telecommunications, P&T, China; vice
chairman and executive deputy general manager of China Telecom (Hong Kong) Group Limited;
deputy general manager and LPM Group member of China Telecommunications Corporation;
external director of China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation, external director of
China Reform Holdings Corporation Ltd., among others. He has been an independent supervisor
and chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company since January 2020 and an independent director of CSCEC since May 2021.
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Supervisor

X

Mr. Zhang Yi

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, assistant president and security director of CSCEC; senior
economist and bachelor's degree holder. Mr. Zhang was the deputy general manager and general
manager of the Corporate Planning and Management Department of China State Construction,
deputy chief economist, executive general manager of the Infrastructure Business Department,
member of the Party Work Committee, general manager and deputy secretary of the Party Work
Committee of CSCEC, executive director of China Overseas Holdings Limited, Chairman of
China Construction South Investment Co., Ltd., executive director and general manager of China
Construction Infrastructure Co., Ltd., assistant general manager and general manager of the
Marketing and Project Management Department of CSCEC, assistant president, general counsel
and general manager of the Legal Affairs Department of CSCEC, chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd., and secretary of the Party Committee
and Chairman of China Northwest Architectural Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd. He has
been assistant president and security director of CSCEC since August 2023 and chairman of the
Board of Supervisors of CSCEC since December 2023.

Mr. Li Jianbo

Supervisor of CSCEC, professor-level senior engineer and master’'s degree holder. Mr. Li was
successively the chief of Human Resources Department, deputy general manager and general
manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation; and an executive director, Party
Committee secretary and vice chairman of China Overseas Holdings Limited. He has been a
supervisor of CSCEC since January 2018.

Mr. Tian Shifang

Supervisor of CSCEC, senior accountant. Mr. Tian was the deputy chief of the Audit Department
of China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.; director, chief accountant and Party
Committee member of The Second Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. of China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division; director, chief accountant and Party Committee member of China
Construction Port Engineering Group Co., Ltd.; and director, chief financial officer and Party
Committee member of China Construction Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co.,
Ltd. He has been a supervisor of CSCEC since January 2018.

Mr. Lv Xiaogang

Supervisor of CSCEC, senior political engineer, senior engineer and master’'s degree holder.
Mr. Lv was a secretary of the Youth League Committee and a Party Committee member of
China Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Corp., Ltd.; manager of Quanzhou Branch of
China Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Corp., Ltd.; and deputy chief, director, Standing
Committee member of the Party Committee, chairman of the labor union and executive of China
Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Corp., Ltd. He has been a supervisor of CSCEC since May
2021.

Mr. Qu Hongguang

Supervisor of CSCEC, professor-level senior engineer and bachelor’s degree holder. Mr. Qu was
the deputy head of No. 1 Branch, deputy dean and dean of Shanghai Branch, principal of East
China Branch of China Northwest Architectural Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd.; Party
Committee member, deputy general manager and executive of China Northwest Architectural
Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd. He has been a supervisor of CSCEC since May 2021.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhao Xiaojiang

LPM Group member and deputy general manager of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation; vice president of CSCEC; senior engineer and PhD holder. Mr. Zhao served as
a secretary in the General Office of the State Council (at both deputy bureau level and bureau
level); Deputy Mayor of Nanjing (temporary position); a Standing Committee member of the Party
Committee and Deputy Mayor (temporary position) of Nanjing; Deputy Secretary of Yangzhou
Municipal Committee (at the municipal level); Party Committee Deputy Secretary, Acting
Mayor, and Mayor of Lianyungang and LPM Group Secretary of the Municipal Government of
Lianyungang. He has been a LPM Group member of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation since November 2015, vice president of CSCEC since January 2016, and vice
general manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since January 2017.

Mr. Li Yongming

LPM Group member and deputy general manager of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation; vice president of CSCEC; professor-level senior engineer and master’s degree
holder. Mr. Li was the deputy general manager, director, general manager, Party Committee
deputy secretary, chairman and Party Committee secretary of China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. He has been a LPM Group member and deputy general manager
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation since February 2023 and vice president of
CSCEC since April 2023. He is a representative of the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China.

Mr. Wu Binggqi

LPM Group member and deputy general manager of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation; vice president, general counsel and chief compliance officer of CSCEC; senior
engineer and master’'s degree holder. Mr. Wu was vice president, strategic director, senior
vice president (general manager level of group business unit), Party Committee member, Party
Committee deputy secretary and president of China Resources Land Ltd. He has been a LPM
Group member and deputy general manager of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
since September 2023 and vice president, general counsel and chief compliance officer of CSCEC
since October 2023.

Mr. Huang Jie

LPM Group member and chief accountant of China State Construction Engineering Corporation;
vice president and chief financial officer of CSCEC; senior accountant and master’s degree holder.
Mr. Huang was a director, deputy general manager, chief accountant, and LPM Group member
of China Mobile Communications Group Hebei Co., Ltd., deputy general manager and general
manager of the Finance Department of China Mobile Communications Group Co., Ltd., general
manager of the Securities Affairs Department (Hong Kong institution) of China Mobile Limited, and
general manager of the Securities Affairs Department of China Mobile Communication Co., Ltd.
He has been a LPM Group member and chief accountant of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation since March 2024 and vice president and chief financial officer of CSCEC since April
2024.

Mr. Xue Keqging

Secretary to the Board of Directors of CSCEC; senior accountant and bachelor’s degree holder.
Mr. Xue served as deputy manager of financial and capital department, general manager of
investment department, general manager of capital department, general manager of financing and
investment department and general manager of finance department of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation; director, general manager and vice president of China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd.; executive director of China Overseas Holdings Limited; deputy chief accountant
and chief financial officer of CSCEC. He has been Secretary to the Board of Directors of CSCEC
since June 2018.
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Other explanation

¥ Applicable N/A

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

On February 7, 2023, the Company held the 31st meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which,
Mr. Huang Kesi stepped down from vice president of the Company due to age reason.

On April 27, 2023, the Company held the 34th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which,
Mr. Li Yongming was appointed as vice president of the Company; Mr. Ma Zeping stepped down from vice
president of the Company due to age reason.

On May 17, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company received the resignation letter from Mr. Xu Wenrong, an
independent director of the Company. Due to age reason, Mr. Xu Wenrong applied to resign from his positions as
an independent director and a member of the special committees under the Board of Directors.

On May 19, 2023, the Company held the 2022 Annual General Meeting, at which, Mr. Ma Wangjun was elected
as an independent director of the Company.

On June 5, 2023, the Company held the 37th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which, Mr.
Zhou Yong stepped down from vice president of the Company due to work adjustments.

On August 4, 2023, the Company held the 41st meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which,
Ms. Shan Guangxiu stepped down from vice president of the Company due to work adjustments.

On August 21, 2023, the Company held the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023, at which, Ms. Shan
Guangxiu was elected as a director of the Company.

On October 26, 2023, the Company held the 47th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at
which, Mr. Wu Bingqgi was appointed as vice president and general counsel of the Company; Mr. Wang Yunlin
stepped down from general counsel of the Company.

On December 26, 2023, the Board of Supervisors of the Company received the resignation letter from Mr.
Shi Zhiping, chairman of the Board of Supervisors. Due to age reason, Mr. Shi Zhiping applied to resign from
his positions as a supervisor of the third session of the Board of Supervisors and chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company.

On December 27, 2023, the Company held the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023, at which, Mr.
Zhang Yi was elected as a supervisor of the Company.

On December 27, 2023, the Company held the 26th meeting of the third session of the Board of Supervisors, at
which, Mr. Zhang Yi was elected as chairman of the third session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.

On April 17, 2024, the Company held the 55th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which,
Mr. Wang Yunlin would step down from vice president and chief financial officer of the Company due to age
reason.

On April 18, 2024, the Company held the 56th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, at which,
Mr. Huang Jie was appointed as vice president and chief financial officer of the Company.
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(I Incumbent and resigned directors, supervisors and senior management during the
Reporting Period

1. Positions in the Company’s shareholder

™ Applicable O N/A

Name of the Company’s

Positions in the Company’s

Commencement date of the term  Expiry date of the term of

s shareholder shareholder of office office
Zheng Xuexuan C“'F‘a Stgte Construcﬁlon LPM Group secretary, Chairman November 2021 /
Engineering Corporation
Zhang Zhaoxiang Chlr]a Stgte Construcﬁlon LPM Group deputy secretary, July 2020, August 2020, February /
Engineering Corporation director, general manager 2022
China State Construction Director, LPM Group deputy June 2023, June 2023 /

Shan Guangxiu

Engineering Corporation

secretary

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

LPM Group member, deputy general
manager

June 2020, June 2020

June 2023, June 2023

China State Construction

LPM Group member, deputy general

Zhao Xiaojiang Engineering Corporation manager November 2015, January 2017 /
Li Yongming Chma Stgte Construc.tlon LPM Group member, deputy general February 2023, Feoruary 2023 /
Engineering Corporation manager
Wu Binggi Chma Stgte Construc.tlon LPM Group member, deputy general September 2023, September 2023/
Engineering Corporation manager
Huang Jie China Stgate Construc.tion LPM Group member, chief March 2024, March 2024 /
Engineering Corporation accountant
Wang Yuniin E“'F‘a State Construction LPM Group member, chief November 2018, December 2018 March 2024, March 2024
ngineering Corporation accountant
. China State Construction LPM Group member, deputy general February 2023, February
Ma Zeping Engineering Corporation manager November 2015, January 2017 2023
China State Construction LPM Group member, deputy general
Zhou Yong Engineering Corporation manager December 2018, January 2019 May 2023, May 2023
Explanation
on positions in Nil
the Company’s
shareholder

2. Positions in other entities

™ Applicable [ N/A

Expiry date
Name Entity name Positions Commenceme[\t date of of the term of
the term of office .
office
Ma Wangjun Ohina O”. & Gas Pipeline Network External director March 2023 /
Corporation
Ma Wangjun China Construction Technology Co., Ltd. External director September 2023
Jia Chen China Three Gorges Corporation External director January 2024 /
Sun Chengming ét;ﬂeth)developmem and Investment Group External director December 2020 /
. . . Chairman of the Board of
Li Ping Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Supenvisors, independent January 2020 /

Limited Company supervisor

Explanation on positions in other /
entities
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(Il) Remunerations of directors, supervisors and senior management

™ Applicable [ N/A

Decision-making procedures for remunerations of the
directors, supervisors and senior management

The business performance evaluation and personal performance
evaluation are carried out by SASAC of the State Council and the
Board of Directors, and the allocation of remuneration is subject
to approval by SASAC of the State Council and the Board of
Directors.

Does a director recuse himself/herself when the Board of
Directors discusses his/her remuneration

Yes

Recommendations form the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee or special meetings of independent
directors regarding the remuneration of directors,
supervisors, and senior management

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, along with the
independent directors, reviewed and expressed concurring
opinions on the Company’s annual performance assessment and
remuneration plan for senior management.

Basis for determining the remunerations of the directors,
supervisors and senior management

Remunerations are determined based on the relevant policies of
SASAC of the State Council on the remuneration management of
heads and external directors of central enterprises as well as the
remuneration management measures of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited.

Actual payments of remunerations of the directors,
supervisors and senior management

The total remuneration (including basic salary, performance
bonus, insurance benefits and allowances) received by the
current directors (excluding independent directors), supervisors
and senior management of the Company for the year was
RMB3,005,400. The total allowances of the independent directors
for the year were RMB240,000.

Total remunerations actually received by all the directors,
supervisors and senior management at the end of the

Reporting Period

RMB3,245,400

(IV) Changes in directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company

™ Applicable [ N/A

Name Positions Change Reason for the change
Shan Guangxiu Director Election Work needs
Ma Wangjun Independent director Election Work needs
Zhang Yi Chairman of the Board of Supervisors Election Work needs
Li Yongming Vice president Appointment Work needs
Wu Bingai Vice president, general counsel Appointment Work needs
Huang Jie Vice president, chief financial officer ~ Appointment Work needs
Xu Wenrong Independent director Resignation Age
Shi Zhiping Chairman of the Board of Supervisors Resignation Age
Shan Guangxiu Vice president Resignation Work needs
Wang Yunlin g;:r?efarlesgjjﬁst,elchlef financial officer, Resignation Age
Ma Zeping Vice president Resignation Age
Zhou Yong Vice president Resignation Work needs
Huang Kesi Vice president Resignation Age

(V) Explanation on punishment imposed by securities regulatory authorities in the past three

years
O Applicable ™ N/A
(Vl) Miscellaneous

O Applicable ™ N/A
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V. Details of Board Meetings during the Reporting Period

Resolutions

30th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

February 6, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the Proposal on Entrusting
China Southwest Architecture to Manage the Yangtze River Framework Plan
of CSCEC

31st meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

February 7, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on Resignation of Huang Kesi as
Vice President of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

32nd meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

March 30, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 9 proposals and reports, including
the Proposal on the Implementation of the 2022 Investment Budget and
the 2023 Proposed Investment Budget Plan of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

33rd meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

April 17, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 22 proposals and reports, including the
2022 Work Report of the Board of Directors of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

34th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

April 27, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 7 proposals, including the Proposal on
2023 Q1 Financial Analysis Report of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

35th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

May 8, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the Proposal on
Nomination of Mr. Ma Wangjun as a Candidate for Independent Director of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

36th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

May 23, 2023

Considered and approved 5 proposals, including the Proposal on Election
of Mr. Ma Wangjun as a Member of the Strategy and Investment Committee
Under the Third Session of the Board of Directors of the Company

37th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

June 5, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on Resignation of Mr. Zhou Yong as
Vice President of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

38th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

June 13, 2023

Considered and approved 3 proposals, including the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of Plot 003 Located in Sijiging, Haidian District,
Beijing by China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd.

39th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

June 27, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of the Plot Located on the East Side of Taibei
Road, Jiang’an District, Wuhan by China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Group Co., Ltd.

40th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

July 17, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the Proposal on the
Establishment of Overseas Legal Center (Dubai) of CSCEC

41st meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

August 4, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 3 proposals, including the Proposal on
Adding Shan Guangxiu as the Director of the Third Session of the Board of
Directors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

42nd meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

August 22, 2023

Considered and approved 3 proposals, including the Proposal on
Supplementation of Members of the Special Committees Under the Third
Session of the Board of Directors of the Company

43rd meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

August 29, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 9 proposals and reports, including the
2023 Semi-annual Work Report of the Board of Directors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

44th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

September 6, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real Estate Development
Project of the Plot Located in Shangyong Park, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
by China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

45th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

October 17, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 7 proposals and reports, including the
Proposal on the Real Estate Development Project of the Plot located in
Longhua Street, Xuhui District, Shanghai by COHL

46th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

October 25, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real Estate Development
Project of the Plot Located on the East Side of Yangzijiang Avenue, Jianye
District, Nanjing by China Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.

47th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

October 26, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 8 proposals and reports, including the
Proposal on Appointment of Wu Binggi as Vice President of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

48th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

November 6, 2023

Considered and approved 3 proposals, including the Proposal on the
Participation of China Construction (South Pacific) Development Co Pte Ltd
in the Real Estate Development Project of a Private Residential Plot Located
at Lorong 1 Toa Payoh, Singapore
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Meeting

Date

Resolutions

49th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

November 26, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the Proposal on
the Implementation of the Urban Renewal Project on the East Side of
WenChong, Huangpu District, Guangzhou by China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd. through Equity Acquisition

50th meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

December 7, 2023

Considered and approved 14 proposals, including the Proposal on
Proposing to Hold the Second Extraordinary General Meeting of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited in 2023

51st meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

December 14, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on Amending the Rules on the
Work of Independent Directors of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

52nd meeting of the third
session of the Board of
Directors

December 27, 2023

Considered, approved and heeded 7 proposals and reports, including
the Proposal on Amending the Administrative Measures for Information
Disclosure and Internal Reporting of Material Information of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

VI. Directors’ Performance of Duties

(I) Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and general meetings
Attendance at Board meetings Attendance
Number of of general
Name of director il':dhee;::s;‘q meetings that ., qance in  Attendance i ionce by Isi:e;:?:o?\bfsoim meetings
director should be person 557 TGS proxy Absence 1.5 consecutive Numl;e rof
attended during communication - meetings
the year attended
Zheng Xuexuan No 23 22 11 1 0 No 1
Zhang Zhaoxiang No 23 20 11 3 0 No 2
Shan Guangxiu No 11 10 4 1 0 No 0
Ma Wangjun Yes 17 17 8 0 0 No 2
Jia Chen Yes 23 23 11 0 0 No 1
Sun Chengming Yes 23 23 11 0 0 No 1
Li Ping Yes 23 23 11 0 0 No 3
Xu Wenrong Yes 6 6 3 0 0 No 0
Explanation on absence in person for Board meetings for two consecutive times
O Applicable ™ N/A
Number of Board meetings held during the year 23
Of which: Number of meetings held on-site 12
Number of meetings held by means of communication 11
Number of meetings held on-site combined with means of communication 0

(I) Obijection of the directors on matters related to the Company

O Applicable ™ N/A
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(ll) Miscellaneous
¥ Applicable N/A

The Company’s independent directors reviewed and supervised the performance of the management of the Company,
who concurrently served as senior executives of the Company’s controlling shareholder, China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, and expressed the following independent opinions: Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang, Ms. Shan Guangxiu,
Mr. Wang Yunlin, Mr. Zhao Xiaojiang, Mr. Ma Zeping, Mr. Zhou Yong, Mr. Li Yongming and Mr. Wu Bingqgi earnestly
and diligently fulfilled their commitments, performed their duties as senior management of the Company as a priority,
well handled the relationship between the Company and the controlling shareholder, and maintained the interests of
the Company and all shareholders during their concurrent position in China State Construction in 2023; they did not do
anything that would harm the interests of the shareholders of the Company, especially minority shareholders because of
their concurrent position in China State Construction.

VIil.Special Committees under the Board of Directors
¥ Applicable N/A

() Members of special committees under the Board of Directors

Special committees Members
Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan
Strategy and Investment Committee Members: Zhang Zhaoxiang, Shan Guangxiu, Ma Wangjun, Jia

Chen, Sun Chengming, Li Ping
Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan

Nomination Committee Members: Zhang Zhaoxiang, Shan Guangxiu, Ma Wangjun, Jia
Chen, Sun Chengming, Li Ping

Chairman: Ma Wangjun

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
Members: Jia Chen, Sun Chengming, Li Ping

Chairman: Jia Chen

Audit and Risk Committee
Members: Ma Wangjun, Sun Chengming, Li Ping

Chairman: Jia Chen

Supervisory Committee
Members: Ma Wangjun, Sun Chengming, Li Ping

(Il) Special committee’s performance of duties

The Board of Directors of the Company established the Strategy and Investment Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Supervisory Committee,
to carefully study and deliberate on issues related to investment, sustainable development, nomination and risk
management, and effectively exert the full brewing and the decision-making support function of the special committees.
In 2023, the special committees under the Board of Directors held 32 meetings in total and considered 65 proposals
(including 14 reports).
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(Il) Special committee meetings

1. The Audit and Risk Committee held 6 meetings during the Reporting Period

Date

Proposals/Reports

Important opinions and recommendations

Performance of
other duties

March 30, 2023

Considered, approved and listened
to 3 reports and proposals,
including the Report on the
Performance of Duties of the Audit
and Risk Committee of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors
of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited for
2022

—

. The truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of
the Report on the Performance of Duties of the
Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors
of the Company for 2022 were recognized.

2. The Audit Committee affirmed the audit work for
2022 and the audit plan for 2023.

3. The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

Considered, approved and listened
to 11 proposals, including the

—_

. After full communication with the management,
understanding and examination of the basic
information of Ernst & Young Hua Ming, relevant
certification documents of practicing qualifications,
business scale, personnel information, professional
competence, investor protection ability,
independence and integrity status, etc., the
Company determined that Ernst & Young Hua Ming

April 13, 2023 Auditors’ Report on 2022 Financial has the relevant business audit qua\yificatio.ns and
Statements and Internal Control can meet the needs of the Company’s audit work.
Audit from Ernst & Young The Audit Committee recommended to re-appoint
Ernst & Young Hua Ming as the internal control
auditor and the financial report auditor of the
Company for 2022.

2. The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

1. The truthfulness, completeness and accuracy

Considered and approved the of the 2023 Q1 Financial Analysis Report were
Proposal on 2023 Q1 Financial recognized.
April 26, 2023 Analysis Report of China State

Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

2. The proposal was approved at the meeting and
was submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

August 28, 2023

Considered and approved 6
proposals, including the Proposal
on 2023 Interim Financial Analysis
Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

—_

. The truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of
the 2023 Interim Financial Analysis Report and the
Internal Audit Report for the First Half of 2023 of
the Company were recognized.

2. The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

October 26, 2023

Considered and approved 2
proposals, including the Proposal
on 2023 Q3 Financial Analysis
Report of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

—

. The truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of
the 2023 Q3 Financial Analysis Report and the
2023 Q3 Audit Report were recognized.

2. The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

December 7, 2023

Considered and approved the
Proposal on Approving the
Qualification of Subsidiaries to Carry
out Currency Derivative Business

The proposal was approved at the meeting and was
submitted to the Board of Directors for consideration.
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2. The Nomination Committee held 4 meetings during the Reporting Period

Date

Proposals/Reports

Important opinions and recommendations

Performance of
other duties

April 26, 2023

Considered and approved 2
proposals, including the Proposal on
Appointment of Li Yongming as Vice
President of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited,
and the Proposal on Resignation
of Ma Zeping as Vice President of
China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

May 8, 2023

Considered and approved the
Proposal on Nomination of Mr.
Ma Wangjun as a Candidate of
Independent Director of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

The proposal was approved at the meeting and
was submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

August 4, 2023

Considered and approved the
Proposal on Adding Shan Guangxiu
as a Director of the Third Session of
the Board of Directors of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited

The proposal was approved at the meeting and
was submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

October 26, 2023

Considered and approved 2
proposals, i.e. the Proposal on
Appointment of Wu Binggi as Vice
President of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited,
and the Proposal on Appointment
of Wu Bingqi as General Counsel of
China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

3. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee held 3 meetings during the Reporting Period

Date

Proposals/Reports

Important opinions and recommendations

Performance of
other duties

April 13, 2023

Listened to, considered and
approved 3 proposals and reports,
including the Proposal on Appraisal
Results and Remuneration
Encashment for Senior Management
of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited for
2021

The proposals were approved at the meeting
and were submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

October 26, 2023

Considered and approved the
Proposal on Appraisal Results and
Remuneration Encashment for
Senior Management of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited for 2022

The proposal was approved at the meeting and
was submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

December 7, 2023

Considered and approved the
Proposal on the Repurchase and
Cancellation of the Second Tranche
of Shares in 2023 under the Phase
IV Restricted A Share Incentive
Scheme of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

1. The implementation of equity incentive shall
have a reasonably determined scope and order
of participants with the focus on performance;
effective ways shall be further explored to enhance
the Company’s performance and market value
through the implementation of equity incentive,
and give play to the role of “strong incentive and
mandatory restraint” of equity incentive.

2. The proposal was approved at the meeting and
was submitted to the Board of Directors for
consideration.
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4. The Strategy and Investment Committee held 15 meetings during the Reporting Period

Date

Proposals/Reports

Important opinions and
recommendations

Performance of other duties

February 6, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including
the Proposal on PPP Project of Yangpu Shugang
Expressway Project in Hainan Province by China
Construction Infrastructure and Other Units

The proposals were approved at the
meeting and were submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

March 30, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the
Implementation of the 2022 Investment Budget and
the 2023 Proposed Investment Budget Plan of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

April 13, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the
Proposal on 2023 Bond Issuance Plan of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

The proposals were approved at the
meeting and were submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

May 8, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the
Strategic Path of “One Enhancement, Six Aspects of
Strengthening and Six Aspects of Commitments” of
CSCEC

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

June 13, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the
Proposal on the Real Estate Development Project of
Plot 003 Located in Sijiging, Haidian District, Beijing
by China Construction Second Engineering Bureau
Ltd.

The proposals were approved at the
meeting and were submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

June 27, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of the Plot Located
on the East Side of Taibei Road, Jiang'an District,
Wuhan by China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Group Co., Ltd.

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

July 17, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the
Real Estate Development Project of Executive
Condominium at Tampines Street 62 Parcel B,
Singapore by China Construction (South Pacific)
Development Co Pte Ltd

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

August 22, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the
Implementation of the Urban Renewal Project
at Shuangsha Community, Huangpu District,
Guangzhou by China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. through Equity
Acquisition

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

September 6, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of the Plot Located in
Shangyong Park, Haizhu District, Guangzhou by
China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp.
Ltd.

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

October 17, 2023

Considered and approved 2 proposals, including the
Proposal on the Real Estate Development Project of
the Plot Located in Longhua Street, Xuhui District,
Shanghai by COHL

The proposals were approved at the
meeting and were submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

October 25, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of the Plot Located on
the East Side of Yangzijiang Avenue, Jianye District,
Nanjing by China Construction Fifth Engineering
Division Corp., Ltd.

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

October 26, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the Real
Estate Development Project of the North China
Branch Headquarters Base in Fengtai District, Beijing
by China Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp., Ltd.

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

November 6, 2023

Considered and approved 3 proposals, including the
Proposal on the Participation of China Construction
(South Pacific) Development Co Pte Ltd in the Real
Estate Development Project of a Private Residential
Site Located at Lorong 1 Toa Payoh, Singapore

The proposals were approved at the
meeting and were submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

November 16, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on the
Implementation of the Urban Renewal Project in East
Side of Wenchong, Huangpu District, Guangzhou by
China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd.
through Equity Acquisition

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

The Committee held a special
communication meeting for
independent directors to listen
to and discuss the proposals.

December 27, 2023

Considered and approved the Proposal on
Adjustment of Equity-related Matters of China
Construction Capital (Shanghai) Management
Co., Ltd. (FEZHA(LE)EEERATE) by China
Construction Capital

The proposal was approved at the
meeting and was submitted to the
Board of Directors for consideration.
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The Supervisory Committee held 4 meetings during the Reporting Period

Performance of

Date Proposals/Reports Important opinions and recommendations other duties
Listened to 2 proposals and reports The Committee believed that the Company
including the Report on the 2023 Q1’ had a detailed and actual understanding of the
Im Iemgntation pof the Resolutions implementation of the resolutions of the Board of
April 13, 2023 P Directors and the major investment projects, and

of the Board of Directors of China
State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

kept abreast of progress in a timely manner and
supervised the prevention and mitigation of risks,
which was of great guiding significance.

August 28, 2023

Listened to 3 proposals and reports,
including the Report on the 2023 H1
Implementation of the Resolutions
of the Board of Directors of China
State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

The Committee believed that the Company
had a detailed and actual understanding of the
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of
Directors and the major investment projects, and
kept abreast of progress in a timely manner and
supervised the prevention and mitigation of risks,
which was of great guiding significance.

October 26, 2023

Listened to the Report on the
2023 Q8 Implementation of
the Resolutions of the Board
of Directors of China State
Construction Engineering

The Committee believed that the Company
had a detailed and actual understanding of the
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of
Directors and the major investment projects, and
kept abreast of progress in a timely manner and
supervised the prevention and mitigation of risks,

Corporation Limited which was of great guiding significance.

The Committee believed that the Company had

a detailed and actual understanding of the major
investment projects and major investment risk /
projects, and kept abreast of progress in a timely
manner and controlled risks accurately, which was of
great guiding significance.

Listened to the Report on the
Progress of the Implementation of
the Company’s Major Investment
Projects and Major Investment Risk
Projects

December 27, 2023

(IV) Specific explanation on objection
Applicable ™ N/A

VIll. Explanation of the Board of Supervisors on the Risks Identified
Applicable ¥ N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors performed its duties conscientiously in accordance with the
Company Law, the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, the Articles of Association, the Rules of
Procedure of Board of Supervisors and other regulations. Focusing on risk prevention and control, the Board of
Supervisors supervised the significant events in operation and management of the Company, financial conditions,
internal controls and directors’ and senior management’s performance of duties, and has no objection to the supervised
matters during the Reporting Period.

The Company organized and convened meetings of the Board of Supervisors in a standardized manner to perform
statutory supervisory duties. A total of 8 meetings were held throughout the year, namely the 19th to 26th meetings of
the third session of the Board of Supervisors, during which 47 proposals were considered and approved and written
announcements were disclosed. Members of the Board of Supervisors actively attended important meetings of the
Company. During the Reporting Period, they attended 3 general meetings, 13 Board meetings, and 6 meetings of the
Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors. They also attended important daily meetings of the Company. The
Board of Supervisors maintains close work communication with the Board of Directors and management, and continues
to strengthen supervision over the performance of duties of directors and senior management.
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IX. Employees of the Parent Company and Major Subsidiaries as at the end
of the Reporting Period

() Employees

Number of existing staff of the parent company 404
Number of existing staff of major subsidiaries 382,490
Total number of existing staff 382,894
Number of resigned or retired staff to whom the parent company and major subsidiaries are responsible for 67 635
the expenses (total number of retirees at the end of 2023) '
Expertise
Category Number
Operation and management 13,675
Project construction 216,744
Survey and design 23,103
Properties development 37,301
Professional management 92,071
Total 382,894
Education background
Level Number
Master’s degree or above 37,705
Undergraduate degree 263,597
Associate degree 43,287
Technical secondary school and below 38,305
Total 382,894
=2 H = H
SO Expertise $O Education background
56.7% 68.9%
24.0% ‘ 11.3%
. 10.0%
9.7% 9.8%
F 6.0%
3.6%
[ | Operation and management B Master’s degree or above
B Project construction B Undergraduate degree
M Survey and design W Associate degree
M Properties development M Technical secondary school and below

B Professional management
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(Il Remuneration policy
¥ Applicable N/A

The Company adheres to market and performance orientation, and strengthens remuneration evaluation and incentives.
The Company closely associates remuneration distribution with corporate benefits and personal performance, and the
remuneration is directly proportional to performance, which effectively mobilizes the enthusiasm, initiative and creativity
of employees. Meanwhile, with a focus on value creation, the Company adheres to linkage of payroll growth and
corporate financial performance growth, strengthens benchmarking management, improves performance-based salary
management, and strengthens the pertinence, accuracy and effectiveness of remuneration distribution. The Company
continuously improves the effective and constrained remuneration distribution system to promote corporate vitality,
competitiveness and creativity.

() Training program
¥ Applicable N/A

Focusing closely on the 14th Five-Year Plan and key annual priorities, adhering to a clear-cut stand on politics to ensure
the full and complete implementation of central government documents, and relying on leadership, professionalism and
occupational capabilities, the Company further improved the key talent cultivation project, steadily promoted the training
systems, and continuously improved education and training ability, to strengthen overall coordination and organization
guidance, promote the smooth implementation of education and training, and provide internal drivers for the Company’s
talent team building.

(IV) Labor service outsourcing
Applicable ¥ N/A
X. Profit Distribution Plan or Proposed Reserves Capitalization Plan
() Formulation, execution, or adjustment of cash dividend policy
¥ Applicable N/A
1. Specific policy on profit distribution

According to the Articles of Association, the Company may distribute dividends in cash, stock, a combination of
both and other means permitted by laws and regulations; the Company shall give priority to profit distribution in the
form of cash dividends. In the event that the Company is operating well and the Board of Directors determines that
the Company’s share price does not match the size of its share capital, and the distribution of dividends in stock is
in the interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole, the Company may propose stock dividend and other
distribution proposals when the conditions for distribution in the form of cash dividends are satisfied. Except for special
circumstances as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company shall distribute dividends in cash
when the Company records a profit in current year and the accumulated undistributed profits are positive. The profits
distributed in cash each year shall, in principle, be not less than 15% of the distributable profits of that year.

According to the requirements of the Dividend Plan of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
for the Next Three Years (2021 to 2023), during the planning period, the Company may distribute profits to ordinary
shareholders in cash, stock, a combination of both and other means permitted by laws and regulations; the Company
shall give priority to profit distribution in the form of cash dividends where the conditions for cash dividends are
satisfied; at the same time, based on the annual profit and cash flow situation, taking into account the size of the
Company’s share capital and shareholding structure, the Company may consider adopting stock dividends and other
means of profit distribution, provided that the conditions for cash dividend are satisfied. If there are profits available for
distribution after making up losses, withdrawing reserve funds and paying agreed dividends to preferred shareholders in
accordance with the law, and if the auditor issues a standard unqualified audit report on the Company’s financial report
for that year, except for special circumstances determined by the Board, the Company may distribute profits to ordinary
shareholders in cash. The profits distributed in cash each of the next three years shall, in principle, be not less than
16% of the distributable profits of that year and the cumulative profits distributed in cash in the last three years shall be
not less than 30% of the average annual distributable profits achieved in the last three years.
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2. Execution of cash dividend policy during the Reporting Period

On May 19, 2023, the Proposal on 2022 Profit Distribution Plan of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited was considered and approved at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of the Company through a combination of
on-site open ballot and Internet voting; on June 20, 2023, the Company released the Announcement on Implementing
Rights and Interests Distribution for 2022 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited; on June
30, 20283, the Company distributed cash dividends to all shareholders, marking the full implementation of the profit
distribution plan for 2022. The Company distributed profits in strict compliance with relevant provisions of the Articles
of Association and the resolutions passed at the general meetings.

3. Proposed annual profit distribution plan

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Company Law and the Articles of Association, the proposed profit
distribution plan for 2023 has been formulated on the basis of the 2023 Profit Distribution Plan of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited considered and approved at the 56th meeting of the third session of
the Board of Directors of the Company by taking into account shareholder returns, the Company’s capital demand for
business development and other factors.

Proposed profit distribution plan for 2023: the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company under the
consolidated statements amounted to RMB54.264 billion; undistributed profit of the parent company was RMB51.815
billion, and the Company proposed to distribute cash dividend of RMB2.7145 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares to all
shareholders. As of the date of disclosure, the total share capital of the Company was 41,619,952,444 shares and
cash dividend proposed to be distributed on this basis was approximately RMB11.298 billion (tax inclusive). Cash
dividend of the Company in the year accounted for 20.82% of the net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent
company under the consolidated statements. In case of any change in the total share capital of the Company prior
to the record date of shareholders for profit distribution, the Company proposes to maintain the distribution ratio per
share unchanged, and to adjust the total distribution amount accordingly. An announcement containing details of the
adjustments will be made separately.

Above proposed profit distribution plan was considered and approved at the 56th meeting of the third session of
the Board of Directors of the Company. The approval on this proposed plan is still subject to the consideration and
approval by the 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company. A combination of on-site open ballot and Internet voting
will be adopted at the 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company so as to ensure that minority shareholders have
adequate opportunities to express their opinions and requests, thereby fully safeguarding their legal interests.

4. Explanation on the cash dividend to be distributed by the Company for the current year
(1) Industry where the Company operates and its characteristics

The construction industry in which the Company operates faces fierce market competition. The projects undertaken
are characterized by large volume and long production cycle, and the capital demand for maintaining daily operation
is relatively large. The Company accurately seized the opportunities of national policies, enhanced the development
of its main business, continued to deepen its project performance management, accelerated innovation, continuously
strengthened bottom-line thinking and actively responded to the fierce industry competition.

(2) Development stage of the Company and its business model

The Company has been actively involved in the national strategy to promote a more reasonable regional layout and
accelerate reform, so as to highlight the high-quality development trend, adopt new development concepts and
benchmark against world-class enterprises, and continuously enhance global competitiveness and brand influence.
In 2023, the Company hit a new record high in terms of the value of newly signed contracts, revenue, and net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company. The advantages of the whole industry chain have been consolidated, and
the development quality of each business segment has been continuously improved.

(3) Profitability and capital needs of the Company

Since the listing of the Company, the return on net assets has remained at a high level in the industry, delivering stable
investment returns to its shareholders. As the Company deepens its reform and innovation, it needs to increase its
investment in innovative business and new technologies. In addition, the Company needs to accumulate a certain
amount of retained earnings to support the Company’s sustainable development and enhance the Company’s overall
value, which is in the long-term interests of the majority of shareholders.

(4) Reasons for the Company to keep part of the undistributed profit

Currently, the world economy is experiencing mounting downward pressure, and the international situations are
changing rapidly. To enhance its resilience against risks, the Company needs to keep a certain amount of retained
earnings. The retained earnings accumulated by the Company over the years are attributable to all investors. The
Company will continue to improve the efficiency of capital operations, enhance the Company’s overall profitability, and
offer better returns to investors in the future.

(5) Purpose of the undistributed profit retained by the Company and its estimated income

The retained undistributed profit will be used to support the Company in capturing strategic development opportunities
and to deepen the Company’s strategy, increase structural adjustment and transformation and upgrading, and to seek
new profit growth points. CSCEC has maintained a stable cash dividend policy for years, demonstrating the ability to
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maintain stable development and sustained dividend distribution. In 2024, the Company will continue to focus on the
major national strategic deployment and the 14th Five-Year Plan, seizing the current window of important strategic
opportunities for economic development to better reward shareholders.

(6) Measure taken by the Company to facilitate the participation of minority shareholders in cash dividend
decision-making

The Company has established and improved a multi-channel investor communication mechanism. Minority shareholders
can express their opinions and requests on the cash dividend policy through various methods such as the investor
hotline, CSCEC Investor Relations email address, and the SSE E-interactive platform. At the Company’s annual general
meeting, minority shareholders can vote on the profit distribution plan through online voting. In addition, the Company
also actively responds to the concerns of minority shareholders in a timely manner through cash dividend briefings and
other forms.

(7) Measures to be taken by the Company to enhance investor returns

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulatory Guidelines No. 3 for Listed Companies — Cash Dividends
Distribution of Listed Companies and other relevant laws and regulations, normative documents, and the Articles of
Association, the Company increases the transparency and operability of profit distribution decisions, so as to facilitate
shareholders’ supervision over the Company’s operations and profit distribution. The Company will continue to uphold
the operation philosophy of bringing long-term sustainable returns to investors. The Company will also continue
to optimize profit distribution plans and increase investor returns in consideration of factors such as the current
macroeconomic situation and major capital expenditure arrangements.

This proposed profit distribution plan complies with the relevant laws, regulations and the Articles of Association with
compliant and transparent profit distribution procedures. CSCEC has maintained a stable cash dividend policy with
an increase in the cash dividend to be distributed per share for the current year over last year. This demonstrates the
ability of CSCEC to maintain stable development and sustained dividend distribution, as well as its determination to
uphold the investor-oriented philosophy and reward shareholders with excellent operating results.

Cash dividends since listing
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(Il) Plans or proposed plans for profit distribution or reserve capitalization of the Company in
the last five years (including the Reporting Period)

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Net profit
attributable Percentage of
to ordinary the net profit
Amount of Number shareholders of attributable
Ve & eTofeand Number of bonus dividends DEETerE Amount of cash the Company in to ordinary
o shares per 10  distributed per s dividends (tax the consolidated shareholders of
distribution capitalized per N . h . X
shares 10 shares (RMB) 90 e res inclusive) financial the Company in
(tax inclusive) statements the consolidated
for the year financial
of dividend statements (%)
distribution
2023 0 2.7145 0 11,297,736 54,264,173 20.82
2022 0 2.527 0 10,596,831 50,950,301 20.80
2021 0 2.50 0 10,485,215 51,407,661 20.40
2020 0 2.147 0 9,006,272 44,924,929 20.05
2019 0 1.85 0 7,763,538 41,881,399 18.53
(1) Specific explanation on cash dividend policy
¥ Applicable O N/A
Was it in compliance with the requirements of the Company’s Articles of Association and the v
. ; Yes [ No
resolutions of the general meeting
Were the dividend distribution criteria and proportion well-defined and clear ¥ ves [INo
Were related decision-making processes and mechanisms complete ¥ Yes [INo
Did independent directors fulfill their duties and play their roles ¥ Yes [INo

Were the minority shareholders given adequate opportunities to voice their opinions and requests and ¥ Yes [No
were their legitimate rights and interests fully protected

(IV) If, during the Reporting Period, the Company records a profit and the profit distributable
to the ordinary shareholders of the parent company is positive but there is no proposed
plan for distribution in the form of cash dividends, the Company shall disclose in detail the
reasons, and the purpose and utilization plan of the undistributed profits

O Applicable ™ N/A
(V) Proposed plans for profit distribution and reserves capitalization for the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable O N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Number of bonus shares per 10 shares /
Amount of dividends distributed per 10 shares (RMB) (tax inclusive) 2.7145
Number of shares capitalized per 10 shares /
Amount of cash dividends (tax inclusive) 11,297,736
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company in the consolidated financial statements 54264173
for the year of dividend distribution e
Percentage of the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company in the consolidated 20.82
financial statements (%)

Amount for cash repurchases of shares recorded as cash dividends /
Total amount of dividends (tax inclusive) 11,297,736
Percentage of the total amount of dividends to the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 20.82

Company in the consolidated financial statements (%)
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Xl. Equity Incentive Scheme, Employee Stock Ownership Plan or Other
Employee Incentive Schemes of the Company and Their Implications

() Relevant incentive matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further

progress or changes in subsequent implementation

¥ Applicable N/A

Summary of matters

Index for details

300.0576 million shares were unlocked as the first tranche in 2022 under Phase IV
restricted A share incentive scheme, and the date of listing and trading was January 16,
2023.

Announcement on the First Tranche
of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect
of Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme and Listing of
Shares published on January 10,
2023.

184.966 million shares were unlocked as the third tranche in 2022 under Phase Il
restricted A share incentive scheme, and the date of listing and trading was January 19,
2023.

Announcement on the Third Tranche
of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect
of Phase Il Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme and Listing of
Shares published on January 12,
2023.

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase restricted shares subject
to restriction on unlocking from 148 participants involved in Phases Il and IV restricted
A share incentive schemes. A total of 14,918,400 restricted shares were repurchased, of
which, the number of restricted A shares under Phases Il and IV were 5,874,000 shares
and 9,044,400 shares, respectively. The repurchase of Phase lll restricted A shares was
based on the price of RMB3.468 per share, and Phase IV based on the price of RMB3.06
per share. The total amount of funds for the repurchase was RMB48,313,367.49 (interests
inclusive). After all the repurchased shares are canceled, the registered capital of the
Company will be reduced by RMB14,918,400.

Announcement on the Partial
Repurchase and Cancellation of Phase
IIl'and IV Restricted Shares to Reduce
the Company’s Registered Capital &
Notification to Creditors published on
May 20, 2023.

The Company’s repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved a total of 148
participants of the Company’s Phases Ill and IV restricted A share incentive schemes
(including 33 participants, from whom both Phases Il and IV restricted shares would be
repurchased and canceled concurrently). A total of 14,918,400 restricted shares were
proposed to be repurchased and canceled (5,874,000 and 9,044,400 restricted shares under
Phases Il and IV respectively). After the completion of the repurchase and cancellation, the
registered capital and share capital of the Company will be reduced by RMB14,918,400
(shares) to RMB41,919,514,444 (shares).

Announcement on Repurchase and
Cancellation of Partial Restricted
Shares for Equity Incentives published
on July 28, 2023.

Due to the Company’s failure to achieve the unlocking performance target, the unlocking
condition of 299,562,000 restricted shares held by 2,727 participants in the second
tranche in 2023 under Phase IV restricted A share incentive scheme were not met,
triggering the share repurchase clause. As considered and approved at the 50th meeting of
the third session of the Board of Directors and the 25th meeting of the third session of the
Board of Supervisors, the Company repurchased and canceled restricted shares from such
participants.

Announcement on the Repurchase
and Cancellation of the Second
Tranche of Shares in 2023 under
the Phase IV Restricted A Share
Incentive Scheme published on
December 8, 2023.

The Company repurchased 299,562,000 Phase IV restricted shares in the second tranche,
accounting for 32.85% of the granted 912,036,000 Phase IV restricted shares and
0.71% of the total share capital of the Company. The repurchase of Phase IV restricted
A shares was based on the price of RMB3.06 per share. The total amount of funds for
the repurchase was RMB916,659,720. After all the repurchased shares are canceled, the
registered capital of the Company will be reduced by RMB299,562,000.

Announcement on the Repurchase and
Cancellation of the Second Tranche of
Phase IV Restricted Shares to Reduce
the Company’s Registered Capital &
Notification to Creditors published on
December 28, 2023.

The Company’s repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved a total of 75
participants of the Company’s Phase IV restricted A share incentive scheme. A total of
9,630,000 restricted shares were proposed to be repurchased and canceled. The total
amount used for the repurchase was RMB30,694,678.86 (interests inclusive). All such
funds were the Company’s own capital. After all the repurchased shares are canceled, the
registered capital of the Company will be reduced by RMB9,630,000.

Announcement on Repurchase
of Phase IV Restricted A Shares
from Certain Incentive Participants
published on January 10, 2024.

The repurchase and cancellation of restricted shares involved a total of 2,727 participants,
and a total of 299,562,000 restricted shares were proposed to be repurchased and
canceled. After the completion of the repurchase and cancellation, the Company will have
a total of 299,662,000 remaining restricted shares for equity incentives. The repurchase
of the repurchase and cancellation was based on the price of RMB3.06 per share. All
funds used for the repurchase of restricted shares were the Company’s own capital. The
total amount used for the repurchase was RMB916,659,720, excluding transfer fees,
stamp duties and other related expenses borne by the Company due to the repurchase of
restricted shares.

Announcement on Repurchase and
Cancellation of Partial Restricted
Shares for Equity Incentives published
on February 27, 2024.
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(I) Incentives not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent progress

Information on equity incentives

O Applicable ™ N/A

Other explanation

¥ Applicable O N/A

For implications of the restricted shares of the Company on its financial position and operating results, please refer to
the relevant information of Note XlIl “Share-based payment” to the financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL

REPORT”.

Information on employee stock ownership plan

O Applicable ™ N/A

Other incentives

O Applicable ™ N/A

(Ill) Stock options granted to directors and senior management during the Reporting Period

¥ Applicable O N/A

Unit: 0,000 shares

Number of N ear
b N_umber 2l . restricted  Market price at
shares restricted shares Grant price of
Name Position held at the  newly granted restricted shares e e | e e SEOBLAT] | ) OTelal LD
P g shares shares  at the end of Reporting Period
beginning of during the (RMB) the Reporting (RMB0’000)
the Reporting Reporting Period '
. Period
Period
zheng Chairman 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Xuexuan
Zhar)g Director and president 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhaoxiang
Shan Director 16 0 0 16 0 0 0
Guangxiu
Ma Wangjun Independent director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jia Chen Independent director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sun . Independent director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Chengming
Li Ping Independent director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhao Xiaojiang Vice president 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Li Yongming Vice president 85 0 0 37 48 48 230.88
. Vice president, chief
Huang Jie financial officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
. Secretary to the Board
Xue Keging of Directors 88 0 0 40 48 48 230.88
Former independent
Xu Wenrong director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Former vice president,
Wang Yunlin  chief financial officer, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
general counsel
Ma Zeping Former vice president 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zhou Yong Former vice president 16 0 0 16 0 0 0
Huang Kesi Former vice president 16 0 0 16 0 0 0
Total / 221 0 0 125 96 96 461.76
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(IV) Appraisal mechanism for senior management and the establishment and implementation of
incentive mechanism during the Reporting Period

¥ Applicable N/A

For details, please refer to the relevant information under “IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this
section.

Xll.Establishment and Implementation of Internal Control Rules during the
Reporting Period

¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to optimize the internal control system, revised and improved the
internal control rules, and ensured the effective implementation of various rules. It further streamlined and standardized
various business processes to improve the Company’s operation and management level and risk prevention and
control capabilities. The Company has continuously improved its internal control process, covering all aspects
including decision-making, execution, supervision, and feedback. The Company’s improved internal control are more
comprehensive and effective.

For details of the Company’s internal control evaluation report, please refer to the 2023 Internal Control Evaluation
Report of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited considered and approved at the 56th meeting of
the third session of the Board of Directors of the Company and disclosed on the website of the SSE.

Description of material defects in internal control during the Reporting Period

Applicable ¥ N/A
Xlll.Management and Control of Subsidiaries during the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A

The Company has formulated various management systems for subsidiaries, including the Administrative Measures for
Subsidiary Governance Structure, the Administrative Measures for the Organizational Structure of the Headquarters of
Subsidiaries, the Administrative Measures for the Evaluation and Appraisal of the Operating Results of Subsidiaries, and
the Management Regulations for Subsidiaries with Equity Participation. Relying on the above management systems,
the Company has established an internal control system based on the Articles of Association. The internal control
system primarily comprises investment, property rights, finance, corporate governance, performance appraisal, material
information reporting, information disclosure and other management systems, and has been strictly and thoroughly
implemented. The Company can effectively manage and control its subsidiaries by setting approval and authorization
permissions in the internal control system.

XIV.Information on Internal Control Audit Report
¥ Applicable N/A

Upon approval by shareholders at the general meeting, the Company engaged Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special
General Partnership) to audit the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control related to the financial report as of
December 31, 2023. The auditor has issued a standard unqualified internal control audit report.

For details of the internal control audit report, please refer to the 2023 Internal Control Audit Report of CSCEC
disclosed on the website of the SSE.

Whether the Internal Control Audit Report is disclosed: Yes

Type of opinion on the Internal Control Audit Report: Standard unqualified opinion
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XV. Self-inspection and Rectification in the Special Governance Action of
Listed Companies

The Company thoroughly implemented the spirit and requirements of the Opinions on Further Improving the Quality of
Listed Companies issued by the State Council and the Announcement on Launching Special Actions on Governance
of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC to actively promote self-inspection and rectification under special corporate
governance actions. The self-inspection findings show the Company is in compliance with laws, regulations and
requirements regarding corporate governance in all aspects. Specifically, the Company has established a relatively
sound corporate governance system in accordance with the laws and regulations such as the Company Law, the
Securities Law and the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies. In addition, the shareholders’ general
meetings, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors and the management operate in a standardized manner.
The directors, supervisors and senior management are diligent and conscientious. The internal control system of
the Company is sound and effective. The information disclosure is open and transparent. No matter that may have
a material adverse impact on the interests of investors is identified. The Company will continue to consolidate the
achievements of corporate governance, improve corporate governance, and promote the sustainable, healthy and
high-quality development of the Company.

XVI.Business Ethics and Anti-corruption

CSCEC remains committed to business ethics and anti-corruption governance, demonstrating zero tolerance for all
corruptions. In 2023, the Company compiled a supervision checklist for disciplinary inspection and supervision, focusing
on business ethics and anti-corruption and clarifying the supervision requirements for headquarters departments and
secondary units. Integrity training was actively promoted for all employees and integrity talks were conducted with
employees on a quarterly basis. The Company released the integrity culture concept of “advocate ethical behaviors to
improve the construction, and advocate integrity to build the foundation” to continuously consolidate the results of the
integrity culture construction and promote the practice of business ethics. In addition, the Company also formulated
measures for handling complaints and charges, and implemented the “weekly registration” system for reports. With the
system as a guide and the information system as a means, the Company continued to improve the non-compliance
reporting process and standardize procedures for accepting and transferring reports, improving the efficiency of
handling reports.

XVIl.Miscellaneous
Applicable ¥ N/A
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SECTION V
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

I. Environmental Information

Whether mechanisms related to environmental protection have been established Yes
Environmental protection funds invested during the Reporting Period (Unit: RMB100 million) 6.98

() Explanation on environmental protection efforts of the highly polluting companies and their
key subsidiaries as announced by the environmental protection authority

Applicable ¥ N/A

(I) Explanation on environmental protection efforts of companies other than highly polluting
companies

¥ Applicable N/A
1. Administrative penalties due to environmental issues
¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, a total of 119 construction projects of the Company’s subsidiaries received administrative
penalties due to environmental problems such as construction noise, dust, sewage and solid waste, involving a total
fine of approximately RMB7.1772 million. As at the disclosure date of this Report, all of the issues involved in the
aforementioned administrative penalties have been rectified.

2. Disclosure of other environmental information with reference to highly polluting companies
¥ Applicable N/A

The Company attaches great importance to ecological environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, there
were no emergency environmental incidents in the Company. The impact of the production and operation activities of
the Company on the environment mainly included noise, dust and solid waste, most of which took place in the course
of construction. To minimize the impact on the environment, prior to the commencement of a project, the Company
identified the environmental factors and prepared preliminary planning and schemes for environmental protection and
green construction in accordance with relevant requirements. The Company was also equipped with and operated in a
standardized manner various pollution prevention facilities such as automatic spraying, vehicle washing, sedimentation
tanks and acoustic sheds, gave priority to new technologies and processes of energy conservation and environmental
protection to reduce energy consumption and pollutant discharge, so as to minimize the impact of production on the
environment.

3. Reasons for not disclosing other environmental information
Applicable ¥ N/A

(Il) Relevant information conducive to protecting ecology, preventing pollution, and fulfilling
environmental responsibilities

¥ Applicable N/A

Guided by President Xi Jinping’s Thought on Ecological Civilization, the Company thoroughly implemented the decision
and deployment on strengthening ecological environmental protection of the CPC Central Committee and the State
Council. The Company persevered in integrating the concept of “ecological priority and green development” into the
entire life-cycle of project investment, design, construction and operation, accelerating the transformation of green
construction methods, and continuously improving the level of environmental protection.
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1. Strengthening green investment. During the Reporting Period, the Company actively expanded its investments
in the ecological and environmental protection field. We successively invested in 12 projects in the clean energy
and water environmental protection sectors, including the Fengdongkou Pumped Storage Power Station Project in
Liuyang City, Hunan Province, and the Comprehensive Treatment EOD Project in the Chenghu Area of Wuzhong
District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province, with a total investment of about RMB71.154 billion.

2. Strengthening green design. During the Reporting Period, the Company effectively promoted green and
low-carbon design. With a focus on application scenarios such as ultra-low energy consumption buildings,
buildings with virtually zero energy consumption, and zero-carbon buildings, the Company consistently promoted
the adoption of green and low-carbon technologies across all stages of building life-cycle starting with design
as the driving force. The Science and Technology Innovation Building of China Construction Fourth Bureau was
officially designated by the China Association of Building Energy Efficiency as a virtually zero energy consumption
building. Additionally, the Company was designated as a national demonstration project for advanced green and
low-carbon technologies by the National Development and Reform Commission.

3. Strengthening green construction. As the first advocator of green construction in the industry, the Company
integrates the green concept into the whole process of project construction. We rigorously enforce requirements
imposed by the government for green construction, duly carry out ecological environment protection and
energy conservation and emission reduction work, actively promote the application of green and low-carbon
technologies, products, and services at construction sites, and strengthen green demonstration and leadership
efforts, actively creating green demonstration projects. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s construction
of the Shenzhen Guanlan Cultural Town project was designated as one of the first 30 pilot projects nationwide
for “zero waste construction sites”. Additionally, three projects — Jinhu Wetland in Zhijiang, Hubei, Wuliangsuhai,
and Guangyang Island in Chongging — were included in the first 15 excellent and typical cases of the national
“landscape projects” initiative.

4. Strengthening green operation. During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to strengthen the
operation of water environmental protection while actively expanding into new business areas such as pumped
storage energy and photovoltaic power generation. Three projects have already been put into operation,
including the Guangdong Longchuan Distributed Photovoltaic Power Generation Project and the Langfang
Distributed Roof Photovoltaic Power Generation Project, totaling a cumulative electricity generation of 43.839
million kilowatt-hours. The progressive implementation of green operation businesses not only provides strong
support for achieving “dual carbon” targets but also plays an important role in improving ecological environment
governance and enhancing living environments.

5. Strengthening green technological R&D. The Company has been consistently increasing its efforts in green
and low-carbon technology research and development, innovating and applying cutting-edge construction
techniques, and exploring innovative construction models to drive the transition of production methods towards
green and low-carbon practices. During the Reporting Period, the Company established the “CSCEC Green
Construction Engineering Research Center (FREZNFERIETIZHARA L) focusing on two major directions:
“Buildings centered around Health and Comfort” and “Industrialization Technology of Building Mechanical and
Electrical Systems and Decoration”. This center devoted itself to the research and development of interdisciplinary
innovative technologies in design, construction, operation, and maintenance of healthy and suitable dwelling
environment throughout the entire chain, as well as green and healthy electrical and mechanical installations
and decoration technology, so as to improve the ecological environment continuously with the high-standard
development of science and technology.

The Ulansuhai Nur Ecological Restoration Project
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(IV) Measures taken to reduce carbon emissions during the Reporting Period and the effects

Whether carbon reduction measures
have been adopted

Emission reductions (Unit: tons CO, /
equivalent)

Yes

Using carbon reduction technologies in the production process (e.g., application
technology of distributed photovoltaic power station mounted on the exterior wall
surface of climbing frames, assembly bridge technology, application technology
of photovoltaic and energy storage microgrid system for temporary construction,
technology of light storage and diesel integrated mobile energy supply module,
application technology of compliant aggregate and low cement cementitious material
concrete, and the Company’s construction of a database of green and low carbon
Types of carbon reduction measures  building materials and a database of green and low-carbon advanced technologies on
(e.g., using clean energy to generate  the basis of the CSCEC Carbon Emission Monitoring and Management Comprehensive
electricity, using carbon reduction  Service Platform provide cases and data support for energy saving and carbon
technologies in the production  reduction in the Company’s production and operation). Developing and producing
process, and researching, developing  new products that contribute to carbon reduction (e.g., ultra-low-energy building
and producing new products that  products equipped with high-performance envelope structures, high-airtightness door
contribute to carbon reduction) and window systems, high-efficiency air conditioning and ventilation systems, and
energy-saving electrical and lighting systems; the “Photovoltaic, Energy storage, Direct
current and Flexibility” series, super-charging piles, and photovoltaic modules with
imitation aluminum panels; a series of products of low-noise and high-efficiency defrost
air-cooled heat pumps; and the recycled new decorative materials inorganic artificial
stone products achieve the full-component utilization of solid wastes, with a utilization
rate of more than 95%, obtaining three-star certification for China’s green building
materials).

Explanation
¥ Applicable N/A

Embracing the new development philosophy, CSCEC actively explored the development model of green construction,
with a keen focus on achieving “Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality” strategic goals. The Company pushed ahead with
the commercialization and industrialization of innovative products, led the transformation of the construction industry
toward environmentally friendly and low-carbon practices, and contributed to the high-quality development of the
construction industry as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the Company set up the “Special Technical Research and Development Project for
Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality in 2023”, focusing on seven key areas such as “new zero-energy building
construction technology”, “new integrated photovoltaic and energy storage building components”, and “zero-carbon
transformation technology for existing public buildings”. This initiative has led to further advancement of energy-saving
and carbon reduction engineering technologies, gradually developing a series of ultra-low energy consumption and
zero-carbon building technology systems and innovative products. The Company released 117 “CSCEC’s Advanced
Technology Achievements in Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality”, covering innovative achievements in waste
utilization, existing building renovations, building energy conservation, green building materials, and green construction.
These achievements were rigorously evaluated by industry experts and widely noted for reaching international
advanced and leading standards. Additionally, in collaboration with Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology,
the Company established the “National Key Laboratory for Green Buildings”. This laboratory operates independently
and adopts a “one room, two systems, multiple centers” model, striving to create a new construction national team of
“Human-in-the-Loop” for the construction industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively explored new pathways for green and low-carbon development,
promoting the application of new technologies, materials, processes, and products to lead green and low-carbon
development in the industry. Notably, the Company pioneered the first large-scale residential building project with
virtually zero energy consumption in one of the frigid regions in China, the Zhonghai Heshan Daguan project. With a
total construction area of nearly 170,000 square meters, the project achieved a heating energy-saving rate of 92%,
filling a gap in the application of large-scale nearly zero energy buildings in frigid climate regions. The independently
designed and constructed CSWADI Lakeside Design Headquarters was a demonstration project for virtually zero
energy buildings under China-US energy cooperation, incorporating nearly 40 low-carbon energy-saving technologies
to achieve virtually zero energy consumption throughout the buildings and zero energy consumption in certain sections.
Furthermore, the Shanghai Jiading Future City Project, with a construction area of nearly 600,000 square meters, was
designed as a low-carbon community with virtually zero carbon emission attained in certain sections. It was designated
as a China-Switzerland Zero-carbon Building Demonstration Project by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic of China and the Swiss Development Cooperation Agency, also selected as part
of the 14th Five-Year Plan national key research and development program for “zero-carbon building standard research
and technical integration demonstration research.
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The Zero-energy Office Building Project

Il. Social Responsibility

() Whether to disclose social responsibility report, sustainability report or ESG report
separately

¥ Applicable O N/A

The Company will disclose sustainability report on the website of the SSE. Please refer to the relevant parts of the
report for the information.

(I) Detailed description of the social responsibility work

™ Applicable O N/A

Amount/

Content bl

External Donation, Charity Project

Free assistance and support, donations and charitable
contributions to several assisted areas, including Kangle County,
Kang County and Zhuoni County in Gansu Province where the
Total investment (RMBO’ 000) 15,989.85 Company provides paired assistance, Changting County in Fujian
Province where the Company provides partner assistance, and
Yengisar County in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region where
assistance is provided by the Company’s subsidiaries.

Mainly used for revitalization initiatives in terms of industry,

o . , human resources, culture, ecology and organizational structures,

Including: Capital (RMBO" 000) 15,495.99 including donations and capital investment for public welfare
made by the Company.

Including donations of books, projectors, printers, etc. to
Material equivalence (RMBO’ 000) 493.86  assisted areas, as well as donations and investment in supplies
for public welfare made by the Company.

Including residents who benefited from the assistance and
donations in Kangle County, Kang County and Zhuoni County in
Gansu Province where the Company provides partner assistance,

Number of people benefited (person) 327,175 people benefited in Changting County of Fujian Province where
the Company provides partner assistance and people benefited
in Jishishan County, Gansu Province where the Company
provides assistance for earthquake relief efforts.
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Explanation

¥ Applicable N/A

CSCEC set up the “CSCEC brand building and social responsibility working leadership group (FFE R @AEEIZHM
HETETENT/NA)” to actively fulfill its social responsibilities. The Company continuously develops a brand-led
social responsibility management model, emphasizing work safety, ensuring product quality, optimizing supply chain
management, supporting talent development, contributing to community building, and promoting brand leadership
initiatives. The Company persevered with the promotion path of “business lines as the horizontal basis and subsidiaries
as the vertical extension (#EmEBZLLAEM. YPEFEAFEM)” to ensure that the social responsibility tasks are
executed consistently throughout the entire system and implemented level-by-level.

1. Adhering to the safety bottom line. CSCEC adheres firmly to the principle of “people first and life first” and
upholds the bottom line of “developing without sacrificing safety to integrate development and safety”. At all
levels, achieving “zero incidents” is the ultimate goal of our work safety efforts. We persistently strive for a starting
point of zero incidents and work towards that goal, eliminating potential hazards, addressing issues at their root
and preventing serious and extraordinarily serious production safety accidents. CSCEC has put the responsibility
for work safety into practice by signing the Work Safety Responsibility Commitment (Z &%= EH)) or
Safety Management Agreements (ZE£EIENIN)) at each level, supervising its subsidiaries and sub-suppliers
to establish and improve work safety management systems, prompting sub-suppliers to take out work safety
insurance in accordance with the law, and safeguarding the rights and interests of the employees in terms of
work safety.

2. Strengthening product responsibility. Based on ISO 9001 quality management certification, CSCEC
has established a sound organizational structure, system framework and supervision framework of quality
management. The Company has also developed regulations such as the CSCEC Construction Enterprise
Quality Management Measures (FEZHAE LI BREEEN L)), providing unified institutional safeguards to
ensure project quality in compliance with the regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved
a 100% pass rate of completed projects, with no incidents of general or higher-level quality-related accidents.
Driven by technological innovation, the Company establishes a platform system for technological innovation,
meticulously arranges talent team development, scientific research and development investment, and research
projects development, and continuously advances green and intelligent construction as well as industrialization
development. We prioritize the protection of intellectual property rights, and have developed regulations such as
the CSCEC Scientific and Technological Achievements Management Measures ((FFERARHLMREEIENE)),
and established sound patent and copyright protection mechanisms to step up the promotion and transformation
of technological achievements. Besides, we engage with customers in diverse ways, prioritize customer privacy
and information protection, and conduct customer satisfaction surveys to continuously improve service quality.

3. Enhancing supply chain management. CSCEC places great emphasis on supply chain management,
continuously optimizing the Company’s supply chain management system, and collaborating with partners
to fulfill social responsibilities. We have established regulations such as the CSCEC Subcontractor Resource
Management Measures ((FFERIR DM A RREERNE)) to carry out supplier management through procurement
platforms. With fully-established supplier management and review processes in place, we give priority to
suppliers with good reputation, sound systems, and authoritative green building material certifications, avoiding
cooperating with suppliers with serious adverse records. We establish a robust and regular evaluation system and
assessment mechanism, combining online evaluation and offline tracking management to comprehensively assess
suppliers. Based on evaluation results, we categorize suppliers and blacklist suppliers with negative records. We
continuously improve supplier penalties and exit mechanisms to create a sustainable supply chain management
system.

4. Promoting employee development. CSCEC consistently prioritizes human resources system building and
employee development, and has formed a leadership group for talent work and implementing the Party’s
responsibility for talent management. We push forward the classification-based reform of human resources
assessment mechanisms, and tailor evaluation systems to fit the growth patterns and characteristics of
different human resources. We coordinate the development of talent teams in key fields, conducting evaluation,
recruitment and cultivation for high-level innovative professional and technical talents in a hierarchical and
categorized manner. Furthermore, we enhance our internal employee education and training system, emphasizing
political leadership and leveraging the pioneering, foundational, and strategic role of cadre education and training.
Therefore, a series of distinctive training brands and programs with CSCEC characteristics have been established,
which ensures a reliable supply of human resources for building a world-class enterprise.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 97



I s-C 0N Vv ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

5. Cultivating the culture of responsibility. We thoroughly implement Xi Jinping’s theoretical observations based
on in-depth studies, and develop the Company’s culture to deepen the “133” work system. We have introduced
corporate culture handbook titled Creed of CSCEC (2024 Edition) (FE15%%(20244R))), the code of conduct
manual of Ten Principles and Nine Chapters (2024 Edition) {+E82/15(2024kR))), as well as an overseas cultural
integration edition. These materials imbue CSCEC’s spirit, corporate mission, vision, and core values with new
connotations and interpretations. This further deepens our sense of responsibility, guiding employees to harness
the power of culture as a strong driving force for practicing social responsibility.

6. Enhancing communications on responsibility-related matters. The Company duly fulfills its social
responsibilities, and communicates with communities to promote community development. The Company
has incorporated community communication and engagement into the Social Responsibility Work Guidance
Manual (2= ETEIESFM)), the Cultural Integration Manual (XX {bEEEF M), and the Cultural Integration
Implementation Manual (3XhBEEHITFM)) for overseas organizations. We carried out the “Hundreds of
Lectures into the Construction Site (H17E i T#)” campaign themed for care and protection of left-behind
children in rural areas, and held 100 thematic lectures, benefiting millions of people to date. In 10 countries
including the United Arab Emirates, we initiated the sustainable strategic brand project of “Lu Ban Craftsman
Program”, conducting over 240 training sessions, exchanges, and internships. In addition, we hosted 292 skill
competition events, reaching over 20,000 participants. The related cases have been included in the “Top Ten
Outstanding Cases in the Annual Image Building of Chinese Enterprises Overseas”. We also published sustainable
development reports in both Chinese and English, along with six country reports. Three of our cases were
selected for the Research Report on Corporate Social Responsibility of Central Enterprises (2023) (R {15
FEEZF(2023))), the Research Report on Overseas Social Responsibility of Central Enterprises (2023) (s>
WEIME S RAEEE$(2023))), and the Research Report on ESG of Listed Central Enterprises (2023) ((F5 1l
AT ESG K F(2023))) by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission.
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lll. Information on Consolidating and Expanding the Results in Poverty
Alleviation, Rural Revitalization and Other Specific Tasks

¥ Applicable N/A

Poverty Alleviation and Rural

Revitalization Projects Amount/Content Remarks

Provide free assistance funds to Kangle County,
Zhuoni County, Kang County in Gansu Province,
Changting County in Fujian Province, Yengisar
County in Xinjiang, and other areas.

Mainly used for the revitalization construction
Including: Capital (RMB0’000) 15,495.99 in terms of industry, human resources, culture,
ecology and organizational structures.

Material equivalence 353.86 Donations of books, projectors, printers, etc. to
(RMBO’000) ) assisted areas.

Number of people benefited (person) 317,175/

Industrial assistance, employment
assistance, education assistance,
consumption assistance and
Party building assistance, helping
to address prominent issues to /
ensure poor population in rural
areas do not have to worry about
food and clothing and have access
to compulsory education, basic
medical services and safe housing

Total investment (RMBO’000) 15,849.85

Types of assistance (e.g., poverty
alleviation by developing industries,
creating jobs, and developing education)

Explanation
¥ Applicable N/A
(I) Planning of rural revitalization

Guided by President Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, the Company and
its controlling shareholder, China State Construction, fully embraced the spirit of the 20th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China. They duly implemented the strategic decisions and arrangements made by the Party
Central Committee and the State Council, provided precise and pragmatic targeted assistance to Kangle County,
Zhuoni County, and Kang County in Gansu Province (referred to as the three counties of Gansu), and offered partner
assistance to Changting County in Fujian Province. Related subsidiaries were paired up to provide assistance,
as required by local Party committees and governments, to a total of three counties, two towns, and 23 villages
nationwide. The Company formulated the Key Points of Rural Revitalization in 2023 ({2023 £ RMTIEESR)),
issued the List of Paired Assistance and Partner Assistance Tasks in 2023 (2023 FEE S EHMXT O21E TIEE
£758)), and convened six meetings on rural revitalization. Furthermore, the Company formulated detailed plans for
annual rural revitalization, leveraging the Company’s advantageous resources across the entire construction industry
chain to support rural revitalization in assisted areas on a comprehensive scale focusing on five issues: industry, human
resources, culture, ecology, and organization.

(I) Summary of rural revitalization

Focusing on five major revitalization initiatives, the Company offered comprehensive assistance to create livable,
business-friendly, and beautiful rural areas in assisted regions. Firstly, industrial revitalization: the Company fully
leveraged the unique resources in the construction industry, donated and constructed various facilities including
agricultural technology demonstration bases, water plants, and tourism infrastructure to support local industrial
revitalization. Secondly, human resources-based revitalization: the Company utilized the resources of higher
education institutions and focused on cultivating grassroots-level cadres and qualified professionals, thus laying a solid
foundation of talent for agricultural and rural development. Thirdly, cultural revitalization: the Company created
multiple village-level civilized practice demonstration sites, rural libraries, cultural squares, and organized various cultural
training sessions, promoting traditional culture and core socialist values. Fourthly, ecological revitalization: the
Company promoted green construction projects for the purpose of improving village appearance and rural garbage
and wastewater treatment, and ultimately improved the rural ecological environment and living conditions. Fifthly,
organizational revitalization: replying on multiple measures such as pairing with grassroots party organizations in
rural areas and supporting rural collective economies, the Company assisted local communities in establishing rural
governance systems that integrate self-governance, rule of law, and moral governance.
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() Subsequent plan for assisting in rural revitalization

In 2024, guided by President Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, the
Company will continue to implement the spirit of the Central Rural Work Conference. CSCEC will learn and employ the
experience of the “One Thousand Demonstration Villages, Ten Thousand Renovation Villages (/3 L#2)” to coordinate
and advance targeted assistance, paired support, and other initiatives. Meanwhile, CSCEC will fully participate in the
national rural revitalization strategy and help prevent people in assisted areas from returning to poverty on a large scale
as the bottom-line. Furthermore, CSCEC will effectively and systematically promote rural industrial development, rural
construction, and rural governance, making greater contributions to comprehensively advancing rural revitalization,
accelerating agricultural and rural modernization, and building a strong agricultural nation.

Y o W

L

Gansu Kang County Tourism IndustrysRévitalization Demonstration Park Broj
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(Il Where the Company has profit forecasts on assets or projects, and the Reporting Period is
within the term of profit forecasts, the Company has to state

whether such profit forecasts on assets or projects are fulfilled and the reasons therefor

O Fulfilled 0O Not Fulfilled © N/A

() Completion of performance commitment and its effect on goodwill impairment test
O Applicable ™ N/A

Il. Any Non-operating Misappropriation of Funds by the Controlling
Shareholder and Other Related Parties during the Reporting Period

O Applicable ™ N/A
lll. Guarantees in Violation of Regulations
O Applicable ™ N/A

IV. Explanation by the Board of Directors of the Company on the “Audit
Report with Modified Opinion” of the Accounting Firm

O Applicable ™ N/A

V. The Company’s Analysis and Explanation of the Causes and Impacts of
Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates or Corrections of Material
Accounting Errors

() The Company’s analysis of and explanation on the causes and impacts of changes in
accounting policies and estimates

O Applicable ™ N/A

(I) The Company’s analysis of and explanation on the causes and impacts of the corrections
of major accounting errors

O Applicable ™ N/A

(Il) Communications with the former accounting firm
O Applicable ™ N/A

(IV) Approval procedures and other explanation

O Applicable ™ N/A
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VI. Appointment and Dismissal of the Accounting Firm

Unit: 0’000 yuan Currency: RMB
Currently appointed

Name of domestic accounting firm Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)
Remuneration of domestic accounting firm 4,280
Audit service years of domestic accounting firm 4
Names of certified public accountants of domestic accounting

firm Zhou Ying, Shen Yan

Number of accumulated years of audit service by certified public

accountants of domestic accounting firm 4.4
Name of overseas accounting firm /
Remuneration of overseas accounting firm /
Audit service years of overseas accounting firm /
Name Remuneration
Accounting firm for internal control audit Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) 315
Financial adviser / /
Sponsor / /

Explanation on appointment and dismissal of accounting firm
¥ Applicable N/A

On May 19, 2023, as considered and approved at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of the Company, Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) was engaged as the auditor for the financial report and internal control
of the Company for 2023, for a term of one year. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Reappointment of
Accounting Firm in 2023 published on April 18, 2023, the Information on the 2022 Annual General Meeting published
on May 13, 2023, and the Announcement on Resolutions of the 2022 Annual General Meeting published on May 20,
20283, by the Company.

Explanation on change of accounting firm during the audit period
Applicable ¥ N/A
Explanation on decrease in audit fees by more than 20% (inclusive) over the previous year

Applicable ¥ N/A
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VII. Risks of Delisting

() Causes of delisting warning

O Applicable ™ N/A

(I) Measures to be taken by the Company

O Applicable ™ N/A

(Ill) Circumstances of and Reasons for Delisting

O Applicable ™ N/A

Vill. Matters Related to Insolvency/Reorganization

O Applicable ® N/A

IX. Matters Related to Significant Litigation and Arbitration

O There were significant litigations and arbitrations during the year
™ There was no significant litigation or arbitration during the year

(I) Litigations and arbitrations disclosed in provisional announcements without subsequent
progress

O Applicable ™ N/A

(I) Litigations and arbitrations not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent
progress

O Applicable ™ N/A
(1) Other explanation
O Applicable ™ N/A

X. Suspected Violations, Penalty and Rectification of the Company, its
Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management, Controlling Shareholders,
and De Facto Controller

O Applicable ™ N/A

XI. Explanation on the Integrity of the Company and Its Controlling
Shareholder and De Facto Controller during the Reporting Period

O Applicable ™ N/A
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1.

¥ Applicable

subsequent implementation

N/A

Summary of matters
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Related party transactions associated with day-to-day operations

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in

Index for details

On December 12, 2022 and December 28, 2022, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Comprehensive Service Framework Agreement between
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China State
Construction Engineering Corporation was considered and approved at the
28th meeting of the third session of the Board of Directors, the 17th meeting
of the third session of the Board of Supervisors and the first extraordinary
general meeting of the Company in 2022.

The Company and China State Construction renewed the Comprehensive
Service Framework Agreement Between China State Construction Engineering
Corporation and China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited in
respect of the related party transactions arising from the sales, procurement,
commercial factoring services, financial leasing services, property leasing and
other business between the Company and China State Construction and its
subsidiaries. During the term of the agreement in 2023, the sales between the
Company and China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed
RMB100 million; procurement shall not exceed RMB5.8 billion; the maximum
balance of commercial factoring services (excluding those from CSC Finance)
shall not exceed RMB300 million, and factoring interest and service fee shall
not exceed RMB20 million; the maximum balance of financial leasing services
(excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMB100 million, and
financial leasing interest and service fee shall not exceed RMB6 million;
property leasing shall not exceed RMB100 million; other daily related party
transactions shall not exceed RMB100 million.

During the Reporting Period, the sales between the Company and China
State Construction and its subsidiaries was RMB40 million; the procurement
was RMB2.53 billion; no commercial factoring services and financial leasing
service was performed; the property leasing was RMB40 million; other daily
related party transactions were RMB40 million. The amount of actual daily
related party transactions of the Company was within the range set out in the
agreement.

Announcement on Resolutions of the 28th Meeting of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors, Announcement on Resolutions of
the 17th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, and
Announcement on the Renewal of the Comprehensive Service Framework
Agreement between China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited and China State Construction Engineering Corporation & Daily
Related-Party Transaction published on December 13, 2022.

Announcement on Resolutions of the First Extraordinary General Meeting
in 2022 published on December 29, 2022.

On December 12, 2022 and December 28, 2022, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Financial Service Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction Engineering
Corporation was considered and approved at the 28th meeting of the third
session of the Board of Directors, the 17th meeting of the third session of
the Board of Supervisors and the first extraordinary general meeting of the
Company in 2022.

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State Construction
renewed the Financial Service Framework Agreement Between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation and China State Construction Finance
Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party transactions arising from the deposits,
loans, financial and financing consultancy and other relevant financial services
provided to China State Construction and its subsidiaries by CSC Finance.
During the term of the agreement, the daily balance cap of deposits (inclusive
of accrued interests) to be placed by China State Construction and its
subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed RMB20 billion, with the daily
balance of loans (inclusive of accrued interests) to be obtained not exceeding
the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive of accrued interests); the fees
to be charged by CSC Finance for providing other financial services to China
State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMB300 million.

During the Reporting Period, the actual performance complied with the
agreement, and the actual daily balance cap of the deposits placed by China
State Construction and its subsidiaries with CSC Finance was RMB10.66
billion (inclusive of accrued interests); and the maximum daily loan balance
was RMB4 billion (inclusive of accrued interests); the fees charged by CSC
Finance for providing other financial services to China State Construction and
its subsidiaries was RMB3 million. For details, please refer to “(V) Financial
business between the Company and the related-party financial companies,
and between the Company’s holding financial companies and the related
parties” in “XII. Material Related Party Transactions” under SECTION VI.

Announcement on Resolutions of the 28th Meeting of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors, Announcement on Resolutions of
the 17th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, and
Announcement on the Renewal of the Financial Service Framework
Agreement between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and
China State Construction Engineering Corporation & Daily Related-Party
Transaction published on December 13, 2022.

Announcement on Resolutions of the First Extraordinary General Meeting
in 2022 published on December 29, 2022.
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Summary of matters

Index for details

On December 7, 2023 and December 27, 2023, the Proposal on the Renewal
of the Comprehensive Service Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation was considered and approved at the 50th meeting
of the third session of the Board of Directors, the 25th meeting of the third
session of the Board of Supervisors and the second extraordinary general
meeting of the Company in 2023.

The Company and China State Construction renewed the Comprehensive
Service Framework Agreement Between China State Construction Engineering
Corporation and China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited in
respect of the related party transactions arising from the sales, procurement,
commercial factoring services, financial leasing services, property leasing
and other business between the Company and China State Construction and
its subsidiaries. During the term of the agreement, the sales between the
Company and China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed
RMB140 million; procurement shall not exceed RMB3.5 billion; the maximum
balance of commercial factoring services (excluding those from CSC Finance)
shall not exceed RMB100 million, and factoring interest and service fee shall
not exceed RMBG6 million; the maximum balance of financial leasing services
(excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMB20 million, and
financial leasing interest and service fee shall not exceed RMB1 million;
property leasing shall not exceed RMBE0 million; other daily related party
transactions shall not exceed RMB100 million.

Announcement on Resolutions of the 50th Meeting of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors, Announcement on Resolutions of
the 25th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, and
Announcement on the Renewal of the Comprehensive Service Framework
Agreement between China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited and China State Construction Engineering Corporation & Daily
Related-Party Transaction published on December 8, 2023.

Announcement on Resolutions of the Second Extraordinary General
Meeting in 2023 published on December 28, 2023.

On December 7, 2023 and December 27, 2023, the Proposal on the
Renewal of the Financial Service Framework Agreement between China State
Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction Engineering
Corporation was considered and approved at the 50th meeting of the third
session of the Board of Directors, the 25th meeting of the third session of the
Board of Supervisors and the second extraordinary general meeting of the
Company in 2023.

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State Construction
renewed the Financial Service Framework Agreement Between China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and China State Construction
Finance Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party transactions arising from
the deposits, credit, financial and financing consultancy and other relevant
financial services provided to China State Construction and its subsidiaries
by CSC Finance. During the term of the agreement, the daily balance cap
of deposits (inclusive of accrued interests) to be placed by China State
Construction and its subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed RMB20
billion, with the daily balance of credit (inclusive of accrued interests) to be
obtained not exceeding the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive of
accrued interests); the fees to be charged by CSC Finance for providing other
financial services to China State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not
exceed RMB300 million.

Announcement on Resolutions of the 50th Meeting of the Third
Session of the Board of Directors, Announcement on Resolutions of
the 25th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, and
Announcement on the Renewal of the Financial Service Framework
Agreement between China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and
China State Construction Engineering Corporation & Daily Related-Party
Transaction published on December 8, 2023.

Announcement on Resolutions of the Second Extraordinary General
Meeting in 2023 published on December 28, 2023.

2.

3.

implementation

Applicable ™ N/A

Applicable ¥ N/A

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements with further progress or changes in subsequent

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
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(I) Related party transactions as a result of acquisition or disposal of assets or equity

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

Applicable ™ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements with further progress or changes in subsequent
implementation

Applicable ¥ N/A
3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
Applicable ¥ N/A

4. Disclosure of performance achieved for the Reporting Period if performance agreements are
involved

Applicable ™ N/A
(Il) Material related party transactions in joint external investment

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

Applicable ¥ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements with further progress or changes in subsequent
implementation

Applicable ¥ N/A

3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
Applicable ™ N/A

(IV) Creditor’s rights and debts with related parties

1. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

Applicable ¥ N/A

2. Matters disclosed in provisional announcements with further progress or changes in subsequent
implementation

Applicable ¥ N/A
3. Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

Applicable ¥ N/A
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(V) Financial business between the Company and the related-party financial companies, and
between the Company’s holding financial companies and the related parties

™ Applicable [ N/A
1. Deposit

¥ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Maximum daily Amount incurred during the Reporting Period
Relationship with related deposit limit Deposit interest Opening i . Total withdrawal
Related party party (inclusive of rate range (%) balance  Total deposits during during the Reporting  Closing balance
accrued interest) the Reporting Period Period

China State Controlling shareholder

Constructionand ~ and its directly or indirectly 20,000,000 0.355-1.5 2,446,747 28,541,451 27,919,350 3,068,848
its subsidiaries controlled companies

Total / / / 2,446,747 28,541,451 27,919,350 3,068,848

2. Loan

™ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount incurred during the Reporting Period

Relationship with related Loan interest rate Opening . Total repayment
Related part Loan amount SR
) party range (%) balance VO LTS Sy during the Reporting ~ Closing balance
the Reporting Period .
Period

China State Controlling shareholder n:l:;iﬁlxlfriegglg he
Constructionand ~ and its directly or indirectly um aaty - 2.6-3.0 2,001,833 2,059,356 2,059,600 2,001,589
its subsidiaries controlled companies deposit mit (nclusive

of accrued interest)
Total / / / 2,001,833 2,059,356 2,059,600 2,001,589

3. Credit facility or other financial businesses

¥ Applicable O N/A
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Relationship with

Related party related party Business type Total amount Actual amount
China State Controlling shareholder and its ) .
Construction and its directly or indirectly controlled gsgﬁ:eggzgc'al 300,000 3,364
subsidiaries companies
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4. Other explanation
¥ Applicable N/A

The above related party transactions of the Company have been considered and approved at the 28th Meeting of the
Third Session of the Board of Directors, the 17th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, the First
Extraordinary General Meeting in 2022, and the 50th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Directors, the 25th
Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of Supervisors, the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 of the
Company. For details, please refer to “(l) Related party transactions associated with day-to-day operations” in “XII.
Material Related Party Transactions” under SECTION VI.

(VI) Miscellaneous
¥ Applicable N/A

For related party transactions of the Company, please refer to Note Xl “Related party relationships and transactions” to the
financial statements under SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

Xlll. Material Contracts and Their Fulfillment
() Custody, contracting, and leasing
1. Custody
Applicable ¥ N/A
2. Contracting
Applicable ¥ N/A
3. Leasing

Applicable ™ N/A
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() Entrusted cash asset management
1. Entrusted wealth management

(1) Overall wealth management

O Applicable ™ N/A

(2) Single entrusted wealth management

O Applicable ™ N/A

(8) Impairment provision for entrusted wealth management
O Applicable ™ N/A

2. Entrusted loans

(1) Overall entrusted loans

¥ Applicable [ N/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount due but not
recovered

General entrusted loan Self-owned funds -491,634 6,583 0

Type Source of funds Amount incurred Outstanding balance

Miscellaneous
™ Applicable [ N/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the total external entrusted loan of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB7 million, which was mainly incurred from the financing and investing activities conducted by the Company to
drive its general contracting projects. Please refer to Note V. 12 “Debt investments” to the financial statements under
SECTION X “FINANCIAL REPORT”.

(2) Single entrusted loans

O Applicable ™ N/A

Miscellaneous

O Applicable ™ N/A

(8) Impairment provision for entrusted loans
O Applicable ™ N/A

3. Miscellaneous

O Applicable ™ N/A
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(IV) Other material contracts
¥ Applicable O N/A
1. Major domestic business contracts during the Reporting Period

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

- Value of
No. Name of contract Signing Party —— Type of contract
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, China
Construction Infrastructure Co., Ltd., China Construction First Group
General Contract for the PPP Project of Guangxi Congjiang-Rong'an-Lipu Highway — Corporation Limited, China Construction Second Engineering Bureau
1 (Rong'an to Yangshuo Section via Yongfu) (I EML - B% — ZALK(EZEXEER  Ltd, China Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., China 160.87  Infrastructure construction
HEPPP MBI RETAR) Construction Sixth Engineering Bureau Corp., Ltd., China Construction
Seventh Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., and China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.
General Contract for Civil Construction and Site Section Construction Project of Jinan . - RN '
2 Urban Rai Transit Line 7 Phase | (FEMAIERE 7 SE—$IRTERIGTERIS Chia COHSWCF'OHEE‘QW Enginearing Divison Corp, Lid. and China 13564 Infrastructure construction
#4947 State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., China
Construction Fourth Engineering Bureau (Fujian) Infrastructure
General Contract for Phase | Project of the Rural Revitalization Fine Chemical Industry  Investment Development Co., Ltd. (RIS (B2 ERRER AR EE
3 Demonstration Industrial Park in Gulei (SEZREAVTERTEFLE—#MET  [RAF), China Construction Fourth Engingering Bureau Construction 12576 Infrastructure construction
2RABER) Development Co., Ltd., and China Construction Fourth Engineering
Bureau Water Conservancy and Energy Development Co., Lid., (2
TEKFIERRRERAT)
' ’ ) o China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. and China
General Contract for EPC Project of Photovoltaic New Energy Industrial Park in Jinghe P - .
4 . AT A AR 0 7 AR Construction Eighth Engineering Bureau Westen Development Co., 12355 Infrastructure construction
New City (Phase | (2SR FEER LEME (—H)EPC TREABAR) 10, (| BESE BERAD)
General Contract for 3.2 Millon Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project of China Green Electricity
5 Nieke County 4 Milion Kilowatts Wind Power Photovoltaic Integration Project (F4%/E  China Construction Second Enginesring Bureau Ltd. 108.78  Infrastructure construction
#5%8 400 HTRMEER—EHAR 320 FTEARAEIREAAAR)
6 General (EPC) Contract for Urban Renewal Project of Affiliated Hospital Area in Kuiwen ~ China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. and 0640 Housina consiruction
District of Weifang City (457 X KB ERF KT EHAE LR AGEPC)AR) China Construction Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd. ‘ 9
Construction Contract for the Deyang Section of the General Contracting for the . ) I o .
7 Construction of Chengdu-Deyang Line of Municipal (Suburban) Reilway Project (Ti(3) 82!?{5;?:”%iﬁréﬁnﬁ]nee?;gm;jr”;% g%zo%tfnﬂmed and Crina 87.06  Infrastructure construction
SR SEERLTENT $RANERRRRETAR) gneaing pro.He
General Contract for 2.5 Millon Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project of China Green Electricity
8 4 Milion Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project in Ruogiang (Section I) (%% 400 AT R¥  China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Lid. 85.88  Infrastructure construction
R 250 KRR IERRABAR( f75)
General Contract for 2 Milion Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project of China Green Electricity 3.5 China Construction Eiohth Encineering Divsion General Contractin
9 Milion Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project in Midong District of Urumai City (Section I) (T4%E8 Construction Co.. Lid %EFE /\%ﬁ%@g@i"ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ) ¢ 77.85  Infrastructure construction
SEATTRAK 360 HTRAKAE-200 HFRAIEEAB( FR)IAE) o FEEEER
10 General Contract for Survey, Design and Construction of the Bay Area International ~ China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. and 7718 Housing construction
Innovation Center Project (SR E I RLRBHREIELSABARE) China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ld. ‘ ¢
General Contract for Plot N3N4NSNG of the New Generation Industrial Park Project of . - . . )
11 Bili (BRI 17 U FIRE NININGNG Hi3T SR A TRAT) China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Lid. 7619 Housing construction
Construction Contract for the PPP Project involving Pipeline Renovation of Mixture  China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, China
of Rainwater and Sewage in Central Urban Area and Urban Waterlogging Control in-~ Construction Infrastructure Co., Ltd., China Construction First Group
12 Drainage Zoning of Lashan River and Xingji River in Jinan, Shandong (UA£#@mH0  Corporation Limited, China Construction Fifth Engingering Division 7571 Infrastructure construction
HRFSaRENNEMImATARE LTS TRKAR PPP MERRTIEKIA  Cor, Lid, and China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp.,
B) Ltd.
General Contract for the Airport Engineering - Terminal 2 Project of Jinan Yaogiang ) —_— RIS
; ) ) = - 5 oo e Ohina Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp,, Ltd., CSCEC )
FEEENAZ - L ) e :
13 A\rpo;t PhasAeJ\ Expansion Project (FEREMA My RIRIHTR-12 MsHTE Xnjang Constructon & Engireering (Goup) Co, L. 65.88  Infrastructure construction
BISABAR)
Construction and Operation Integration Contract for Cross-Strait Integration Development
14 Demonstration Industrial Park and Supporting Infrastructure Project (Phase |) (S5 &8 CSCEC Strait Construction and Development Co., Ltd. 62.99  Infrastructure construction
ARETEFLER REERM RIS —HBREE—(UAR)
Construction Contract for CR Land Genter No. 21 Hotel, Commercial and Office Building,
No. 22 Service Apartment and Commercial Building, No. 23 Office Building, No. 24 Hotel
and Commercial Bulding, No. 26 Basement, No. 27 Basement, No. 28 Basement, No. 29 ' ) T .
15 Basement, No. 30 Underground Space, No. 31 Underground Space, No. 32 Underground Crina Constrction Fourth Engneering Dhison Corp, L1d, and China 62.64  Housing construction

Space (£EENMMLSER, Bl HAK, 2SRERAE. FLH, BSHAH,
USEE, BL#, BSHTE, 0SHTE, B5HTE, 05HTE, NSHTT
|, $1SHTZH, 2SHTZEEIAR)

Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd.
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- Value of
No. Name of contract Signing Party —— Type of contract
China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., China
Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd., China
Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., China
Construction Gontract for Terminal Area Project of Airport Engineering of Fuzhou Ghangle  Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group South China Co.,
16 International Airport Phase Il Expansion Project (BMKFEIGIA_S BIRIATE  Ltd. (FE=BEEXEARAR), CSCEC Strat Construction and 60.92  Infrastructure construction
TR TEHIAR) Development Co., Ltd., China Construction Eighth Enginesring Division
General Contracting Construction Co., Ltd. (T#/\ B2 ABERER
/A)), and China Construction Fourth Engineering Bureau Construction
Development Co., Ltd.
General Contract for Phase | Project of Science and Technology Innovation Intelligent
17 Manufacturing Industrial Park Infrastructure (Section 2) in Jinyi New Area (ﬁﬁ(%ﬁ&ﬂgw%’ China Construction Eighth Enginesring Division Corp., Ltd. 5279 Infrastructure construction
B VEERRHRE BT TR TS ABAR)
General Contract for Water System Rehabiltation and Green Development EOD Project
18 (Social Investor + EPG) in High Speed Rail New District of Liaocheng City [t China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. 52.55  Infrastructure construction
KAREESRERRE EOD ME (HARZNEPC IRREDER)
General Engineering Contract for Commercial Project of CR Land Guangzhou Baistan
19 AF020114 and AF020116 Plots ({JIEHI MB35 AF020114, AF020116 35#B W  China Construction Fifth Enginesring Division Corp., Ltd. 5206 Housing construction
BEARIRAR)
20 Xiangshan Science and Technology Park Project Contract (% WEEME &FF) E\hg?wtﬁrégg%oelsr}r%cgzpei gincerng Co, Ltd. of China Gonstrucion 5193 Housing construction
General Contract for 1.5 Millon Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project of China Green Electricity . f— ISR TS .
2 4 Milon Kiowatts Photovoltaic Project in Ruogiang (Section |) (4335 400 HF X 82?;5;%%?0&(1E‘9hm Engineering Diison General Conlracting 5145 Infrastructure construction
fRME 150 AT RARTERAS( F58)2F) A
General Contract for Gomprehensive Logistics Park Project in Central District (Phase | ’ - I ’ ’
2 and ) (ALEREANAEAR - —H TEAHE2R) China Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. 49.35  Housing construction
(EPC) Contract for the Expansion Project of LONGI New Energy Technology Industrial
2 Park in Zero Garbon Industrial Park of Mengsu Economic Development Zone (ZAZFF  China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. 42.58  Housing construction
KRSH L EEERRRRE™ LR BNEERC &5)aH)
Civil Engineering Contract for the Nuclear Island of Units 3 and 4 of Phase Il of
% Guﬁangdong Taipingling Nuclear Power Plant (" A ATIREB —# 3, 4 SHABSLE  China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. 4250 Infrastructure construction
T#E6R)
Civil Engineering Contract for the Nuclear Island of Units 5 and 6 of Guangxi . . I .
25 Fangchengoang Nuckear Power Pant (" EIFIRETET 5. 6 SHAHSTETELE) China Gonstruction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. 42.06  Infrastructure construction
EPC Engineering General Contract for the Relocation and Resettlement Housing Project 82‘2;,%?}%2“82” ELI?Qm(glnig)ﬂseﬁmﬂgi%%a}ugﬁ%)%g%v)ebpc?‘eﬂﬂ;
% in the Starter Area, Noise Zone, and Comprehensive Security Zone of Airport Economic ¢ o TR VR S ! . .
: o o OV 2 ey onstruction Eighth Engineering Bureau Development and 40.02 Housing construction
Zong of Daxing International Airport (Langfang) in Beiing HRAMEFNARTEFX (B Construction Co., Ltd. (PE&)\B % EREEEAT) and China
HESL. BEX. SENTERERTALE EPC TREAAAR) e i
onstruction Eighth Engineering Division Co., Ltd.
General Contract for the Construction of Nansha Comprehensive Cultural and Sports
Complex Project - Comprehensive Gymnasium, Swimming and Diving Hall and its . I— I ’ )
27 Supporting Viorks BV B AELAMAR - SARSE, BIOkERERETE China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. 39.31  Housing construction
HLRABAR)
General Contract for Wuxi Olympic Sports Indusrial Center Phase I (Tentative Name) ; T e Ml : "
28 Project (EEEHT B ) HE 22 RE TESAEAR) China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. 38.78  Housing construction
Contract for General Contracting Project Section | of the Huawel's Talent Apartment
2 Project on the South Side of Zhujjiao, Shanghai (0 LERKEBMAZAEREZE  China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co, Ltd. 3837 Housing construction
AOTEGE | AF)
Construction Contract of Phase Il Photovoltaic Module Project with an Annual Qutput of . . RS ’ ’
30 150 (£ 1600 KRB HELTE_BTRHTAF) China Construction Fourth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. 37.26 Housing construction
Unit Price Gontrect for Section JBTJ-3 of Jinan Gonnection Line Project of the New  China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, China
31 Tianjin-Weifang High-Speed Reilway (FEZASHFEHEL TR BT)-3 REAMILN  Construction Eighth Enginesring Division Corp., Ltd., and China 3685 Infrastructure construction
ABAR) Construction Railway Investment and Construction Group Co., Ltd.
General Contract for Design-Procurement-Gonstruction (EPC) of Guiin New Area
2 Vocationl Education Campus (EFHTXENAERK G — 1~ BI(EPC)TESAE  China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Lid. 3543 Housing construction
=6}
General Contract for China Green Electricity 1 Milion Kilowatts Photovoltaic Project in . . i .
3 Kuln City (BEEET 100 FFRARAS TEEEEAR) China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. 3518 Infrastructure construction
General (EPC) Contract for Infrastructure Supporting Project of Intelligent Networked New
34 Energy Vehicle Indusirial Park in Longxing New Town, Liangjiang New Area (FI31XZ  China Construction Eighth Enginesring Division Corp., Ltd. 35.00  Housing construction
SENEREMER R RS LEAR R REERE EPC SEEAR)
General (EPC) Contract for the Survey, Design and Construction of Plot CPPQ-A4-3 ' , . . '
3% (ChanglingeYaju Construction Project) in Huangpu District (35X CPPQ-A4-3 H3#TE Epengi; Oé)ur::;ruucnon Co., Ltd. of Ghina Construction Third 3475 Housing construction
(Kb EREAE BRI R SAEEPCER) Oneeig
Civil Construction Contract for Units 14 and 24 Nuclear Island and its BOP of Pressurized
Water Reactor Expansion Phase | Project of Huaneng Shidao Bay Nuclear Power Plant in . ' . ‘
36 Shin%ong (SR ST A EA S B—HTR 18, 2AESRE BOP 1RE China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. 3426 Infrastructure construction
I8H)
Construction Contract for Fujian Minche New Energy Vehicle Intelligent Manufacturing . - S )
37 Industal Pak Project (BB £ B S5-I T ERTAR) China Construction First Group Corporation Limited 3400 Infrastructure construction
Construction Gontract for the Main Project (excluding pile foundation) of Huafa Snow
38 World Plot KF02-07 (Phase |) (£ &S ERKFO2-07 43— ) TETE(FAME)EIA  China Construction Third Enginesring Bureau Group Co., Lid. 3398 Housing construction
A
EPC Contract for Phases Il to IV of the Photovoltaic Industrial Park and Supporting Road Chi I e
i ot o e L < ina Construction Fifth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., The Second . .
s %gggﬁ;zﬁﬁ%gﬂggrgg%c%)Chuzhou (RARRBE LR LB~ DEREREET Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction Fifth Engineering Bureau 3376 Housing constucton
0 General Contract for the Desiin and Construction of Digital Economy Industrial Park China Consiruction First Group Corporaton Limited 1872 Housig constucion

Project (JFE A UET R EIRETAR)
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- Value of
No. Name of contract Signing Party —— Type of contract
China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd., Southwest

General Contract for Comprehensive Treatment and Green Industry Transformation EOD  Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. of China Construction Eighth

I Project of Key Coal Mining Subsidence Areas in Qijang Distrct, Chongaing (BIRTIZ/L  Engineering Bureau (F&/\REERRIRERAT), Liangjiang 3350 Infrastructure construction
FLEESFENRRGA ARG LY EOD HETREABAR) Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction Eighth Engingering

Bureau (&) \ B LERERAT)

General Contract for the Construction of Shantytown Renovation Project (Plots 02 and

1Y) 03) of Nanhua Village at Nan Yuan Subdistrict, Futian District (BRX FEATEREHHEP  China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Lid. 3270 Housing construction
KAETE (02, 03 I RABIRAR)

5 General Contract for EPC Project of Yixin New Energy Power Battery Production Base in -~ China Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd., China Southwest 10 Housing constructon
Tnejiang (T XIETREREN DS A~ BHIE EPC TREARAR) Architectural Design and Research Institute Corp., Ltd. : 9
General Contract for Construction of A Multi-purpose Stadium and its Outdoor Supporting

4 Works for Nansha Urban Cultural and Sports Complex Project ()2 EXUEESA®  China Construction Eighth Enginesring Division Corp., Lid. 31.85  Housing construction
REGAKEAREZNEET RIS ABAMH)

55 General (EPC) Contract for the Survey and Construction of Longkou Science and  The First Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. of China Construction 318 Housino constructon
Technology Center Project (RRIEIRLIEYE+ TREAE(EPC)AR) Eighth Enginesring Bureau ‘ ¢
General (EPC) Contract for the Jinghe Green Energy Clean Energy Industrial Development ' . o )

4 Center (Industrial Development Engine Zone) Project (A& B RE RS LABRL (= ggﬁ;rﬁiﬁ?ﬁg%nﬁﬁginEngBIS:T(g;mDJWS&n Egp” Ld, China 3175 Infrastructure construction
UEE3IERIAE PO BATAT) gneeing prO.HE
Contract Agreement for NY-TZ1 Section of Nanjing-Yancheng Expressway Roadbed, ’ . o o .

47 Bridge & Culvert Construction and Equity Investment Project (B ZEh = A BB A gglnnsatrﬁézfn%oecjr:tuhc UET ‘Egg:&eeglgegﬁggraﬂfg Limke and Chire 3128 Infrastructure construction
ATRRTERIEARE NV-TZ1 HEARNN) gneein e
Construction Contract for Hefel Xingiao International Airport Comprehensive

48 Transportation Center (including Ral Introduction) and its Supporting Works (&fE31#iE  China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. 3114 Infrastructure construction
ilGA B NE NREELRELAR)
Construction Contract for the First Section of General Contracting for the New
Construction Phase Il Project of Collaborative Innovation Park at Jiangsu University of . - NI ) .

49 Tochnology n Wjn Green Buling Idustil Cuter Zone [T B T2 R #FRRE China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. 30.72 Housing construction
A ER R TR ERE N S AR —H&AR)

50 General Contract for EPC Project of QinchuangyuaneDigital Economy Industry R&D  China Construction Eighth Engineering Division Corp., Ltd. and China 3059 Housing constructon
Center (BRIR o HFET= LH 2T EPC TREAIAR) Architecture Design & Research Group ‘ 9
General Contract for OPPO Marina Bay Talent Housing Project (OPPO & BZEHAT ‘ - N ' '

51 MESEETEAR) China Gonstruction First Group Corporation Limited 30.08  Housing construction
Construction Contract of New Energy Industrial Base and Supporting Facilities

5 Construction project in Wanzhi District (ZLKHEEE= VEMREERIERZMERIAE  China Construction Fourth Enginesring Division Corp., Ltd. 3000  Housing construction

Bl

Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the Company as at the

end of the Reporting Period.

2. Major overseas business contracts during the Reporting Period
Unit: 100 million dollars  Currency: USD
e Value of
No. Name of contract Signing Party - Type of contract

Contract for Site A Project of New Acute Hospital at Kai Tak Development Area, ' ) I - . )

1 Hong Kong (EEREHEEER Ste A TIEAR) China State Construction Engineering (Hong Kong) Limited 21.76 Housing construction
Punggol Extension P103-Section of Singapore's MRT Cross Island Line (155 Singapore Office of China State Construction Engineering ‘

2 ESHRMERY P03 A Coporaton Linied (RERARHF AN SN 481 Inestctus comsncton
Design & Construction Contract for Alamein Newtown Lake Island Project (& ' . . I . .

3 FALSTERIREAR) China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited 251 Housing construction

4 RCC-CPID—CHONG PANG INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT Rich Construction Company Pte Ltd 245 Housing construction
Contract for DAMAG CAVALLI COUTURE TOWER - High-Rise Residential Buildings China State Constructon Enginesing Corporation (Middle East)

5 Prect 1 CoalCasa DAVAC CAVALI COUTURE TOWER— #5717 8EGE |\ gneerng Lorp 240 Housing constiuction
REAR) B
Contract for CRESCENT PARK NEIGHBOR HOOD COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL

6 PROJECT - Crescent Park Project in Bangladesh (CRESCENT PARK NEIGHBOR China Construction Seventh Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd. 182 Housing construction
HOOD COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROJECT~ ZMiTF AAENE A4F)

7 LTG-LENTOR GARDENS China Construction (South Pacific) Development Co Pte Ltd 165 Housing construction
Main Contract for PNG LNG Steel Equipment Industrial Park Project (57 LNG 1 ' ’ I . - . )

8 EHRaEIETRTAR) China State Construction Engineering Corporation PNG Limited .21 Housing construction
Contract for SASEC Dhaka-Sylhet Highway WP4-DS8 Project in Bangladesh (&1 ' . . .

9 11 SASEC HEEERS WPA-DS8 EAT) China Construction Seventh Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd. 110 Infrastructure construction

10 Generel Gontrt f to Construction Prolectof Kewatal Brdge n Mymenshgh China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited 102 Infrastructure construction

City, Bangladesh (ZA0A0 JEm el KR EAFERNERE4R)

Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually entered into by the Company as at the

end of the Reporting Period.
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3. Newly-signed comprehensive credit facility contracts

Name of comprehensive

Unit: 100 million yuan/dollars  Currency: RMB/USD

Comprehensive

L credit facility contract Cretkt drantor MR ] credit facility limit Credit period
) . April 17, 2023 -
1 Creditfacity limit agreement  Bank of China Limited (Befjng BOC Tower Brancr)  Orina State Construction RMB38.5 bilion
Engineering Corporation Limited April 10, 2024
: - May 10, 2023 -
2 Credit facity it agreement  BNP Paribas (China) Limited, Beijing Branch China State Construction USDO.15 billon
Engineering Corporation Limited permanent
TR Beiing Tsinghua East Road Branch of China China State Construction - May 25, 2023 -
8 Credit faciity imit contract Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. Engineering Corporation Limited AVBA.7 biion February 21, 2025
. . . ‘ December 12, 2023 -
Trade Finance Credit Master Export-Import Bark of China China State Construction RMB20 billon
Agreement Engineering Corporation Limited September 25, 2025

4. Newly-signed strategic cooperation and business cooperation agreement

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to increase its strategic cooperation with local governments, large
domestic and foreign enterprises and financial institutions. The following are the major cooperation agreements entered

into by the Company:

No. Name of contract Signing date

Contents of contract

Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement
between the People’s
1 Government of Zhangzhou February 8, 2023
and China State Construction
Engineering Corporation
Limited

Based on the overall planning of the People’s Government
of Zhangzhou, CSCEC’s development and the principle
of “complementary advantages, shared resources, mutual
benefit and win-win cooperation”, the two parties established
a strategic partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover:
transportation infrastructure construction, urban construction
and development, ecological and environmental protection
infrastructure construction, novel infrastructure construction;
and innovative industrial fields.

Strategic Cooperation
Agreement between the
People’s Government of
Kunming and China State
Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

February 16, 2023

Based on the overall planning of the People’s Government
of Kunming, CSCEC’s development and the principle of
“complementary advantages, shared resources, mutual
benefit, enhanced cooperation and shared development”,
the two parties established a strategic partnership.
The cooperation will mainly cover: urban infrastructure
construction, water conservancy engineering construction,
integrated urban development and renewal and novel
infrastructure construction.

Strategic Cooperation
Agreement between ACWA
3 Power and China State May 10, 2023
Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

Based on the overall planning of the ACWA Power, CSCEC’s
development and the principle of “equality and mutual benefit,
complementary advantages, mutual respect and mutual
trust”, the two parties established a strategic partnership.
The cooperation will mainly cover: cooperation in the field of
engineering and construction, and investment and cooperation in
China in the fields of electricity and water.
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No. Name of contract Signing date Contents of contract
Based on the overall planning of China Anneng Construction
Group Corporation Limited, CSCEC’s development and
Strategic Cooperation the principle of “complementary advantages, long-term
Agreement between China cooperation, win-win development as well as solidarity
Anneng Construction Group and cooperation”, the two parties established a strategic
4 Corporation Limited and May 12, 2023 partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover: joint promotion
China State Construction of market expansion and major project construction,
Engineering Corporation cooperation and development in the field of innovation, joint
Limited construction in the field of specialization and other aspects,
cooperation in emergency rescue and emergency industry,
etc.
Based on the overall planning of the People’s Government
. . of Fengtai District, CSCEC’s development and the
Strategic Cooperation . « ) )
principle of “equality and mutual benefit, complementary
Agreement between the d | | ) d
People’s Government ahvantages,I mutua" srL:pport, ong-term Tpﬁperahon an
5 of Fengtai District and September 12, 2023 shared d‘?ve opment’, 1 e two Pa”'eis estab "? .ed a s.tratgglc
} . partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover: integration into
China State Construction ; . ST . P
. ) ; regional development; participation in regional construction;
Engineering Corporation ; : ) ) . )
2 cooperation in advancing key projects; strengthening
Limited ) ) 7 . ”
cooperation with local enterprises; conducting research; and
exchanging talents.
Based on the overall planning of the People’s Government
of Nanjing, CSCEC’s development and the principle of
. . “integrated resource, shared development, mutual benefit and
Strategic Cooperation . . T h ) .
win-win cooperation”, the two parties established a strategic
Framework Agreement . . ) ) o .
) partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover: investment in
between the People's construction of major engineering projects; mutual resources
6 Government of Nanjing and September 26, 2023 ) . ’
A - assistance by way of cooperation between central and local
China State Construction L . o
. . . governments; infrastructure investment and construction;
Engineering Corporation istic devel ith local L fessional
Limited synerglstllc 'eveop‘ment wlt oca enterprlses., professiona
cooperation in the field of investment and financing; and talent
training and integration of education and industry in the field
of construction.
Based on the overall planning of the People’s Government
of Shijiazhuang, CSCEC’s development and the principle
Strategic Cooperation of “complementary advantages, shared resources, mutual
Agreement between the benefit and win-win cooperation”, the two parties established
People’s Government of a strategic partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover:
’ Shijiazhuang and China State November 27, 2023 municipal and transportation investment and construction;
Construction Engineering urban rail transit construction; cooperation in public
Corporation Limited transportation-oriented development (TOD) mode; cooperation
in the development of key districts and urban renewal; and
novel infrastructure construction.
Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement Based on the overall planning of urban village renovation
between Municipal State- in Guangzhou, CSCEC’s development and the principle of
owned Enterprises for “value co-creation and shared value”, as well as the concept
8 Guangzhou Urban Village December 19, 2023 of “complementary advantages, mutual benefit and win-
Renovation Project and win cooperation”, the two parties established a strategic
China State Construction partnership. The cooperation will mainly cover: joint promotion
Engineering Corporation of local resources for groundwork, technical inputs, etc.
Limited
Strategic Cooperation Based on the overall planning of China International Capital
Agreement between Corporation Limited, CSCEC’s development and the principle
China State Construction of “voluntariness, fairness and honesty”, the two parties
9 Engineering Corporation December 29, 2023 established a strategic partnership. The cooperation will mainly

Limited and China
International Capital
Corporation Limited

cover: business cooperation in securities, finance, investment
consultancy, etc.; and cooperation related to the development
of double-wheel drive between finance and industry.
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XIV. Explanation on the Progress of the Use of Proceeds

Applicable ™ N/A

XV. Explanation on Other Material Matters that Have Significant Impacts on

Applicable ™ N/A

XVI. Index of Information Disclosure

During the Reporting Period, the Company published 158 announcements and documents on the website of the
SSE (www.sse.com.cn), and related announcements were also published in the China Securities Journal, Shanghai

Securities News, Securities Daily, and Securities Times.

Value Judgement and Investment Decision-making by Investors

No. Matter Date of disclosure
CSCEC: Announcement on the First Tranche of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect of Phase IV
1 Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares January 10, 2023
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding First Tranche
2 of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect of Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State  January 10, 2023
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding Third Tranche
3 of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect of Phase Ill Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State  January 12, 2023
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
CSCEC: Announcement on the Third Tranche of Unlocking in 2022 in Respect of Phase llI
4 Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares January 12, 2023
5 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to December 2022 January 13, 2023
6 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project February 1, 2023
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Huang Kesi’'s ceasing to be the
! Company'’s Vice President February 8, 2023
8 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 31st Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of February 8, 2023
Directors
9 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resignation of the Company’s Senior Management February 8, 2023
10 CSCEC: Briefings on Business in January 2023 February 16, 2023
i CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project February 28, 2023
12 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to February 2023 March 13, 2023
13 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project March 30, 2023
14 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 32nd Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of March 31, 2023
Directors
15 CSCEC: 2022 Investor Protection Work Report March 31, 2023
16 CSCEC: Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of March 31, 2023
Directors for 2022
17 CSCEQ: Announcement on Resolutions of the 19th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of March 31, 2023
Supervisors
18 CSCEC: 2022 Work Report of Independent Directors March 31, 2023
19 CSCEC: Announcement on Convening 2022 Annual Results Meeting April 11, 2023
20 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on 2022 Internal Control Evaluation Report April 18, 2023
of the Company
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Re-appointment of the Company’s )
21 Accounting Firm for 2023 April 18, 2023
22 CSCEC: 2022 Annual Financial Statements and Audit Report April 18, 2023
23 CSCEC: Accountiqg Firm’s Special Report on Occupation of Funds by Controlling Shareholder and April 18, 2023
Other Related Parties
24 CSCEC: Accounting Firm’s Audit Report on the Company’s Internal Control April 18, 2023
o5 CSCEC: Special Explanation of the Accounting Firm on Related Party Transactions Involving April 18, 2023

Finance Companies
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26 CSCEC: 2022 Internal Control Evaluation Report April 18, 2023

27 CSCEQ: Announcement on Resolutions of the 20th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of April 18, 2023
Supervisors

28 CSCEC: Annual Report 2022 April 18, 2023

29 CSCEC: 2022 Sustainability Report April 18, 2023

30 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Concurrent Appointment of Some April 18. 2023
Officers of the Company as Officers of the Controlling Shareholder P ’

31 CSCEC: Opinions of Independent Directors on Prior Approval of Re-appointment of the Company’s April 18. 2023
Accounting Firm for 2023 pritte,

32 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to March 2023 April 18, 2023

33 CSCI_EC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Company’s Provision for Asset April 18, 2023
Impairment for 2022

34 CSQEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Remuneration of the Company’s April 18, 2023
Senior Management

35 CSCEC: Announcement on Re-appointment of Accounting Firm for 2023 April 18, 2023

36 CSCEC: Summary of Annual Report 2022 April 18, 2023

37 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Company’s Related Party April 18. 2023
Transactions with China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. in 2022 P ’

38 CSCEC: Special Explanation and Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Company’s April 18 2023
External Guarantees for 2022 P '

39 CSCEC: Report on Sustained Evaluation on Risks of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. April 18, 2023

40 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Proposed Increase of External April 18, 2023
Guarantee Quota of the Company in 2023 P ’

41 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 33rd Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of April 18, 2023
Directors

40 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the 2022 Profit Distribution Plan of the April 18, 2023
Company

43 CSCEC: Announcement on Profit Distribution for 2022 April 18, 2023

44 CSCEC: Announcement on Provision for Asset Impairment in 2022 April 18, 2023

45 CSCEC: Announcement on the Proposed Increase of External Guarantee Quota in 2023 April 18, 2023

46 CSCEC: Report of 2023Q1 April 28, 2023

47 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 34th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of April 28, 2023
Directors

48 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project April 28, 2023

49 CSCEQ: Announcement on Resolutions of the 21st Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of April 28, 2023
Supervisors

50 CSCEC: Announcement on the Appointment of the Company’s Vice President April 28, 2023

51 CSCEC: Notice on Convening the 2022 Annual General Meeting April 28, 2023

52 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resignation of the Company’s Senior Management April 28, 2023

53 CSCEC: Ipde.pendentIOpinions of Independent Directors on the Appointment of Li Yongming as the April 28, 2023
Company’s Vice President
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Ma Zeping’s Ceasing to be the .

54 Company'’s Vice President April 28, 2023

55 CSCEC: Announcement on Addition of Provisional Proposals for the 2022 Annual General Meeting May 9, 2023

56 CSCEC: Statement of Independent Director Nominees May 9, 2023

57 CSCEC: Statement of Independent Director Candidates May 9, 2023

58 QSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 35th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of May 9, 2023
Directors

59 CSCEC: Independent Opinion of the Independent Directors on the Nomination of Independent May 9. 2023
Directors Candidates for the Third Session of the Board of Directors of the Company Y e

60 CSCEC: Information on the 2022 Annual General Meeting May 13, 2023
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No. Matter Date of disclosure
61 CSCEC: Announcement on Resignation of Independent Director May 18, 2023
62 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 2022 Annual General Meeting May 20, 2023
63 CSCEC: Announcement on the Partial Repurchase and Delisting of Phase Ill and Phase IV May 20 2023
Restricted Shares to Reduce the Company’s Registered Capital & Notification to Creditors Y2t
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on the 2022 Annual General Meeting of China
64 ; ; : . I, May 20, 2023
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
65 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to April 2023 May 20, 2023
66 CSCEC: Regulations on External Guarantee Management (Revised in May 2023) May 20, 2023
67 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 36th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of May 24, 2023
Directors
68 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project May 27, 2023
69 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resignation of the Company’s Senior Management June 6, 2023
70 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 37th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board of June 6, 2023
Directors
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Mr. Zhou Yong’'s Ceasing to be the
1 Company'’s Vice President June 6, 2023
72 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to May 2023 June 17, 2023
73 CSCEC: Announcement on Implementing Rights and Interests Distribution for 2022 June 21, 2023
74 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project June 29, 2023
75 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to June 2023 July 8, 2023
76 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project July 27, 2023
77 CSCEQ: Announcement on Repurchase and Write-off of Partial Restricted Shares for Equity July 28, 2023
Incentives
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding Repurchase and
78 Write-off of Partial Restricted Shares under Phases Ill and IV Restricted A Share Incentive Schemes  July 28, 2023
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on Shan Guangxiu’s Ceasing to be the
9 Company’s Vice President August 5, 2023
80 CSCEC: Independent Opinion of the Independent Directors on the Election of Shan Guangxiu as a August 5. 2023
Director of the Third Session of the Board of Directors of the Company 9 ’
a1 CSQEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 41st Meeting of the Third Session of the Board August 5, 2023
of Directors
82 CSCEC: Notice on Convening the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 August 5, 2023
83 CSCEC: Information on the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 August 15, 2023
84 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to July 2023 August 16, 2023
85 CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on the First Extraordinary General Meeting in August 22. 2023
2023 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited 9 ’
86 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 August 22, 2023
87 CSCEC: Announcement on Holding the 2023 Interim Results Presentation August 23, 2023
as CSQEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 42nd Meeting of the Third Session of the Board August 23, 2023
of Directors
89 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project August 29, 2023
90 CSCEC: Interim Report 2023 August 30, 2023
91 CSCEC: Summary of the Interim Report 2023 August 30, 2023
92 CSQEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 43rd Meeting of the Third Session of the Board August 30, 2023
of Directors
93 CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Company’s Provision for Asset August 30, 2023

Impairment in 2023H1
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94 CSCEC: Report on Sustained Evaluation on Risks of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. August 30, 2023

95 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 22th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board August 30, 2023
of Supervisors

96 CSCEC: Announcement on Provision for Asset Impairment in 2023H1 August 30, 2023

97 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to August 2023 September 16, 2023

98 CSCEC: Announcement on International Credit Ratings September 23, 2023

99 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project September 28, 2023

100 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to September 2023 October 12, 2023

101 CSCEC: Announcement on Proposed Increase in Shareholder Holdings of CSCEC’s Stocks October 20, 2023
CSCEC: Announcement on Investment in and Development of Real Estate Project of Longhua

102 Street, Xuhui District, Shanghai by Subsidiary Companies October 25, 2023

103 CSCEC: Announcement on the Progress of the Controlling Shareholder’s Increase Its Shareholding October 26, 2023
in the Company

104 CSCEC: Announcement on Holding the 2023Q3 Results Presentation October 26, 2023

105 CSCEC: Announcement on the Appointment of the Vice President and Change of the General October 27, 2023
Counsel of the Company

106 CSQEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 47th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board October 27, 2023
of Directors

107 CSCEC: Report of 2023Q3 October 27, 2023

108 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 23th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board October 27, 2023
of Supervisors
CSCEC: Independent Opinions of Independent Directors on the Appointment of Vice President and

109 Change of General Counsel of the Company October 27, 2023

110 QSCEC: Announcement on the Progress of the Controlling Shareholder’s Increase Its Shareholding October 31, 2023
in the Company

111 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project October 31, 2023

112 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 24th Meeting of the Third Session of the Board November 1, 2023
of Supervisors
CSCEC: Announcement on Investment in and Development of Real Estate Project at the North Side

113 : e - ; November 2, 2023
of Guogongzhuang Middle Street, Fengtai District, Beijing by Subsidiary Companies
CSCEC: Announcement on the Acquisition of the Joint Development Rights for the Urban Renewal

114 Project in Shuangsha Community, Huangpu District, Guangzhou through Equity Acquisition by  November 3, 2023
Subsidiary Companies

115 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to October 2023 November 11, 2023

116 CSCEQ: Announcement on Investment in and Development of Real Estate Project in Singapore by November 17, 2023
Subsidiary Companies

117 CSCEC: Announcement on the Progress of the Controlling Shareholder’s Increase Its Shareholding November 18, 2023
in the Company

118 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project November 29, 2023
CSCEC: Announcement on the Acquisition of Joint Development Rights for the Urban Renewal

119 Project in Wenchong East, Huangpu District, Guangzhou through Equity Acquisition by Subsidiary = December 6, 2023
Companies
CSCEC: Announcement on the Renewal of the Financial Services Framework Agreement between

120 China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. and China State Construction Engineering Corporation  December 8, 2023
and Daily Related Party Transactions

101 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors (Revision in December 8, 2023
December 2023)

109 CSQEC: .Announcement on'Revision of the Articles of Association of China State Construction December 8, 2023
Engineering Corporation Limited

123 CSCEC: Notice on Convening the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 December 8, 2023
CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors (Revision in

124 December 2023) December 8, 2023

125 CSCEC: Articles of Association (2023 Revised Draft) December 8, 2023
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No. Matter Date of disclosure
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters regarding the Repurchase
126 and Cancellation of Second Tranche of Shares in 2023 under Phase |V Restricted A Share Incentive  December 8, 2023
Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
127 CSCEC: Regulations on the Management of Related Party Transactions (2023 Revised Draft) December 8, 2023
108 (IDDSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 50th Meeting of the Third Session of Board of December 8, 2023
irectors
129 CSCEC: Announcement on the Repurchase and Cancellation of Second Tranche of Shares in 2023 December 8. 2023
under Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme '
CSCEC: Announcement on Revision of the Rules of Procedure of the Shareholders’ General
130 Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited December 8, 2023
131 CSCEQ: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 25th Meeting of the Third Session of Board of December 8, 2023
Supervisors
132 CSC.EIC: Bules of Procedure of the Strategy and Investment Committee of the Board of Directors December 8, 2023
(Revision in December 2023)
CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the Board of
133 Directors (Revision in December 2023) December 8, 2023
134 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure for Special Meetings of Independent Directors December 8, 2023
135 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Shareholders’ General Meeting (2023 Revised Draft) December 8, 2023
136 CSCEC: Rgview Opinion ofAthe First Meeting of the Independent Directors’ Special Meeting of the December 8, 2023
Third Session of Board of Directors
CSCEC: Announcement on the Renewal of the Comprehensive Services Framework Agreement
137 between CSCEC and China State Construction Engineering Corporation and Daily Related Party = December 8, 2023
Transactions
CSCEC: Announcement on Revision of the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors of China
138 State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited December 8, 2023
139 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors (2023 Revised Draft) December 8, 2023
140 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to November 2023 December 13, 2023
141 CSCEC: Information on the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 December 15, 2023
142 CSCEC: Working Rules for Independent Directors (2023 Revised Draft) December 15, 2023
143 CSCIlEC:.Announcement on Adding Temporary Proposals at the Second Extraordinary General December 15, 2023
Meeting in 2023
144 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 51st Meeting of the Third Session of Board of December 15, 2023
Directors
145 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resignation of the Chairman of Board of Supervisors December 27, 2023
146 CSCEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in 2023 December 28, 2023
147 CSCEC: Working Rules for Independent Directors (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
148 CSCEQ: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 26th Meeting of the Third Session of Board of December 28, 2023
Supervisors
CSCEC: Administrative Measures for Information Disclosure and Internal Reports of Material
149 Information (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
150 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
151 CSCEC: Announcement on the Repurchase and Cancellation of the Second Tranche of Restricted December 28. 2023
Shares under Phase IV to Reduce the Company’s Registered Capital & Notification to Creditors ’
152 CSOEC: Announcement on the Resolutions of the 52nd Meeting of the Third Session of Board of December 28, 2023
Directors
153 CSCEC: Rules of Procedure of the Shareholders’ General Meeting (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
154 CSCEC: Articles of Association (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
155 ggQCgl)EC Regulations on the Management of Related Party Transactions (Revision in December December 28, 2023
156 CSCEC: Administrative Measures on Insider Registration (Revision in December 2023) December 28, 2023
CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on the Second Extraordinary General Meeting in
157 2023 of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited December 28, 2023
158 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project December 30, 2023
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2. Explanation on changes in shares
¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, there were three changes in the Company’s shares, which were caused by the Company’s
unlocking of restricted shares, repurchase and cancellation of some restricted shares. The details are as follows:

(1) The Company completed the unlocking of the first tranche of 300,057,600 restricted shares in 2022 under
the Phase IV restricted A share incentive scheme, converting circulating shares subject to trading moratorium
to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The total share capital of the Company amounted to
41,934,432,844 shares. For details, please refer to the Announcement on the First Tranche of Unlocking in 2022
in Respect of Phase IV Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares published by the Company on
January 10, 2023.

(2) The Company completed the unlocking of the third tranche of 184,966,000 restricted shares in 2022 under
the Phase Ill restricted A share incentive scheme, converting circulating shares subject to trading moratorium
to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The total share capital of the Company amounted to
41,934,432,844 shares. For details, please refer to the Announcement on the Third Tranche of Unlocking in 2022
in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares published by the Company on
January 12, 2023.

(3) The Company completed the repurchase from the participants and cancellation of 14,918,400 restricted shares
that were not eligible for unlocking. After the completion of the repurchase and cancellation, the registered capital
(and share capital) of the Company was decreased by RMB14,918,400 (shares) to RMB41,919,514,444 (shares).
For details, please refer to the Announcement on Repurchase and Cancellation of Partial Restricted Shares for
Equity Incentives published on July 28, 2023.

3. The impact, if any, of changes in shares on financial indicators such as earnings per share, net
asset per share for the latest year and the latest Reporting Period

¥ Applicable N/A

During the Reporting Period, changes in the Company’s shares were resulted from the repurchase and partial
cancellation of restricted shares, and the impact was as follows:

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB

Financial indicators Cancellation of restricted Cancellation of restricted

shares considered shares not considered

Earnings per share 131 131
Net asset per share 9.98 9.98

4. Other disclosures that the Company deemed necessary or were required by securities regulatory
authorities

Applicable ™ N/A
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(I) Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium
¥ Applicable O N/A

Unit: Share(s)

Number of shares

subiect to tradin Number of shares Number of new Number of shares Reaeoniar Date of
Ject 9 released from shares subject subject to trading . release
Name of shareholder moratorium at the . . . . . the trading L
- trading moratorium to trading moratorium moratorium at the . from trading
beginning of the i T d of th moratorium .
year or the year or the year end of the year moratorium
Participants of restricted share 1,099,066,000 -499,942,000 0 599,124,000 During the trading

incentive schemes moratorium period
Total 1,099,066,000 -499,942,000 0 599,124,000 / /

For details, please refer to “2. Explanation on changes in shares” in “(l) Table of changes in shares” under “I. Changes
in Share Capital” in this section.

Il. Issuance and Listing of Securities
(I) Issuance of securities during the Reporting Period
™ Applicable O N/A
Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Number of shares Date of
(or amount) termination

permitted to be of the

listed for trading trading

Type of shares and their Date of issuance Issuing price

derivative securities (or interest rate) B LT REERI I

Bonds (including enterprise bonds, corporate bonds and non-financial enterprise debt financing instruments)

23 CSCEC MTNOOL June 19, 2023 3.24% 3,000,000 June 25,2023 3,000,000 /
23 CSCEC MTN002 July 11,2023 3.14% 3,000,000 July 14,2023 3,000,000 /
23 CSCEC MTNOO3 August 10, 2023 3.08% 3,000,000 August 15, 2023 3,000,000 /

Explanation on the issuance of securities during the Reporting Period (for bonds with different interest rates during the
duration, please explain separately):

™ Applicable [ N/A
For details of the issuance of bonds, please refer to SECTION IX “INFORMATION ON BONDS” of this Report.

(I) Changes in the Company’s total number of shares and structure of shareholders and
changes in the asset and liability structure of the Company

O Applicable ™ N/A

() Existing internal employee shares

O Applicable ™ N/A

lll. Shareholders and De Facto Controller

() Total number of shareholders

Total number of ordinary shareholders as at the end of the Reporting Period 414,587
Total number of ordinary shareholders at the end of the month immediately before the date of disclosure of

392,560
the Annual Report
Total number of preference shareholders with voting rights restored as at the end of the Reporting Period N/A
Total number of preference shareholders with voting rights restored at the end of the month immediately N/A

before the date of disclosure of the Annual Report
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(I) Shareholding of top 10 shareholders, top 10 shareholders of circulating shares (or holders
of shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at the end of the Reporting Period

Shareholding of top 10 shareholders (excluding lending shares through refinancing)

Unit: Share(s)

Increase/decrease  Number of shares AR Number of shares Pledged, marked or frozen Nature of
Name of shareholder (full name) during the Reporting held as at the end of 5 9 held subject to N e
Period the Reporting Period trading moratorium Status Number
China State Construction Engineering Corporation 88,501,340 23,719,197,337 56.58 0 Nil géﬁ:ﬁwned legal
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited -780,930,386 1,387,047,275 3.31 0 Nil Others
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 0 1,258,300,898 3.00 0 Nil Others
Central Huiin Asset Management Lid. 0 563,327,120 139 0 NI ﬁ‘;;%ﬁwned leg
China Life Insurance Company Limited - Traditional - .
General Insurance Products - 005L - CT001 Hu 147,086,794 231,512 065 0 NI Others
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China - SSE 50 Exchange ' Securities investment
Traded Open-end Index Securities Investment Fund 18721120 255,381,383 061 0 NI fund
National Social Security Fund Portfolio 413 7,180,000 205,170,036 049 0 Nil Others
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Huatai- Securies investment
PineBridge CSI 300 Exchange Traded Open-end Index 69,810,700 155,880,345 037 0 Nil fund
Securities Investment Fund
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. - E Fund SSE 50 Index ' Securities investment
Enhanced Securities Investment Fund 4,909,960 127,093,386 030 0 NI fund
Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd. - Zhongtai Xingyuan Value Securies investment
Selected Flexible Allocation Mixed Securities Investment -42,052,702 119,451,542 0.28 0 Nil fund
Fund
Shareholdings of the top 10 holders of shares not subject to trading moratorium
Number of circulating Class and number of shares
Name of shareholder shares not subject to
trading moratorium Class Number

China State Construction Engineering Corporation 23719197337 RMB ordinary shares 23,719,197337
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 1387,047275  RMB ordinary shares 1,387,047,275
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 1258300898 RMB ordinary shares 1,258,300,898
Central Huijin Asset Management Ltd. 583,327,120 RMB ordinary shares 583,327,120
China Life Insurance Company Limited - Traditional - General Insurance Products - 005L - CT001 Hu 23017512 RMB ordinary shares 203077512
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China - SSE 50 Exchange Traded Open-end Index Securities Investment Fund 255,381,383 RMB ordinary shares 255,381,383
National Social Security Fund Portfolio 413 205,170,036 RMB ordinary shares 205,170,036
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Huatai-PineBridge CSI 300 Exchange Traded '
Open-end Index Securities Investment Fund 155880345 RMB ordinary shares 135,380,345
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. - E Fund SSE 50 Index Enhanced Securities Investment Fund 127,093,386 RMB ordinary shares 127,093,386
Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd. - Zhongtai Xingyuan Value Selected Flexible Allocation Mixed Securities Investment Fund 119451542 RMB ordinary shares 119451542
Descriptions of special repurchase accounts among top 10 shareholders N/A
Descriptions of entrusting voting rights, entrusted voting rights or waiving voting rights of the above shareholders N/A

Descriptions of the related relationship or acts in concert with the above shareholders

There is no related relationship or action in concert between China State Construction
Engineering Corporation, the largest shareholder of the Company, and any other
shareholders mentioned above. The Company is not aware of any related relationship
among the above shareholders, or that they are parties acting in concert.

Descriptions of the preference shareholders with voting rights restored and the number of shares held

N/A

Note: The Company received a notice from its controlling shareholder, China State Construction, on October 19, 2023 that China
State Construction would increase its shareholding in the Company’s A shares by way of centralized bidding transactions
through the trading system of the SSE within six months from the date of disclosure of the Announcement on Proposed
Increase in Shareholder Holdings of CSCEC’s Stocks (No.: Interim 2023-057), with a total increase of not less than RMB500
million and not more than RMB1 billion (the Proposed Shareholding Increase). From October 25, 2023 to April 16, 2024,
China State Construction increased its shareholding in the Company by a cumulative total of 100,845,940 A shares by
way of centralized bidding transactions through the trading system of the SSE, with a total increase of approximately
RMB500,004,203.40 (excluding taxes and fees). The Proposed Shareholding Increase has been completed. For details, please
refer to the Announcement on the Implementation Result of the Proposed Shareholding Increase of the Controlling Shareholder

of the Company (No.: Interim 2024-017).
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Participation of top 10 shareholders in lending of shares in the refinancing business
¥ Applicable O N/A

Unit: Share(s)

Top 10 shareholders participating in the refinancing and lending of shares

Shares held in general Shares lent under refinancing
and credit accounts at the  and not yet returned at the
beginning of the Reporting  beginning of the Reporting

Shares held in general and ~ Shares lent under refinancing
credit accounts at the end of  and not yet returned at the

Name of shareholder (full name) Period Period the Reporting Period end of the Reporting Period
Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
Total number (%) Total number (%) Total number (%) Total number (%)

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China -
SSE 50 Exchange Traded Open-end Index 179,654,264 0.43 0 0.00 255,381,383 0.61 1,819,900 0.00
Securities Investment Fund

Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited - Huatai-PineBridge CSI
300 Exchange Traded Open-end Index
Securities Investment Fund

86,069,645 0.21 0 0.00 165,880,345 0.37 104,000 0.00

Change in the top 10 shareholders compared to the last Reporting Period
¥ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: Share(s)

Change in the top 10 shareholders compared to the end of the last Reporting Period
Number of shares held in general

Addition/ Number of shares lent under and credit accounts, and shares
Withdrawal refinancing and not yet returned  lent under refinancing and not
Name of shareholder (full name) during the  at the end of the Reporting Period  yet returned at the end of the
Reporting Reporting Period
Period
Total number Percgntage Total number Perc«:ntage
(%) (%)
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. = GF CSI Infrastructure
Project Traded Open-end Index ETF Securities Investment Withdrawal 3,966,200 0.01 85,148,600 0.20
Fund
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited — Huatai-
PineBridge CSI 300 Exchange Traded Open-end Index Addition 104,000 0.00 155,984,345 0.37

Securities Investment Fund

Number of shares held by top 10 holders of shares subject to trading moratorium and trading conditions

O Applicable ™ N/A

Please refer to the relevant content of “(Il) Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium” under “I. Changes in Share
Capital” in this Section.

(Il) Strategic investors or general legal persons becoming the top 10 shareholders as a result
of new share placements

O Applicable ™ N/A
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IV. Controlling Shareholder and De Facto Controller

() Controlling shareholder
1. Legal person

™ Applicable O N/A

Name

China State Construction Engineering Corporation

Person in charge of the company or legal
representative

Zheng Xuexuan

Date of establishment

It was established on June 11, 1982 following the official announcement
of the former Ministry of Urban and Rural Construction and Environmental
Protection, and obtained the business license from the former State
Administration for Industry and Commerce on March 25, 1983. It was
transformed to a wholly state-owned company on November 28, 2017, and
changed its name to China State Construction Engineering Corporation (1
EERERABRAT).

Principal business

The operation of state-owned assets within the scope authorized by the
State Council; undertaking of survey, design, construction, installation and
consultation of civil and constructional engineering projects at home and
abroad; operation of real estate; decoration works; sculpture and frescoes
business; undertaking of foreign economic assistance projects of the state;
contracting of foreign related projects in the PRC, organization of non-
trade enterprises overseas, carrying out labor service cooperation in the
PRC using foreign resources, funds and technology, and export business
of equipment and materials required for foreign projects; production and
operation of construction materials and other nonmetallic mineral products,
metal products for construction, tools, construction engineering machinery
and drilling machinery; import and export of goods and technology, agent
service for import and export; project investment; real estate development;
engineering survey and design; construction project management; technical
consulting, technical services; property management. (Market entities may
independently choose business items and carry out business activities in
accordance with the law; as for items subject to approval in accordance with
the law, relevant business activities shall be carried out with the approval
of the competent authorities and within the scope of the approval; business
activities of the forbidden and restricted projects under the national and
municipal industry policies are not allowed.)

Shareholding and equity participation in other
domestic and overseas listed companies during
the Reporting Period

Apart from the Company and the listed companies controlled by the
Company, China State Construction holds 27.05% shares of CSCEC SCIMEE
Sci. & Tech. Co., Ltd. (stock short name: SCIMEE, stock code: 300425.57)
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, China State Construction Innovation
Investment Co., LTD (“CSCEC Innovation Investment”). CSCEC Innovation
Investment is the controlling shareholder of SCIMEE.

Other matters

/

2. Natural person

O Applicable ™ N/A

3. Special explanation on absence of a controlling shareholder of the Company

O Applicable ™ N/A
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4. Explanation on change of the controlling shareholder during the Reporting Period
O Applicable ™ N/A

5. Chart showing the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and the
controlling shareholder

¥ Applicable [ N/A

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

56.58%

l

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited

(I) De facto controller
1. Legal person

™ Applicable [ N/A

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the

Name State Council

2. Natural person
O Applicable ™ N/A
3. Special explanation on absence of a de facto controller of the Company

O Applicable ™ N/A
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4. Explanation on change of control of the Company during the Reporting Period

O Applicable ™ N/A

5. Chart showing the ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and the de facto

controller

™ Applicable [ N/A

6. The de facto controller controlling the Company through a trust or other asset management

methods

O Applicable ™ N/A

SASAC of the State Council

100%

l

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation

56.58%

l

China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited
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() Other information of the controlling shareholder and the de facto controller
O Applicable ™ N/A

V. The Accumulated Number of Shares Pledged by the Company’s
Controlling Shareholder or the Largest Shareholder and Their Parties
Acting in Concert Represents More than 80% of the Number of the
Company’s Shares Held by Them

O Applicable ™ N/A

VI. Other Corporate Shareholders Holding More than 10% of the Company’s
Shares

O Applicable ™ N/A
VIl.Explanation on Restrictions on the Reduction of Shareholding
O Applicable ™ N/A

Vlil. Details of the Implementation of Share Repurchase during the Reporting
Period

O Applicable ™ N/A
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SECTION Vil
INFORMATION ON PREFERENCE SHARES

O Applicable ™ N/A
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SECTION IX
INFORMATION ON BONDS

. Enterprise Bonds, Corporate Bonds and Non-financial Enterprise Debt
Financing Instruments

¥ Applicable N/A

() Enterprise bonds
Applicable ¥ N/A

(I) Corporate bonds

¥ Applicable N/A

1. Basic information of corporate bonds

The Company’s countermeasures to the risks of termination of listing and trading of bonds
Applicable ¥ N/A

Bonds in default
Applicable ¥ N/A

Payment of interest and repayment of principal of bonds during the Reporting Period
Applicable ¥ N/A

2. The triggering and implementation of the issuer’s or investor’s option clauses and investor
protection clauses

Applicable ¥ N/A

3. Intermediaries that provide services for the issuance of corporate bonds and the duration

business
Intermediary Office address I G Sl Contact person Tel
accountants
Units 01-12, Level 17, Ernst &
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Young Tower, Oriental Plaza, No. 1 Zhou Ying, ) )
(Special General Partnership) East Chang An Avenue, Dongcheng Shen Yan Zhou Ying 010-58153000

District, Beijing, the PRC

4. Use of raised funds at the end of the Reporting Period
Applicable ¥ N/A

5. Adjustment of credit rating results
Applicable ™ N/A

6. The implementation and changes of guarantees, debt repayment plans and other debt repayment
protection measures during the Reporting Period and their impact

Applicable ¥ N/A
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The Company’s countermeasures to the risks of termination of listing and trading of bonds
Applicable ¥ N/A

Bonds in default
Applicable ¥ N/A

Payment of interest and repayment of principal of bonds during the Reporting Period

¥ Applicable N/A

Description of payment of interest and

Name of bond s
repayment of principal

2018 medium-term notes (Tranche 1) of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

2018 medium-term notes (Tranche 2) of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited
2020 medium-term notes (Tranche 1) of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited
2020 medium-term notes (Tranche 2) of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

2020 medium-term notes (Tranche 3) of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

Normal repayment of principal and interest

Normal repayment of principal and interest

Normal repayment of principal and interest

Normal repayment of principal and interest

Normal repayment of principal and interest

2. The triggering and implementation of the issuer’s or investor’s option clauses and investor
protection clauses

Applicable ¥ N/A

3. Intermediaries that provide services to the issuance of corporate bonds and the duration business

Name of signatory

Intermediary Office address e oo Contact person Tel
Units 01-12, Level 17, Ernst & Young
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Tower, Oriental Plaza, No. 1 East Zhou Ying, Shen Yan Zhou Ying 010-58153000

(Special General Partnership)  Chang An Avenue, Dongcheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

Changes to the above intermediary

Applicable ¥ N/A

| CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED
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4. Use of raised funds at the end of the Reporting Period
¥ Applicable N/A

Unit: 000 yuan Currency: RMB

Is it consistent

Operation of the with the purpose,

Rectification on

Total amount of Unused  special account . use plan and
Name of bond Used amount 8 illegal use of
proceeds amount  for proceeds (if " other agreements
proceeds (if any) . .
any) promised in the

prospectus?

2018 medium-term notes (Tranche

1) of China State Construction 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2018 medium-term notes (Tranche

2) of China State Construction 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2020 medium-term notes (Tranche

1) of China State Construction 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2020 medium-term notes (Tranche

2) of China State Construction 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2020 medium-term notes (Tranche

3) of China State Construction 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2023 medium-term notes (Tranche

1) of China State Construction 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2023 medium-term notes (Tranche
2) of China State Construction 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

2023 medium-term notes (Tranche
3) of China State Construction 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0 Nil Nil Yes
Engineering Corporation Limited

The progress of the proceeds for construction projects and operating benefits
Applicable ¥ N/A
Explanations on changing the use of proceeds from above-mentioned bonds during the Reporting Period
Applicable ¥ N/A
Other explanation
Applicable ™ N/A
5. Adjustment of credit rating results
Applicable ¥ N/A

6. The implementation and changes of guarantees, debt repayment plans and other debt repayment
protection measures during the Reporting Period and their impact

Applicable ™ N/A
7. Explanation on other information of debt financing instruments of non-financial enterprises

¥ Applicable N/A
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(IV) Loss in the Company’s consolidated statement during the Reporting Period exceeded 10%
of its net assets at the end of the previous year

O Applicable ™ N/A

(V) The delinquency of interest-bearing debts excluding the bond at the end of the Reporting
Period

O Applicable ¥ N/A

(Vl) The violation of laws and regulations, Articles of Association and the information disclosure
management system and the impact of the agreement or commitment of the bond
prospectus on the rights and interests of bond investors during the Reporting Period

O Applicable ™ N/A

(VI) The Company’s accounting data and financial indicators for the last two years as at the
end of the Reporting Period

¥ Applicable [ N/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Increase/decrease at
the end of the Reporting Reason
Period over the end of for the change
last year (%)

Major indicators 2023 2022

Net profit attributable to shareholders of the

Company after deducting non-recurring profit 48,538,669 45,233,864 7.3 Increase in operating

or loss profit
. Decrease by 2.4
0
Current ratio (%) 128.8 131.2 percentage points /
Quick ratio (%) 67.0 65.0 Increase by 2'(.) Increase in quick assets
percentage points
Gearing ratio (%) 74.8 74.4 Increase by 0'4 Increase in total liabilities
percentage point
. Decrease by 1.0 )
- - 0,
Debt-to-EBITDA ratio (%) 16.3 17.3 percentage point Increase in total debts
. Increase in interest
Interest coverage ratio 3.5 3.6 -0.1 expenses
) ) Increase in interest
Cash interest coverage ratio 2.0 21  -0A1 expenses
EBITDA interest coverage ratio 4.0 4.0 / /
Loan repayment ratio (%) 100.0 100.0 / /
Interest repayment ratio (%) 100.0 100.0 / /

Il. Information on Convertible Corporate Bonds

O Applicable ™ N/A
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SECTION X
FINANCIAL REPORT

l. Audit Report
™ Applicable [ N/A
See the attached for details
Il. Financial Statements
See the attached for details
Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan
Date of approval by the Board of Directors for submission: April 18, 2024
Amendments

O Applicable ™ N/A

Financial statements signed and sealed by the Head of the Company (Chairman), person-in-charge of accounting (chief

Index of financial officer) and person-in-charge of the accounting department (head of the accounting department)

documents

available for The original audit report with the seal of the accounting firm and signatures and seals of the certified public accountants
vai

inspection The originals of all Company documents and manuscripts of announcements publicly disclosed during the Reporting

Period

| CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED
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EY:

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No. 70048147_A01
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited
To the Shareholders of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited,

() Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited (hereinafter
the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated and company income statements, the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the
consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and
company’s financial position as at 31 December 2023, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year
ended in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (‘“ASBES”).

(1) Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

(1ll) Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

| CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED



Aaupitor’s REPORT [ HIEGEE

AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No. 70048147_A01

(1ll) Key audit matters (continued)

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The revenue of the Company is mainly derived from construction
contracts and recognised based on the performance progress
over the period of the contract. Depending on the nature
of construction projects, determined by input method, the
performance progress is measured by reference to the
percentage of actual contract costs incurred to the total
budgeted costs. Management makes estimates on the
revenue and budgeted costs at the inception of each contract.
Management shall continuously review and revise financial
impacts arising from the changes in the estimated total revenue
and budgeted costs based on factors such as scope changes
and cost to completion throughout the contract period.

Estimates in respect of revenue, budgeted costs as well as the
progress of related construction services involve management’s
use of significant estimates and judgements, and have
significant impact on the recognition of revenue. Therefore, we
identified the revenue recognition from construction contracts
as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in Note
II.24 and 111.34 and Note V.53 to the financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of, tested and evaluated the
relevant controls over revenue recognition from construction
contracts, including the key internal control of preparation of
revenue and budgeted costs, the determination of performance
progress, and the calculation of revenue according to the
performance progress;

We obtained the list of construction contracts from management,
and we performed the following procedures on a sample basis:

o Reviewed the key terms of the construction contracts,
revenue and budgeted costs from management, as
well as supporting documents such as changes on
budgeted costs, variation orders made to the original
contracts and claims and incentives, evaluating the
appropriateness of management’s estimation basis of
revenue and budgeted costs;

o Tested the accuracy of actual costs incurred during
the year by reviewing supporting documents and
verifying whether the actual costs were recorded in the
appropriate accounting period;

o Recalculated performance progress based on contract
costs of incurred and total projected costs of contracts,
recalculated revenue recognised for the current period
based on projected total revenue and performance
progress, tested accuracy and performed analytical
procedure based on gross margins;

o Visiting selected samples of sites of construction
projects to observe the progress, discussing with the
site project management, comparing the performance
progress with ledger record, and evaluating the
reasonableness of the performance progress of the
construction projects.

Meanwhile, we evaluated the adequacy of disclosure of revenue
recognition from construction contracts.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

(1ll) Key audit matters (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No. 70048147 _A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment allowance of accounts receivable and contract assets

The impairment allowance of accounts receivable, contract
assets was recognised based on expected credit losses (ECLs).
The management determines the ECLs based on reasonable
and supportable information on past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions etc., which involves
significant management’s judgements and estimates. The
balances of the Company’s accounts receivable and contract
assets are significant, and their recoverability has a significant
impact on the financial statements. Therefore, we identified the
impairment allowance of accounts receivable, contract assets
as a key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in Note
111110 and Ill. 34 and Note V. 4, V.9 to the financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of, tested and evaluated the
relevant controls over the impairment allowance test of accounts
receivable and contract assets;

For accounts receivable and contract assets which the
management assesses the ECLs individually, we checked
supporting documents to assess the customers’ payment
ability and the historical settlement of the contract assets on a
sample basis. Combined with the customers’ financial position,
credit status, project progress, historical payment record and
forecasted future economic situation, we evaluated the rationality
and sufficiency of the management’s provision of ECLs;

For accounts receivable, contract assets which the management
assesses the ECLs collectively by reference to the credit risk
characteristics based on the historical payment, settlement
and ageing profile, combined with the current condition and
forward-looking adjustments, we evaluated the appropriateness
of classification by the management and the estimated ECLs
rate for different categories. On a sample basis, we assessed
the accuracy of the credit risk classification and ageing profiles
of accounts receivable and contract assets receivables, and
recalculated the provision of ECLs;

We inspected the subsequent payments of accounts receivable
and the subsequent settlements of contract assets on a sample
basis;

Meanwhile, we evaluated the adequacy of disclosure of
impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets.

(IV) Other information

The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

| CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No. 70048147_A01

China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

(V) Responsibilities of the management and those charged with governance
for the financial statements

The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with ASBEs, and for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting, unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

(VI) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
generally considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2024) Shen Zi No. 70048147_A01
China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

(V) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide statements to the governance regarding compliance with ethical requirements relating to
independence, communicating with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be considered to
affect the independence, as well as the relevant precautions (if applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

st & ey s biig ULe Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou Ying

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Shen Yan

China Beijing 18 April, 2024
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coNsOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
For the year ended 31 December 2023

ASSETS Note V
Current assets

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Cash and bank balances 1 358,790,899 335,254,102
Financial assets held for trading 2 14,854 20,153
Notes receivable 3 2,613,164 6,390,924
Accounts receivable 4 257,698,659 210,431,620
Accounts receivables financing 5 4,353,284 4,658,182
Prepayments 6 28,778,596 37,223,161
Other receivables 7 76,554,995 73,584,067
Inventories 8 796,342,895 771,548,600
Contract assets 9 334,954,194 262,511,324
Current portion of non-current assets 10 54,290,578 49,254,042
Other current assets 11 134,570,627 123,911,880
Total current assets 2,048,962,745 1,874,788,055
Non-current assets
Debt investments 12 21,681,916 22,545,039
Other debt investments 136,574 272,924
Long-term receivables 13 111,329,401 109,091,602
Long-term equity investments 14 113,983,973 111,102,151
Investments in other equity instruments 15 6,107,503 4,610,471
Other non-current financial assets 16 1,525,114 1,565,153
Investment properties 17 158,491,475 147,675,206
Fixed assets 18 52,721,575 49,844,411
Construction in progress 19 4,086,880 3,999,701
Right of use assets 20 6,689,182 6,934,438
Intangible assets 21 32,730,141 26,203,627
Goodwill 22 2,387,960 2,339,280
Long-term prepaid expenses 23 1,448,739 1,288,110
Deferred tax assets 24 22,885,269 20,838,269
Other non-current assets 25 318,154,072 269,804,869
Total non-current assets 854,359,774 778,115,251

TOTAL ASSETS

2,903,322,519

2,652,903,306

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Note V 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 28 124,352,134 78,154,159
Notes payable 29 10,770,185 10,308,981
Accounts payable 30 689,957,840 585,744,273
Advances from customers 31 843,074 729,857
Contract liabilities 32 316,984,078 337,693,219
Employee benefits payable 33 11,494,654 10,329,539
Taxes and surcharges payable 34 66,087,180 65,864,695
Other payables 35 139,739,834 137,554,165
Current portion of non-current liabilities 36 127,873,148 118,183,943
Other current liabilities 37 102,330,742 84,744,727
Total current liabilities 1,590,432,869 1,429,302,558
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 38 458,112,463 398,970,893
Bonds payable 39 92,372,831 103,797,195
Lease liabilities 40 4,607,506 4,840,508
Long-term payables 41 12,380,443 14,992,672
Long-term employee benefits payable 42 1,541,880 1,667,930
Provisions 43 2,032,508 4,317,563
Deferred income 44 388,504 416,592
Deferred tax liabilities 24 8,799,029 9,637,504
Other non-current liabilities 45 1,584,377 4,672,981
Total non-current liabilities 581,819,541 543,213,838
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,172,252,410 1,972,516,396
Shareholders’ equity
Paid-in capital 46 41,919,514 41,934,433
Other equity instruments 47 9,131,494 10,000,000
Including: Perpetual bonds 9,131,494 10,000,000
Capital reserve 48 12,050,197 11,808,020
Less: Treasury shares (1,831,725) (1,880,038)
Other comprehensive income 49 (2,575,572) (1,953,749
Special reserve 50 915,879 305,176
General risk reserve 2,582,513 2,185,029
Surplus reserve 51 15,579,360 14,349,125
Retained earnings 52 349,838,232 307,574,145
Total equity attributable to the shareholders 427,609,892 384,322,141
Non-controlling interests 303,460,217 296,064,769
Total shareholders’ equity 731,070,109 680,386,910

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2,903,322,519

2,652,903,306

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

156 | CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CORPORATION LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note V 2023 2022
Revenue 53 2,265,529,244 2,055,052,070
Less: Cost of sales 53 2,042,723,831 1,840,182,381
Taxes and surcharges 54 14,311,655 11,755,217
Selling and distribution expenses 55 7,628,182 6,543,630
General and administrative expenses 56 34,402,175 33,996,779
Research and development expenses 57 46,073,572 49,753,236
Finance expenses 58 18,577,073 19,673,762
Including: Interest expenses 20,111,090 17,895,421
Interest income 4,573,352 3,913,677
Add: Other income 59 1,365,982 1,108,821
Investment income 60 4,036,060 5,675,523
Including: Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 3,853,217 4,459,665
(1,673,269 150250
Losses arising from changes in fair value 61 (9,444) (116,297)
Credit impairment losses 62 (8,596,270) (8,591,904)
Asset impairment losses 63 (5,706,212) (4,955,812)
Gains on disposals of assets 229,435 465,690
Operating profit 93,132,307 86,733,086
Add: Non-operating income 64 1,166,293 2,318,279
Less: Non-operating expenses 65 1,303,127 215,930
Profit before income taxes 92,995,473 88,835,435
Less: Income tax expenses 67 19,455,760 19,623,672
Profit 73,539,713 69,211,763
Including: Net profit of the merged party under business
combination under common control - 50,362
before the combination
Classified by continuity of operations
Profit from continuing operations 73,539,713 69,211,763
Classified by ownership of the equity
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 54,264,173 50,950,301
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 19,275,540 18,261,462
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

158

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Note V 2023 2022
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (1,088,940) (2,828,791)
Attributable to owners of the parents 49 (677,284) (1,243,480)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
mp 430,181 (119,689)
to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (3,407) 6,956
Changes in fair value of investments in other equit
anges In talr vaile o Inv ' aquity 433,588 (126,645)
instruments
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
comp vel v i (1,107,465) (1,123,791)
profit or loss
Shares of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified subsequently into profit or loss by (285,892) (5667,030)
the investee under equity method
Changes in fair value of other debt investments 10,764 (34,170)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currenc
xchange cffter ransiat eign currency (832,337) (522,501)
financial statements
Attributable to non-controlling interests 49 (411,656) (1,585,311)
Total comprehensive income 72,450,773 66,382,972
Including:
Attributable to owners of the parent 53,586,889 49,706,821
Attributable to non-controlling interests 18,863,884 16,676,151
Earnings per share 68
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.31 1.28
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.31 1.28

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan

Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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cONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Note V 2023 2022
I. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from sales of goods and rendering of services 2,290,420,688 2,127,797,407
Refund of taxes and surcharges 4,767,827 11,502,252
Cash receipts relating to other operating activities 69 16,708,807 15,092,571
Sub-total cash flows from operating activities 2,311,897,322 2,154,392,230
Cash payments for goods and services 2,083,316,637 1,934,974,478
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 111,450,131 104,179,143
Payments of taxes and surcharges 75,684,763 79,807,903
Cash payments relating to other operating activities 69 30,415,668 31,601,779
Sub-total cash flows used in operating activities 2,300,867,199 2,150,563,303
Net cash flows from operating activities 70 11,030,123 3,828,927
Il. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash receipts from disposal of investments 69 4,097,507 3,780,457
Cash receipts from returns on investments 69 2,565,372 4,261,963
Neta(r:%sgt[]eecreligrt]sg_ftrgrrpn ﬂ:;sjgtssal of fixed assets, intangible assets 69 2,552,102 2,482,917
Netbii?:e;esﬁﬁz from disposal of subsidiaries and other 31,529 448115

Net cash receipts from acquisition of subsidiaries and other
business units - 1,614,107
Cash receipts relating to other investing activities 69 18,960,956 23,169,015
Sub-total cash flows from investing activities 28,207,466 35,756,574
Cas(?thpee;ylrgr?g_tfe:% E;Cs(i:itr: fixed assets, intangible assets and 69 34,055,554 25,948,593
Cash payments for investments 69 7,896,596 12,447,586
Netu%eiltséh payments to acquire subsidiaries and other business 1,059,363 B
Netbcua;:ers):ygﬁgts to disposal of subsidiaries and other _ 359,508
Cash payments relating to other investing activities 69 11,697,472 8,478,139
Sub-total cash flows used in investing activities 54,708,985 47,233,826
Net cash flows used in investing activities (26,501,519) (11,477,252)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Note V 2023 2022

Ill. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash receipts from capital contributions 40,181,591 2,669,691
Including: Cash receipts from capital contributions from non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries LT 2,669,691

Cash receipts from borrowings 609,176,923 465,358,466

Cash receipts from issuance of bonds 139,588,296 34,495,000

Cash receipts relating to other financing activities 69 10,015,322 17,129,076

Sub-total cash flows from financing activities 798,962,132 519,652,233

Repayments of borrowings 657,056,112 442,670,838
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and

interest expenses 53,335,149 46,699,147

Including: Dividends or profit pald_ tp rjon—controlllng 11,370,484 12,040,723

shareholders of subsidiaries

Other cash payments relating to financing activities 69 58,120,675 13,761,620

Sub-total cash flows used in financing activities 768,511,936 503,131,605

Net cash flows from financing activities 30,450,196 16,520,628

V. Effe_ct of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash 1,151,944 2,057,637

equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 16,130,744 10,929,940

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 313,000,191 302,070,251

VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 70 329,130,935 313,000,191

The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement.
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comPANY BALANCE SHEET [

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
For the year ended 31 December 2023

ASSETS 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 16,512,686 20,029,597
Including: Deposited in financial company 4,728,275 3,759,894
Notes receivable 58,941 23,376
Accounts receivable 26,260,382 24,745,860
Accounts receivable financing 20,826 65,550
Prepayments 7,213,040 7,408,728
Other receivables 27,584,143 24,582,358
Inventories 379,916 132,987
Contract assets 16,702,491 14,514,926
Current portion of non-current assets 3,158,911 1,818,947
Other current assets 4,922,286 4,688,909
Total current assets 102,813,622 98,011,238
Non-current assets
Debt investments 6,788,023 9,170,625
Long-term receivables 518,603 653,489
Long-term equity investments 226,483,401 216,923,658
Investments in other equity instruments 772,510 620,008
Other non-current financial assets 273,625 282,427
Investment properties 463,061 487,913
Fixed assets 1,143,196 1,005,720
Construction in progress 146,507 98,486
Right of use assets 480,421 656,546
Intangible assets 275,050 116,030
Long-term prepaid expenses 27,708 50,000
Deferred tax assets 1,729,211 1,625,028
Other non-current assets 9,419,104 6,167,158
Total non-current assets 248,520,420 237,857,088
TOTAL ASSETS 351,334,042 335,868,326
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I COVMPANY BALANCE SHEET

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 31,424,634 20,917,854
Accounts payable 57,237,097 55,843,707
Contract liabilities 13,053,429 11,634,516
Employee benefit payable 288,940 414,569
Taxes payable 2,632,966 2,722,102
Other payables 51,700,804 46,957,924
Current portion of non-current liabilities 9,952,674 17,305,991
Other current liabilities 4,024,971 3,951,737
Total current liabilities 170,315,515 159,748,400
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 25,478,000 19,610,000
Lease liabilities 420,369 558,645
Long-term payables 7,955,337 9,598,952
Long-term employee benefit payable 101,880 118,510
Provisions 3,093 15,965
Deferred income 2,354 2,354
Total non-current liabilities 33,961,033 29,899,426
TOTAL LIABILITIES 204,276,548 189,647,826
Shareholders’ equity
Paid-in capital 41,919,514 41,934,433
Other equity instruments 9,131,494 10,000,000
Including: Perpetual bonds 9,131,494 10,000,000
Capital reserve 30,331,332 30,538,929
Less: Treasury shares (1,831,725) (1,880,038)
Other comprehensive income 81,943 (228,173)
Special reserve 30,620 35,061
Surplus reserve 15,579,360 14,349,125
Retained earnings 51,814,956 51,471,163
Total shareholders’ equity 147,057,494 146,220,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 351,334,042 335,868,326

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2023

coMPANY INCOME STATEMENT [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

Note XVII 2023 2022
Revenue 4 59,800,006 72,670,029
Less: Cost of sales 4 57,532,876 68,657,169
Taxes and surcharges 72,542 72,290
General and administrative expenses 1,545,933 1,799,195
Research and development expenses 345,226 283,107
Finance expenses 1,941,930 1,650,727
Including: Interest expenses 1,944,718 1,974,945
Interest income 184,998 224,500
Add: Other income 5,420 4,825
Investment income 5 14,828,971 17,087,774
Including: Sh‘a‘re of (losses)/income of associates and (45,788) 277,925
joint ventures
Derecognition losses of financial assets measured
at amortized cost (4,600) (2.510)
Losses from changes in fair value (8,802) (28,377)
Credit impairment losses (212,937) (892,217)
Asset impairment losses (15,001) (19,084)
Gains on disposals of assets 2,416 7,598
Operating profit 12,961,566 16,373,060
Add: Non-operating income 5,428 5,056
Less: Non-operating expenses 120,453 233,140
Profit before income taxes 12,846,541 16,144,976
Less: Income tax expenses 544,188 1,090,402
Profit 12,302,353 15,054,574
Including: Profit from continuing operations 12,302,353 15,054,574
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 310,116 524,061
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 6,004 21,251
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan 2,040 5,390
Changes in fair value of investments in other equity instruments 3,964 15,861
Otgre;f;oor:?or::ensive income that may be reclassified to 304,112 502,810
Shares of other comprehensive losses that will be reclassified
subsequently into profit or loss by the investee under 485 (173)
equity method
Exchan ifferen n translation of foreign curren
e o s o e
Total comprehensive income 12,612,469 15,578,635

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan

Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie

Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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I COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
I. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from sales of goods and rendering of services 58,356,781 73,343,601
Refund of taxes and surcharges 2,432 67,139
Cash receipts relating to other operating activities 4,506,008 3,868,247
Sub-total cash flows from operating activities 62,865,221 77,278,987
Cash payments for goods and services 58,222,542 65,755,717
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 2,269,585 2,665,370
Payments of taxes and surcharges 1,301,981 2,207,876
Cash payments relating to other operating activities 3,798,598 6,174,962
Sub-total cash flows used in operating activities 65,592,706 76,803,925
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities (2,727,485) 475,062
Il. Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash receipts from disposal of investments 182,972 1,239,480
Cash receipts from returns on investments 13,757,906 14,469,731
Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and 12,680 10,795
other long-term assets

Cash receipts relating to other investing activities 2,828,291 1,124,495
Sub-total cash flows from investing activities 16,781,849 16,844,501
Caostf;epralénr:gitesr:r?;scscgge fixed assets, intangible assets and 458,533 241,577
Cash payments for investments 10,028,887 8,078,862
Cash payments relating to other investing activities 1,516,165 4,347,331
Sub-total cash flows used in investing activities 12,003,585 12,667,770
Net cash flows from investing activities 4,778,264 4,176,731

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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coMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLows [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
IIl. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash receipts from capital contributions 9,000,000 -
Cash receipts from borrowings 46,500,000 45,721,000
Sub-total cash flows from financing activities 55,500,000 45,721,000
Repayments of borrowings 38,572,000 39,386,167
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and interest expenses 12,503,105 12,719,189
Other cash payments relating to financing activities 10,307,261 507,187
Sub-total cash flows used in financing activities 61,382,366 52,612,543
Net cash flows used in financing activities (5,882,366) (6,891,543)
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 252,117 350,441
V. Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,579,470) (1,889,309)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,809,626 21,698,935
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16,230,156 19,809,626
The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zheng Xuexuan Chief Finance Officer: Huang Jie Head of the Finance Department: Xie Song

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | 169



I \OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

170

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

l. General Information

China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) was established as a joint
stock limited company under the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) laws and regulations in accordance with
the approval of Guo Zi Gai Ge [2007] No. 1495 issued
by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (“SASAC”) on 6
December 2007. The founder-members of the Company
are China State Construction Engineering Corporation
(“CSCEC”"), China National Petroleum Corporation,
Baosteel Group Corporation and Sinochem Corporation
(the latter three are called by “other founder-members”).

In November 2017, after approval by SASAC,
CSCEC was transformed from a wholly people-
owned enterprise to a wholly state-owned company.
After the transformation, the Company’s name was
changed to China State Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“CSCEC”), and its contributor was SASAC who
represents the State Council.

The Company was established on 10 December
2007 in Beijing, the PRC, and its head quarter is
situated in Beijing, the PRC. The parent company
and the ultimate parent company of the Company is
CSCEC. The Company was listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (“A shares”) for trading in July 2009. As at
31 December 2023, total share capital of the Company
was approximately 41.9 billion at the par value of 1.00
per share. As at 31 December 2023, CSCEC held
approximately 23,719,200,000 shares, representing
56.58% of the total share capital.

The approved scope of business of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) includes
survey, design, construction, installation, consultation,
development, decoration service, manufacturing,
wholesale, retail and imports and exports. The core
operations include: offering a full range of construction-
related services to foreign and domestic civil engineering
and building construction such as construction,
installation and consultation, investment and construction
of infrastructure projects, foreign and domestic real
estate investment and development, architecture and
infrastructure construction survey and design, decoration
engineering, landscape engineering design and
construction, industrial investment, contracting for foreign
projects in the PRC, import and export, production and
distribution of construction materials and other non-
metal mineral products, construction-related metalwork
and tools and construction engineering and drilling
equipment, and financial business such as lending and
borrowing within the Group.

These financial statements are authorised for issue by
the Company’s Board of Directors on 18 April 2024.

Please refer to Note VII for details of significant
subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope in the
current year. The Group does not have any significant
subsidiaries newly included in the consolidation scope
or excluded from the consolidation scope in the current
year.

Il. Basis of Preparation of the
Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises — Basic Standard and specific accounting
standards, implementation guidance, interpretations,
other relevant regulations issued subsequently by the
Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “ASBEs”). In addition, the Company also
discloses relevant financial information in accordance
with the General Provisions on Financial Reporting of
the Compilation Rules for Information Disclosure of
Companies Issuing Securities to the Public No. 15 of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission.

The financial statements have been presented on a going
concern basis.

Ill. Significant Accounting Policies
and Estimates

Specific accounting policies and estimates were decided
by the Group according to the characteristics of its
production and operation, mainly including measurement
of expected credit losses on receivables and contract
assets, valuation method of inventories, recognition and
measurement of revenue.

1. Statement of compliance with ASBEs

The consolidated and company financial statements
present fairly and fully the financial position of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2023, and the
financial performance and the cash flows for the year
ended in accordance with ASBEs.

2. Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to
31 December of each calendar year.

3. Functional currency

The Group’s reporting and presentation currency is
Renminbi (“RMB”). Unless otherwise specified, all are
expressed in thousands of RMB.

Each subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the Group
determines its own functional currency based on the
primary economic environment in which it operates. In
preparation of the financial statements, their functional
currencies are translated into RMB.
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lll. Significant Accounting Policies
and Estimates (continued)

4. Method for determination and selection
criteria of the materiality level

Materiality criteria

Material accounts receivable The individual provision for bad debt
with individual provision for  exceeds 300 million
bad debts

Material bad debt provision
of accounts receivable
collected, reversed or
written off

Material debt investments

The amount of collected, reversed
or written off bad debt provision for
individual receivables exceeds 300
million

The individual debt investment
exceeds 2,000 million

The individual construction in progress
exceeds 500 million

The individual amount accounts for
more than 1% of contract liabilities
over 1 year, and the amount of
contract liabilities exceeds 3,000
million

Material accounts payable/  The individual amount accounts for
other payables over one more than 1% of accounts payable or
year other payables over 1 year

Material cash flows from The individual investing activity
investing activities involves cash amount of exceeds
2,000 million

One of the total assets, operating
income or profits of a subsidiary
accounts for more than 5% of
the corresponding items in the
consolidated financial statements,
or although it is not of financial
significance, it has a significant
impact on the Group in terms of risk,
remuneration and strategy

Non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries account exceeds 0.5% of
the Group’s net assets

The amount of long-term equity
investments in joint ventures or
associated enterprises exceeds 1% of
the Group'’s net assets

Material construction in
progress

Material contract liabilities
over one year

Material subsidiaries

Material non wholly-owned
subsidiary

Material joint ventures or
associated enterprises

5. Business combinations

Business combinations are classified into business
combinations involving entities under common control
and business combinations not involving entities under
common control.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

A business combination involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the
combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the combination,
and that control is not transitory.

The assets and liabilities (including goodwill arising from
the ultimate controlling party’s acquisition of the entity
being absorbed) that are obtained by the absorbing
entity in a business combination involving entities under
common control shall be measured on the basis of
their carrying amounts in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets
obtained and the carrying amount of the consideration
paid for the combination (or the aggregate face value
of shares issued as consideration) shall be adjusted
to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
premium is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any
excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

Business combinations not involving entities
under common control

A business combination not involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
combination.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [N

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in
the business combination at their fair values on the
acquisition date. Goodwill is initially recognised and
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
combination over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Where the cost of the
combination is lower than the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, the
Group reassesses the measurement of the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities and the cost of the combination. If
after that reassessment, the cost of the combination is
still lower than the Group s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, the Group recognises
the remaining difference in profit or loss.

6. Consolidated financial statements

The scope of the consolidated financial statements,
which include the financial statements of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of
control. Subsidiary refers to the entity controlled by the
company (including the divisible parts of the enterprises,
the invested units, and the structured entities controlled
by the company, etc). An investor controls an investee if
and only if the investor has all the following: power over
the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns.

If the accounting policies or the accounting period of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
necessary adjustments are made to the sub3|d|arys
financial statements based on the Company’s own
accounting policies or accounting period in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. All intra-group assets,
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where the loss for the current period attributable to non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary exceeds the non-
controlling interests of the opening balance of equity of
the subsidiary, the excess shall still be allocated against
the non-controlling interests.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations
not involving entities under common control, the financial
performance and cash flows of the acquiree shall be
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
such control ceases. While preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial Statements on the basis of the fair
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations
involving entities under common control, the financial
performance and cash flows of the entity being absorbed
shall be consolidated from the beginning of the period
in which the combination occurs. While preparing the
comparative financial statements, adjustments are made
to related items in the financial statements for the prior
period as if the reporting entity after the combination has
been in existence since the date the ultimate controlling
party first obtained the control.
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lll. Significant Accounting Policies
and Estimates (continued)

6. Consolidated financial statements
(continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if any changes in facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control.

A change in the non-controlling interests, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the accounting treatment of a transaction is
inconsistent in the financial statements at the Group level
and at the Company or its subsidiary level, adjustment
will be made from the perspective of the Group.

7. Classification of joint arrangement and
joint operation

A joint arrangement is classified as either a joint
operation or a joint venture. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the joint operators have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

A joint operator recognises the following items in relation
to its interest in a joint operation: its solely-held assets
and its share of any assets held jointly; its solely-
assumed liabilities and its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation; its share of the revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation; its
solely-incurred expenses and its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and bank
deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

9. Foreign currency transactions and
foreign currency translation

The Group translates foreign currency transactions into
its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded,
on initial recognition in the functional currency using
the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions in which the transactions occur, however,
capital contributions in foreign currency by investors are
recorded using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions. Monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the spot exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of
those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for the construction and acquisition of qualifying assets,
which are capitalised in accordance with the guidance
for capitalisation of borrowing costs. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using exchange rate on
initial recognition, and the amount denominated in the

(All amounts in RMB Thousand Yuan unless otherwise stated)

functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income depending on the nature of the non-monetary
items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their
functional currency amounts into RMB when preparing
the financial statements as follows: as at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities are translated using
the spot exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
and equity items other than “unappropriated profit” are
translated at the spot exchange rates at the dates of
transactions; revenue and expense items in profit or loss
are translated using the average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
using the spot exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the transactions). The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of
foreign subsidiaries are translated using the average
exchange rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case cash flows are translated using the spot exchange
rates prevailing on the dates of cash flows). The effect of
exchange rate changes on cash is separately presented
as an adjustment item in the statement of cash flows.

10. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from t